
City of Bethel 
         P.O. Box 1388 

    Bethel, Alaska 99559 

        Phone: 907- 543-2047 

           Fax: 907-543-3781 

 

 

  

 

 

  

 

   

  

  

    

  

   

  

 
    Regular City Council Meeting  

Tuesday, December 12, 2017 

                               6:30 P.M. 

    Council Chambers; Bethel, Alaska 



Agenda posted on December 6, 2017, at City Hall, AC Co., Swanson’s, and the Post Office.  

_________________________     
Kevin Morgan, Asst. City Clerk 
(Items on the agenda noted with an asterisk (*) are considered the consent agenda. 
All Resolutions noted with an asterisk (*) will automatically be adopted on the consent agenda unless removed from the consent agenda by Council.  
Ordinances introduced with an asterisk (*) on the consent agenda will automatically be introduced and set for Public Hearing January 9, 2017. 
The Council may, after 12:00am, and only by a unanimous consent vote to Fix the Time to Which To Adjourn for the following day at 6:30 p.m. 

City Council Meeting Agenda 
Regularly Scheduled Meeting 
December 12, 2017 – 6:30 pm 
City Hall 300 State Highway, Bethel, AK 
City of Bethel Council Chambers 

Rick Robb 
Mayor 

Term Expires 2018 
rrobb@cityofbethel.net 

Fred Watson 
Vice-Mayor 

Term Expires 2018 
fwatson@cityofbethel.net 

Leif Albertson 
Council Member 

Term Expires 2019 
lalbertson@cityofbethel.net 

Mark Springer 
Council Member 

Term Expires 2018 
msprigner@cityofbethel.net 

Naim Shabani 
Council Member 

Term Expires 2019 
nshabani@cityofbethel.net 

Thor Williams 

Council Member 
Term Expires 2019 
twilliams@cityofbethel.net 

Mitchell Forbes  

Council Member  
Term Expires 2019 
mforbes@cityofbethel.net 

Pete Williams 

City Manager 
543-2047 
pwilliams@cityofbethel.net 

Lori Strickler 

City Clerk 
543-1384 

lstrickler@cityofbethel.net 

Patty Burley 

City Attorney 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

III. ROLL CALL

IV. PEOPLE TO BE HEARD – Five minutes per person

V. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA AND REGULAR AGENDA

VI. APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES

a) *11-28-2017 

VII. REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEE

VIII. SPECIAL ORDER OF BUSINESS

a) Invitation To Senator Hoffman And Representative Fansler To Address City Council
(Mayor Robb)

IX. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

a) Public Hearing of Budget Ordinance 17-28(d): Ordinance Of The Bethel City Council
Amending The Adopted Annual FY 2018 Budget (City Manager Williams)

X. NEW BUSINESS

a) *Introduction Of Budget Ordinance 17-28(e): Amending The Adopted Annual FY 
2018 Budget- Change To Park Development Fund (City Manager Williams) 

b) Update From Administration On The Hiring Process Of The Chief Of Police (Council
Member Williams)

c) *AM 17-75: Reappointment of David E. Trantham Jr. to the Finance Committee 
(Mayor Robb) 

d) *IM 17-06: Monthly Financial Reports For Period July 1- September 30, 2017 (City 
Manager Williams) 

e) *Leave Request- City Clerk- December 20-27, 2017 (Mayor Robb) 

f) *Leave Request- City Manager December 28- January 2 (City Manager Williams) 

XI. MAYOR’S REPORT

XII. MANAGER’S REPORTS

XIII. CLERK’S REPORT

XIV. COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS

XV. EXECUTIVE SESSION

a) In Accordance With AS 44.62.310(c)1: Matters, The Immediate Knowledge Of Which
Would Clearly Have An Adverse Effect Upon The Finances Of The Public Entity- Court
House Leased Property Contract (City Manager Williams)

b) In Accordance With AS 44.62.310(c)2:  Subjects that tend to prejudice the
reputation and character of any person, provided the person may request a public
discussion - Quarterly Evaluation, City Manager (Mayor Robb)

XVI. ADJOURNMENT

p.4

p.17

p.53

p.54

p.55

p.56

p.128

p.182

mailto:rrobb@cityofbethel.net
mailto:fwatson@cityofbethel.net
mailto:lalbertson@cityofbethel.net
mailto:msprigner@cityofbethel.net
mailto:nshabani@cityofbethel.net
mailto:twilliams@cityofbethel.net
mailto:mforbes@cityofbethel.net
mailto:pwilliams@cityofbethel.net
mailto:lstrickler@cityofbethel.net


 

Approval of the Meeting Minutes 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 



1 
 
City Council Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 

  November 28, 2017 

Regular Meeting 
November 28, 2017 

 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER   

 
A Regular Meeting of the Bethel City Council was held on November 28, 2017 at 6:30 
p.m., in the council chambers, Bethel, Alaska. 
 
Mayor Richard Robb called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.  

 
II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
III. ROLL CALL 

 

 
IV. PEOPLE TO BE HEARD   

 
Lorin Bradbury- Spoke in favor or the Introduction of Ordinance 17-46, 

explained that the tenant would be double taxed if the council doesn’t 
approve this exemption.  

 
Chin Kim and Mian Young, Owners of Tundra Suite Hotel addressed the Council 

with concerns related to the transient lodging tax and the impacts of the 
collection of the 12% when the Medicare payments are only $86 per night.  

 

          City Council Meeting  
       City of Bethel, Alaska 

Comprising a quorum of the Council, the following members were present: 

Mayor Rick Robb Council Member Mitchell Forbes   

Council Member Mark Springer (Telephonically) Council Member Leif Albertson 

Council Member Naim Shabani Council Member Thor Williams (arrived at 6:34p.m.) 

Vice-Mayor Fred Watson (Joined Telephonically at 
8:00p.m.) 

 

Members Absent:   

  

 Also in attendance were the following: 

City Manager Pete Williams City Clerk Lori Strickler 

City Attorney Patty Burley  

4



2 
 
City Council Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 

  November 28, 2017 

Juan Delgado, Representative of Delta Cottages – Spoke in favor of the 
Introduction of Ordinance 17-46.  

 
Mary Nanuwak- Thanked the Council for their service. Thanked the staff of 

Health Fitness for their continued hard work and kind service, hopes that 
the community is able to use facility. Thanked the people in the community 
who provide regular donations. Spoke in favor of Ordinance 17-48, believes 
the City Council should charge the highest rate of taxes on alcohol. Spoke in 
favor of AM 17-74, stated there are a number of community members that 
utilize the transit system.  

 
V. APPROVAL OF THE CONSENT AND REGULAR AGENDA 
 

Main Motion: Approve the Consent and Regular Agenda.  

Moved by: Shabani 
Seconded by: Albertson 

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 6-0 

In favor:  Robb   Albertson   Springer   Shabani   Williams   Forbes 

Opposed:  0 

 
VI. APPROVAL OF THE MEETING MINUTES 

 
Item A – 10-24-2017 Regular Meeting. 
Passed on the Consent Agenda 
 
Item B – 11-9-2017 Special Meeting. 
Passed on the Consent Agenda 

 
VII. REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES 

 
Public Safety and Transportation Commission  
Council Member Naim Shabani- A meeting was not held in the month of November, they will 
meet again next Wednesday.  
 
Port Commission   
Mayor Richard Robb, Council Representative -   
A quorum of the body was not established, a meeting was not held.  
 
Planning Commission   
Council Member Thor Williams, Council Representative- 
A meeting was not held due to a lack of a quorum.  
 
Parks, Recreation, Aquatic Health and Safety Center Committee   

5



3 
 
City Council Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 

  November 28, 2017 

Beverly Hoffman, Committee Representative- Members of the Community addressed 
the Committee on phase two of the development of an addition to the YK Fitness 
Center. Identified a number of outstanding Council actions that pool is hoping to see 
action/resolution on. Requested the City to remove the debris left from the City’s 
removal of trees in Pinky’s park. Contracts were issued to artist who were selected for 
installation pieces at the YK Fitness Center.  
 
Finance Committee   
Council Member Leif Albertson, Council Representative- 
The Committee was unable to hold a meeting due to a lack of agenda posting.  
 
Energy Committee   
Council Member Mark Springer, Council Representative - 
Encouraged members of the public to apply to be on the Committee. Reviewed the 
alternative energy report and postponed their meeting for December.   
Juan Delgado, Energy Committee Representative- Energy savings for the City of 
Bethel employees, the City should consider amending their use of vehicle block 
heaters to help with energy savings or use timers on the block heaters.  
  
Public Works Committee   
No one was available to provide a report.  
 

VIII. SPECIAL ORDER OF BUSINESS 
 
Item A – Health Fitness Monthly Report On The YK Fitness Center. 

 
IX. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 

Item A – Introduction of Ordinance 17-46: Amending The Bethel Municipal Code 
Chapter 4.16.160 Tax Exemptions Rental Units Tax Exemption On Fuel And Electricity.  

 
 

Main Motion: Introduce Ordinance 17-46. 

Moved by: Forbes 

Seconded by: Springer 
Action: Postponed  

 
Council Member Albertson was previously ruled to have a conflict of interest. Council 
Member Albertson stepped down from the Council Bench.  
 
Council member Shabani declared a conflict of interest as he is in the process of 
purchasing a rental business. Mayor Robb declared Council member Shabani does have 
a conflict of interest.  

6



4 
 
City Council Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 

  November 28, 2017 

 
Primary 

Amendment: Postpone until the second council meeting in January.  

Moved by: Springer 

Seconded by: Forbes 
Action: Motion carries by a vote of 4-0 

In favor:  Robb   Springer   Williams   Forbes 

Opposed:  0 

 
Council Members Albertson and Shabani returned to the Council desk.  
 

Item B – Public Hearing Of Ordinance 17-47: Supporting The Amendment To The 
Official Map And Land Use Code. 

Mayor Robb opened the Public Hearing. 
No one present to be heard. 
Mayor Robb closed the Public Hearing.  

 
Main Motion: Adopt Ordinance 17-47. 

Moved by: Forbes 
Seconded by: Springer  

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 5-1 

In favor:  Robb   Albertson   Springer   Shabani   Forbes 

Opposed:  Williams   

 

X. NEW BUSINESS 
 
Item A – Introduction of Ordinance 17-48: Amending Fees And Charges Related To 
Alcohol, Subdivisions. 

 

Main Motion: Introduce Ordinance 17-48.  

Moved by: Springer 

Seconded by: Albertson 
Action: Postponed 

 
Main Motion: Postpone until the first meeting in January.   

Moved by: Williams  
Seconded by: Springer  

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 6-0 

In favor:  Robb   Albertson   Springer   Shabani   Williams   Forbes 

Opposed:  0 

 
 

7



5 
 
City Council Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 

  November 28, 2017 

Item B – Introduction of Budget Ordinance 17-28(d): Ordinance of the Bethel City 
Council Amending the Adopted Annual FY 2018 Budget. 

 

Vice-Mayor Watson connected telephonically at 8:00p.m. 
 

Main Motion: Introduction of Budget Ordinance 17-28 (d). 

Moved by: Springer 
Seconded by: Forbes   

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 6-1 

In favor:  Robb   Albertson   Watson   Springer   Shabani   Forbes 

Opposed:  Williams   

 

Item C – Resolution 17-20: City Of Bethel Priorities For The FY 2019 State Of Alaska 
Capital Budget. 

 
Main Motion: Adopt Resolution 17-20.  

Moved by: Shabani 
Seconded by: Albertson  

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 7-0 

In favor:  Robb   Albertson   Watson   Springer   Shabani   Williams   Forbes 

Opposed:  0 

 
Council Member Springer departed the meeting at 8:17p.m. 
 

Primary 
Amendment: 

Amend to include the institutional corridor phase two in the amount of 4.5 Million 
dollars.  

Moved by: Forbes 

Seconded by: Albertson  
Action: Motion carries by a vote of 6-0 

In favor:  Robb   Albertson   Watson   Shabani   Williams   Forbes 

Opposed:  0 

 
Council Member Springer rejoined the meeting at 8:18p.m. 
 

Primary 

Amendment: Move H Marker Lake to the 5 spot on the priority list.  

Moved by: Albertson 

Seconded by: Springer 
Action: Motion does not carries by a vote of 2-5 

In favor:  Albertson   Williams   

Opposed:  Robb   Watson   Springer   Shabani  Forbes 

 
Primary 

Amendment: Insert phase two of the institutional corridor as priority number 2.  

Moved by: Albertson 

8



6 
 
City Council Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 

  November 28, 2017 

Seconded by: Forbes 

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 7-0 

In favor:  Robb   Albertson   Watson   Springer   Shabani   Williams   Forbes 

Opposed:  0 

 
Primary 

Amendment: 

Amend to adopt the whereas statements for the institutional corridor phase two as 

presented in the City’s 2016 Resolution.   

Moved by: Albertson 
Seconded by: Forbes 

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 7-0 

In favor:  Robb   Albertson   Watson   Springer   Shabani   Williams   Forbes 

Opposed:  0 

 
Item D – Resolution 17-21: Authorizing The Administration To Amend The City Of 
Bethel Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) Participation Agreement To Exempt 
The Position Of The Police Chief From Participation In PERS. 

 
Keith Henthorn, Human Resources Manager for the City addressed the Council.  

 
Main Motion: Adopt Resolution 17-21.  

Moved by: Forbes  
Seconded by: Springer 

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 4-3 

In favor:  Robb   Albertson   Springer   Forbes 

Opposed:  Williams   Watson   Shabani   

 
Item E – AM 17-71: Re-Appointment Of Committee And Commission Members For A 
Term Of Three Years: Michelle Dewitt/Parks, Recreation, Aquatic Health and Safety 
Committee (PRAHS); Kathryn Baldwin/PRAHS; Lorin Bradbury/Planning Commission; 
Jon Cochrane/Finance Committee. 

 
Main Motion: Approve AM 17-71.  

Moved by: Springer 

Seconded by: Albertson 

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 7-0 

In favor:  Robb   Albertson   Watson   Springer   Shabani   Williams   Forbes 

Opposed:  0 

 
Item F – AM 17-72: Bethel City Council Regular Meeting Dates for Calendar Year 2018. 

 
Main Motion: Approve AM 17-72. 

Moved by: Albertson 

Seconded by: Shabani 
Action: Motion carries by a vote of 7-0 

In favor:  Robb   Albertson   Watson   Springer   Shabani   Williams   Forbes 

9



7 
 
City Council Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 

  November 28, 2017 

Opposed:  0 

 

Item G – AM 17-73: Appointment of Louise Russell to the Community Action Grant 
Technical Review Board. 

 
Main Motion: Approve AM 17-73. 

Moved by: Albertson  

Seconded by: Forbes 
Action: Motion carries by a vote of 7-0 

In favor:  Robb   Albertson   Watson   Springer   Shabani   Williams   Forbes 

Opposed:  0 

 
Item H – AM 17-74: Direct Administration To Prepare And Submit A FY 2019 
Community Transportation Grant Application To Fund The Operation Of The Bethel 
Transit System With The City’s FY 2019 Budget As Local Match. 

 

Council Member Naim Shabani declared a conflict of interest due to his ownership of 
Kusko Cab. Mayor Robb decides that there is no conflict of interest as there is not 
significant financial interest. 

 
Main Motion: Approve AM 17-74. 

Moved by: Springer 

Seconded by: Watson 
Action: Motion carries by a vote of 5-2 

In favor:  Robb   Watson   Springer   Shabani   Forbes 

Opposed:  Williams   Albertson 

 

XI. MAYOR’S REPORT 
XII. MANAGER’S REPORT 
XIII. CLERK’S REPORT 
XIV. COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS 

 
Mayor Richard Robb –  
Hoped that everyone had a happy Thanksgiving.  
 
Vice-Mayor Fred Watson –  
No comment.   
 
Council Member Leif Albertson – 
Thanked the volunteers for the Bethel Fire Department.  
 
Council Member Mark Springer –  

10



8 
 
City Council Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 

  November 28, 2017 

Informed by the Director of the Alcohol Beverage Control Board Director that the two 
operating licenses are going to be up for renewal.  
 
Council Member Naim Shabani –  
Today marks the 105 Anniversary of Albania winning their independence.  
 
Council Member Thor–  
Thanked search and rescue for their work in our community.  
 
Council Member Mitchell Forbes– 
Thanked Bethel Community Services Foundation for their effort in coordinating Bethel 
Gives.  
 

XV. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

Item A– In Accordance With AS 44.62.310(c)1: Matters, The Immediate Knowledge Of 
Which Would Clearly Have An Adverse Effect Upon The Finances Of The Public Entity- 
Court House Leased Property Contract 

 

Item B– In Accordance With AS 44.62.310(c)2:  Subjects that tend to prejudice the 
reputation and character of any person, provided the person may request a public 
discussion - Quarterly Evaluation, City Attorney 

 

Main Motion: 

Move into Executive Session-  
In Accordance With AS 44.62.310(c)1: Matters, The Immediate Knowledge Of Which 

Would Clearly Have An Adverse Effect Upon The Finances Of The Public Entity- Court 

House Leased Property Contract. Those attending Item A were: City Attorney, City 
Manager and City Clerk.  

In Accordance With AS 44.62.310(c)2:  Subjects that tend to prejudice the 
reputation and character of any person, provided the person may request a public 

discussion - Quarterly Evaluation, City Attorney.  Those attending Item B is: City 
Attorney.  

Moved by: Forbes 
Seconded by: Springer  

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 7-0 

In favor:  Robb   Albertson   Watson   Springer   Shabani   Williams   Forbes 

Opposed:  0 

 
Council Member Springer and Council Member Shabani departed the meeting at 
10:00p.m. 
 

XVI. ADJOURNMENT 
 

Main Motion: Adjournment.  

Moved by: Albertson 

11



9 
 
City Council Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 

  November 28, 2017 

Seconded by: Forbes 

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 5-0 

In favor:  Robb   Albertson   Watson   Williams   Forbes 

Opposed:  0 

 
 
Council adjourned at 11:40p.m. 
 
 
 

 
 
_________________________ 
Richard Robb, Mayor  

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_______________________ 
Lori Strickler, City Clerk   

12



 

Reports of Standing Committees  
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

13



PUBLIC NOTICE 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE 

PUBLIC SAFETY & TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
Wednesday, December 6th, 2017 –6:30 p.m. 

300 STATE HIGHWAY – CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
AGENDA 

City of Bethel Police Dept. 
PO Box 809 

Bethel, AK 99559 
Office| 543-3781    Fax| 543-5086 

Members 
 

Eileen Henrikson 

Chair 

 

Jared Karr 

Vice Chair 

 

Naim Shabani 

Council Representative 

 

Julene Webber  

 

Mary Weiss 

 

Joan Dewey 

 

Monroe Tyler 

 

Mary Nanuwak     

               

Ex-Officio Members 

 

Burke Waldron 

Interim Chief of Police 

 

William Howell III 

Fire Chief 

 

Jesslyn McGowan 

Recorder 

 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

II. ROLL CALL   

III. PEOPLE TO BE HEARD 

IV. APPROVAL OF AGENDA  

V.     APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM THE REGULAR MEETING OF  

     October 4th, 2017  

 

VI.  UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 A. Taxi Rate Increase (Naim Shabani)   

 B. Discussion about Taxi Cameras (Naim Shabani) 

 C. Camai Cab Violations 

 D. Discuss BMC Codes 

         

VIII..      CHIEFS’ COMMENTS 

Fire Chief  

Chief of Police 

    

IX. TRANSPORTATION INSPECTOR’S REPORT 

X. COUNCIL REPRESENTATIVE’S COMMENTS 

XI.  COMMISSION MEMBER’S COMMENTS 

XII.  ADJOURNMENT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

_____________________ 

Jesslyn McGowan, Recorder 
POSTED on November 29th, 2017  
POST OFFICE, AC QUICKSTOP, CORINA’S CASE LOT, CITY HALL, & POLICE DEPT. 

Next Public Safety and Transportation Commission Meeting will be January 3rd, 2017.  

“Deep Sea Port and Transportation Center of the Kuskokwim” 

14



 

Special Order of Business 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

15



 

Unfinished Business  
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

16



17



18



19



Introduced by:

Introduction Date:

Public Hearing: December 12, 2017

Action:

Vote:

Section 1.  That the following sums of money as may be needed or deemed necessary to provide for increased

ACCOUNT # Increases

10-66-690 CAPTIAL EXPENSE - EQUIPMENT - (1) LOAD KING LOWBOY 27,000 

10-66-690 CAPTIAL EXPENSE - EQUIPMENT - (1) CAT 950G WHEEL LOADER 16,843 

10-66-690 CAPTIAL EXPENSE - EQUIPMENT - (1) CAT 160M GRADER 6,700 

10-66-690 CAPTIAL EXPENSE - EQUIPMENT - (1) CAT 163H GRADER 34,087 

10-66-690 CAPTIAL EXPENSE - EQUIPMENT - (1) CAT D8N DOZER 28,570 

10-66-690 CAPTIAL EXPENSE - EQUIPMENT - (1) CAT 420D BACKHOE 13,256 

Total Increases 126,456 

Decreases

10-10100 CASH IN GENERAL TREASURY (126,456)

Total Decreases (126,456)

                                                                                                              TOTAL 0 

TOTAL CHANGE TO GENERAL FUND APPROPRIATIONS

Total Increases 126,456 

Total Decreases 0 

Cumulative Change to APPROPRIATIONS 126,456 

TOTAL CHANGE TO GENERAL FUND BALANCE

Change to General Fund Revenues 0 

Change to General Fund Appropriations 126,456 

Cumulative Increase/Decrease to Fund Balance (126,456)

SOLID WASTE ENTERPRISE APPROPRIATIONS

CHANGE TO LANDFILL OPERATIONS DEPARTMENT 

ACCOUNT # Increases

50-16500 MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT - CAT TRACK LOADER 7,208 

50-16600 VEHICLES - GENERAL - (1) 2010 MACK SEMI-TRACTOR 32,000 

50-71-661 MAINTENANCE EXPENSE - COMPACTOR 2,599

Total Increases 41,807 

Decreases

10-10100 CASH IN GENERAL TREASURY (41,807)

Total Decreases (41,807)

                                                                                                              TOTAL 0 

Peter Williams, City Manager

November 28, 2017

ORDINANCE # 17-28 (d)

CITY OF BETHEL, ALASKA

expenses and liabilities of the City of Bethel are hereby appropriated for the corporate purposes and objects of the City hereinafter specified for 

Fiscal Year 2018, July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2018.

An Ordinance of the Bethel City Council Amending the Adopted Annual FY 2018 Budget

Be it Enacted by the Bethel City Council that the FY 2018 Annual Budget be amended as follows:

Section 2.  The following is a summary of the changes by fund and department:

GENERAL FUND APPROPRIATIONS

CHANGE TO STREETS AND ROADS DEPARTMENT

         City of Bethel
Ordinance #

1 of 2

20



TOTAL CHANGE TO SOLID WASTE FUND APPROPRIATIONS

Total Increases 41,807 

Total Decreases 0 

                                                                                                               TOTAL 41,807 

TOTAL CHANGE TO SOLID WASTE FUND BALANCE
Change to Solid Waste Fund Revenues 0 

Change to Solid Waste Fund Appropriations 41,807 

Cumulative Increase/Decrease to Fund Balance (41,807)

Change to Revenues  Increase/(Decrease) 0

Change to Appropriations  Increase/(Decrease) 168,263

These changes INCREASE↑ the overall expenditures/expenses of the City by 168,263

Section 3.  Effective Date.  This ordinance becomes effective immediately upon adoption.

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS __ DAY OF DECEMBER 2017 BY A VOTE OF __ IN FAVOR AND __ OPPOSED.

ATTEST:

_____________________________

Lori Strickler, City Clerk

TOTAL CHANGE TO OVERALL CITY BUDGET

                                                                                          ____________________________________

                                                                       Richard Robb, Mayor

         City of Bethel
Ordinance #

2 of 2

21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



 

New Business   
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 

52



Introduced by:

Introduction Date:

Public Hearing:

Action:

Vote:

Section 1.  That the following sums of money as may be needed or deemed necessary to provide for increased

ACCOUNT # Increases

10-10100 CENTRAL TREASURY 83,000 

Total Increases 83,000 

Decreases

26-50-690 PARK DEVELOPMENT - funds received from AVCP - OWL PARK (83,000)

Total Decreases (83,000)

                                                                                                              TOTAL 0 

TOTAL CHANGE TO GENERAL FUND APPROPRIATIONS

Total Increases 0 

Total Decreases 0 

Cumulative Change to APPROPRIATIONS 0 

TOTAL CHANGE TO GENERAL FUND BALANCE

Change to General Fund Revenues 0 

Change to General Fund Appropriations 0 

Cumulative Increase/Decrease to Fund Balance 0 

An Ordinance of the Bethel City Council Amending the Adopted Annual FY 2018 Budget

Be it Enacted by the Bethel City Council that the FY 2018 Annual Budget be amended as follows:

Section 2.  The following is a summary of the changes by fund and department:

PARK DEVELOPMENT FUND

CHANGE TO PARK DEVELOPMENT FUND

Peter Williams, City Manager

December 12, 2017

ORDINANCE # 17-28 (e)

CITY OF BETHEL, ALASKA

expenses and liabilities of the City of Bethel are hereby appropriated for the corporate purposes and objects of the City hereinafter specified for 

Fiscal Year 2018, July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2018.

         City of Bethel
Ordinance #17-28 (e)

1 of 1

53



Sec. 29.20.360. Appointment of officials. 
Unless otherwise provided by ordinance, the municipal clerk, attorney, 
treasurer, and police chief are appointed by the chief administrator. 
Unless otherwise provided by ordinance, an official described in this 
section serves at the pleasure of the appointing authority and, if 
appointed by the chief administrator, must be confirmed by the 
governing body.

 

54



City of Bethel Action Memorandum 

Action memorandum No.  17-75 

Date action introduced: December 12, 2017 Introduced by:   Mayor Robb 

Date action taken: 
 

          Approved                                 Denied                                           

Confirmed by:  

 

AM No. 17-15  

Reappointment of David E. Trantham Jr. to the Finance Committee for a term of three years.   

 

Originator: City Clerk’s Office  

Amount of fiscal impact: Account information: 

None  
 

David E. Trantham Jr. has submitted an application for reappointment to the Finance 
Committee, if appointed he will fill a term for three years expiring December 31, 2020.   

55



17-06
December 12, 2017

56



CITY OF BETHEL

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 3 MONTHS ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 25 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  12/05/2017     10:50AM       PAGE: 1

ADMINISTRATION

10-51-501 SALARIES 90,535.19 90,535.19 331,072.00 240,536.81 27.4

10-51-510 SOCIAL SECURITY EXPENSE   .00 .00 434.00 434.00 .0

10-51-511 MEDICARE FICA 1,317.50 1,317.50 4,801.00 3,483.50 27.4

10-51-512 EMPLOYEE GROUP BENEFITS 21,467.92 21,467.92 77,760.00 56,292.08 27.6

10-51-515 UNEMPLOYMENT              .00 .00 2,819.00 2,819.00 .0

10-51-516 WORKERS' COMPENSATION .00 .00 1,252.00 1,252.00 .0

10-51-517 PERS ON BEHALF .00 .00 69,756.00 69,756.00 .0

10-51-518 PERS 19,129.11 19,129.11 .00 (              19,129.11) .0

10-51-519 UTILITY BENEFIT .00 .00 13,680.00 13,680.00 .0

10-51-545 TRAINING/TRAVEL 4,370.32 4,370.32 10,000.00 5,629.68 43.7

10-51-561 SUPPLIES                  351.87 351.87 6,700.00 6,348.13 5.3

10-51-602 GASOLINE / DIESEL / OIL .00 .00 2,000.00 2,000.00 .0

10-51-621 ELECTRICITY               3,349.85 3,349.85 12,000.00 8,650.15 27.9

10-51-622 TELEPHONE                 4,403.93 4,403.93 20,000.00 15,596.07 22.0

10-51-623 HEATING FUEL 848.03 848.03 22,000.00 21,151.97 3.9

10-51-626 WATER/SEWER/GARB/         2,926.17 2,926.17 11,500.00 8,573.83 25.4

10-51-627 STAFF CELLULAR PHONES 53.15 53.15 .00 (                     53.15) .0

10-51-642 LEGAL FEES .00 .00 2,000.00 2,000.00 .0

10-51-646 DRUG TESTING/BCKGRND CKS 1,105.00 1,105.00 9,500.00 8,395.00 11.6

10-51-649 LOBBYIST                  9,999.99 9,999.99 20,000.00 10,000.01 50.0

10-51-661 VEHICLE MAINT/REPAIR      1,523.33 1,523.33 1,519.00 (                       4.33) 100.3

10-51-663 JANITORIAL                2,762.50 2,762.50 11,400.00 8,637.50 24.2

10-51-669 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES  233.04 233.04 6,500.00 6,266.96 3.6

10-51-683 MINOR EQUIPMENT           .00 .00 2,000.00 2,000.00 .0

10-51-721 INSURANCE                 190.00 190.00 6,500.00 6,310.00 2.9

10-51-724 DUES/SUBSCRIPTIONS 200.00 200.00 1,200.00 1,000.00 16.7

10-51-727 ADVERTISING               209.86 209.86 1,000.00 790.14 21.0

10-51-732 EQUIPMENT RENTAL          .00 .00 2,000.00 2,000.00 .0

10-51-733 POSTAGE                   2,787.00 2,787.00 10,000.00 7,213.00 27.9

10-51-790 ALLOWANCE SPECIAL EVENTS  .00 .00 10,000.00 10,000.00 .0

10-51-799 MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES    .00 .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .0

10-51-875 INDIRECT COST RECOVERY (              70,635.00) (              70,635.00) (            282,544.00) (            211,909.00) (  25.0)

10-51-996 ADMIN OVERHEAD-IT SVCS 8,799.00 8,799.00 .00 (                8,799.00) .0

TOTAL ADMINISTRATION 105,927.76 105,927.76 387,849.00 281,921.24 27.3

57



CITY OF BETHEL

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 3 MONTHS ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 25 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  12/05/2017     10:50AM       PAGE: 2

CITY CLERKS OFFICE

10-52-501 SALARIES 29,588.29 29,588.29 112,743.00 83,154.71 26.2

10-52-510 SOCIAL SECURITY EXPENSE   139.41 139.41 .00 (                   139.41) .0

10-52-511 MEDICARE                  444.36 444.36 1,635.00 1,190.64 27.2

10-52-512 EMPLOYEE GROUP BENEFITS   6,327.66 6,327.66 25,920.00 19,592.34 24.4

10-52-515 UNEMPLOYMENT              .00 .00 1,270.00 1,270.00 .0

10-52-516 WORKERS' COMPENSATION 10.00 10.00 427.00 417.00 2.3

10-52-517 PERS ON BEHALF .00 .00 24,804.00 24,804.00 .0

10-52-518 P.E.R.S.                  6,014.78 6,014.78 .00 (                6,014.78) .0

10-52-519 UTILITY BENEFIT           .00 .00 4,560.00 4,560.00 .0

10-52-541 TRAVEL/TRAINING-COUNCIL   879.06 879.06 19,000.00 18,120.94 4.6

10-52-545 TRAINING/TRAVEL-CLERK     2,119.76 2,119.76 4,500.00 2,380.24 47.1

10-52-561 SUPPLIES-CLERK 1,055.29 1,055.29 2,000.00 944.71 52.8

10-52-562 SUPPLIES-COUNCIL 77.24 77.24 500.00 422.76 15.5

10-52-622 TELEPHONE                 .00 .00 275.00 275.00 .0

10-52-627 STAFF CELLULAR PHONES 53.15 53.15 .00 (                     53.15) .0

10-52-642 LEGAL FEES .00 .00 3,000.00 3,000.00 .0

10-52-669 OTHER PURCHASE SERVICES   2,154.00 2,154.00 18,000.00 15,846.00 12.0

10-52-682 ELECTION EXPENSES         12,048.96 12,048.96 14,000.00 1,951.04 86.1

10-52-683 MINOR EQUIPMENT           .00 .00 500.00 500.00 .0

10-52-684 DONATIONS & AWARDS        145.64 145.64 500.00 354.36 29.1

10-52-721 INSURANCE                 190.00 190.00 1,530.00 1,340.00 12.4

10-52-724 DUES/SUBSCRIPTIONS        50.00 50.00 7,000.00 6,950.00 .7

10-52-727 ADVERTISING               55.00 55.00 .00 (                     55.00) .0

10-52-790 ALLOWANCE FOR SPECIAL EVENTS .00 .00 600.00 600.00 .0

10-52-875 INDRIECT COST RECOVERY (              32,877.00) (              32,877.00) .00 32,877.00 .0

10-52-996 ADMIN OVERHEAD-IT SVCS 4,872.00 4,872.00 .00 (                4,872.00) .0

TOTAL CITY CLERKS OFFICE 33,347.60 33,347.60 242,764.00 209,416.40 13.7

58



CITY OF BETHEL

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 3 MONTHS ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 25 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  12/05/2017     10:50AM       PAGE: 3

FINANCE

10-53-501 SALARIES 92,261.62 92,261.62 494,296.00 402,034.38 18.7

10-53-502 OVERTIME                  727.96 727.96 .00 (                   727.96) .0

10-53-508 LEAVE CASHOUT .00 .00 11,110.00 11,110.00 .0

10-53-510 SOCIAL SECURITY EXPENSE   99.98 99.98 .00 (                     99.98) .0

10-53-511 MEDICARE FICA             1,291.87 1,291.87 7,167.00 5,875.13 18.0

10-53-512 EMPLOYEE GROUP BENEFITS 19,284.52 19,284.52 162,000.00 142,715.48 11.9

10-53-515 UNEMPLOYMENT              .00 .00 6,760.00 6,760.00 .0

10-53-516 WORKERS' COMPENSATION .00 .00 1,870.00 1,870.00 .0

10-53-517 PERS ON BEHALF .00 .00 108,745.00 108,745.00 .0

10-53-518 PERS                     17,272.42 17,272.42 .00 (              17,272.42) .0

10-53-519 UTILITY BENEFIT           .00 .00 28,500.00 28,500.00 .0

10-53-520 RELOCATION EXPENSES       .00 .00 10,000.00 10,000.00 .0

10-53-545 TRAINING/TRAVEL           11,611.82 11,611.82 13,200.00 1,588.18 88.0

10-53-561 SUPPLIES                  965.43 965.43 8,000.00 7,034.57 12.1

10-53-602 GASOLINE                  217.30 217.30 500.00 282.70 43.5

10-53-622 TELEPHONE 34.16 34.16 .00 (                     34.16) .0

10-53-627 STAFF CELLULAR PHONES 53.15 53.15 .00 (                     53.15) .0

10-53-640 SALES TAX AUDITS .00 .00 15,000.00 15,000.00 .0

10-53-641 AUDITING EXPENSE 18,985.00 18,985.00 65,400.00 46,415.00 29.0

10-53-647 COLLECTION/SMALL CLAIMS 10,400.00 10,400.00 .00 (              10,400.00) .0

10-53-648 OUTSOURCED SERVICES 10,266.00 10,266.00 22,243.00 11,977.00 46.2

10-53-649 OTHER PROFESSIONAL SVS 17,215.85 17,215.85 10,000.00 (                7,215.85) 172.2

10-53-661 VEHICLE MAINT/REPAIRS     .00 .00 1,519.00 1,519.00 .0

10-53-668 HARDWARE/SOFTWARE SUP/669 4,484.00 4,484.00 25,848.00 21,364.00 17.4

10-53-683 MINOR EQUIPMENT           357.08 357.08 1,500.00 1,142.92 23.8

10-53-693 CASELLE UPGRADE .00 .00 6,500.00 6,500.00 .0

10-53-721 INSURANCE                 16,090.00 16,090.00 5,300.00 (              10,790.00) 303.6

10-53-723 CITY ACCT CLEANUP ADJUSTMENTS (                   271.06) (                   271.06) 8,605.00 8,876.06 (    3.2)

10-53-724 DUES/SUBSCRIPTIONS 30.00 30.00 1,500.00 1,470.00 2.0

10-53-727 ADVERTISING               .00 .00 400.00 400.00 .0

10-53-733 POSTAGE                   7.08 7.08 .00 (                       7.08) .0

10-53-736 BANK CHARGES              9,871.97 9,871.97 35,343.00 25,471.03 27.9

10-53-799 MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES    (                     22.00) (                     22.00) .00 22.00 .0

10-53-875 INDIRECT COST RECOVERY (            135,786.00) (            135,786.00) (            543,142.00) (            407,356.00) (  25.0)

10-53-996 ADMIN OVERHEAD-IT SVCS 8,553.00 8,553.00 .00 (                8,553.00) .0

TOTAL FINANCE 104,001.15 104,001.15 508,164.00 404,162.85 20.5

59



CITY OF BETHEL

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 3 MONTHS ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 25 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  12/05/2017     10:50AM       PAGE: 4

PLANNING

10-54-501 SALARIES 42,738.14 42,738.14 131,535.00 88,796.86 32.5

10-54-508 LEAVE CASHOUT .00 .00 2,473.00 2,473.00 .0

10-54-511 MEDICARE FICA             620.24 620.24 1,907.00 1,286.76 32.5

10-54-512 EMPLOYEE GROUP BENEFITS   13,743.68 13,743.68 51,840.00 38,096.32 26.5

10-54-515 UNEMPLOYMENT              .00 .00 1,831.00 1,831.00 .0

10-54-516 WORKERS' COMPENSATION .00 .00 498.00 498.00 .0

10-54-517 PERS ON BEHALF .00 .00 28,938.00 28,938.00 .0

10-54-518 PERS                     6,891.49 6,891.49 .00 (                6,891.49) .0

10-54-519 UTILITY BENEFIT           .00 .00 9,120.00 9,120.00 .0

10-54-545 TRAINING/TRAVEL           .00 .00 8,420.00 8,420.00 .0

10-54-561 SUPPLIES                  1,524.96 1,524.96 3,900.00 2,375.04 39.1

10-54-602 GASOLINE                  86.70 86.70 1,800.00 1,713.30 4.8

10-54-621 ELECTRICITY               206.62 206.62 1,811.00 1,604.38 11.4

10-54-622 TELEPHONE                 17.08 17.08 1,700.00 1,682.92 1.0

10-54-623 HEATING FUEL              .00 .00 8,000.00 8,000.00 .0

10-54-626 WATER/SEWER/GARBAGE 319.48 319.48 1,000.00 680.52 32.0

10-54-627 STAFF CELLULAR PHONES 53.15 53.15 .00 (                     53.15) .0

10-54-648 CODE ENFORCEMENT ACTIVITIES .00 .00 1,500.00 1,500.00 .0

10-54-649 OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES   5,240.00 5,240.00 60,000.00 54,760.00 8.7

10-54-661 VEHICLE MAINT/REPAIRS     373.49 373.49 1,519.00 1,145.51 24.6

10-54-669 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 455.00 455.00 3,060.00 2,605.00 14.9

10-54-683 MINOR EQUIPMENT           .00 .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .0

10-54-721 INSURANCE                 .00 .00 1,500.00 1,500.00 .0

10-54-727 ADVERTISING               450.00 450.00 1,000.00 550.00 45.0

10-54-996 ADMIN OVERHEAD-IT SVCS 4,563.00 4,563.00 .00 (                4,563.00) .0

TOTAL PLANNING 77,283.03 77,283.03 324,352.00 247,068.97 23.8

60



CITY OF BETHEL

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 3 MONTHS ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 25 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  12/05/2017     10:51AM       PAGE: 5

TECHNOLOGY DEPARTMENTS

10-55-501 SALARIES 23,200.66 23,200.66 86,174.00 62,973.34 26.9

10-55-511 MEDICARE FICA 353.94 353.94 1,250.00 896.06 28.3

10-55-512 EMPLOYEE GROUP BENEFITS 3,072.03 3,072.03 25,920.00 22,847.97 11.9

10-55-515 UNEMPLOYMENT .00 .00 888.00 888.00 .0

10-55-516 WORKERS' COMPENSATION .00 .00 326.00 326.00 .0

10-55-517 PERS ON BEHALF .00 .00 18,958.00 18,958.00 .0

10-55-518 PERS 5,104.12 5,104.12 .00 (                5,104.12) .0

10-55-519 UTILITY BENEFIT .00 .00 4,560.00 4,560.00 .0

10-55-561 SUPPLIES 1,336.69 1,336.69 4,500.00 3,163.31 29.7

10-55-602 GASOLINE 222.34 222.34 2,000.00 1,777.66 11.1

10-55-622 TELEPHONE .00 .00 600.00 600.00 .0

10-55-627 STAFF CELLULAR PHONES 1,851.33 1,851.33 5,299.00 3,447.67 34.9

10-55-649 OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 42,189.08 42,189.08 85,000.00 42,810.92 49.6

10-55-661 VEHICLE MAINT/REPAIRS 61.26 61.26 1,519.00 1,457.74 4.0

10-55-667 CONNECTIVITY SERVICES 61,570.05 61,570.05 245,000.00 183,429.95 25.1

10-55-668 SOFTWARE/SUPPORT 4,350.81 4,350.81 50,000.00 45,649.19 8.7

10-55-669 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES 555.00 555.00 .00 (                   555.00) .0

10-55-683 MINOR EQUIPMENT 26,763.06 26,763.06 10,000.00 (              16,763.06) 267.6

10-55-724 DUES & SUBSCRIPTION 10.00 10.00 .00 (                     10.00) .0

10-55-732 EQUIPMENT RENTAL 17,245.50 17,245.50 120,000.00 102,754.50 14.4

10-55-799 MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES 44.25 44.25 1,000.00 955.75 4.4

10-55-875 INDIRECT COST RECOVERY (            122,607.00) (            122,607.00) .00 122,607.00 .0

10-55-996 ADMIN OVERHEAD-IT SVCS 14,466.00 14,466.00 .00 (              14,466.00) .0

TOTAL TECHNOLOGY DEPARTMENTS 79,789.12 79,789.12 662,994.00 583,204.88 12.0

CITY ATTORNEY'S OFFICE

10-56-501 SALARIES 34,169.59 34,169.59 128,000.00 93,830.41 26.7

10-56-508 LEAVE CASHOUT .00 .00 6,400.00 6,400.00 .0

10-56-511 MEDICARE 497.88 497.88 1,856.00 1,358.12 26.8

10-56-512 EMPLOYEE GROUP BENEFITS 6,034.86 6,034.86 25,920.00 19,885.14 23.3

10-56-515 UNEMPLOYMENT .00 .00 888.00 888.00 .0

10-56-516 WORKERS' COMPENSATION .00 .00 484.00 484.00 .0

10-56-517 PERS ON BEHALF .00 .00 28,160.00 28,160.00 .0

10-56-518 PERS 7,517.32 7,517.32 .00 (                7,517.32) .0

10-56-519 UTILITY BENEFIT .00 .00 4,560.00 4,560.00 .0

10-56-545 TRANING/TRAVEL 1,280.91 1,280.91 6,500.00 5,219.09 19.7

10-56-561 SUPPLIES 544.82 544.82 800.00 255.18 68.1

10-56-627 STAFF CELLULAR PHONES 53.15 53.15 .00 (                     53.15) .0

10-56-642 LEGAL FEES 24,608.20 24,608.20 20,000.00 (                4,608.20) 123.0

10-56-669 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES 2,540.38 2,540.38 7,000.00 4,459.62 36.3

10-56-721 INSURANCE .00 .00 700.00 700.00 .0

10-56-724 DUES AND SUBSCRIPTIONS .00 .00 1,500.00 1,500.00 .0

10-56-799 MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE 644.90 644.90 500.00 (                   144.90) 129.0

10-56-875 INDIRECT COST RECOVERY (              12,501.00) (              12,501.00) 50,003.00 62,504.00 (  25.0)

10-56-996 ADMIN OVERHEAD-IT SVCS 3,993.00 3,993.00 .00 (                3,993.00) .0

TOTAL CITY ATTORNEY'S OFFICE 69,384.01 69,384.01 283,271.00 213,886.99 24.5

61



CITY OF BETHEL

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 3 MONTHS ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 25 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  12/05/2017     10:51AM       PAGE: 6

FIRE DEPARTMENT

10-60-501 SALARIES 127,139.24 127,139.24 599,228.00 472,088.76 21.2

10-60-502 FLSA OVERTIME 13,609.89 13,609.89 .00 (              13,609.89) .0

10-60-506 CALL BACK OVERTIME        11,711.84 11,711.84 .00 (              11,711.84) .0

10-60-508 LEAVE CASHOUT .00 .00 19,251.00 19,251.00 .0

10-60-510 SOCIAL SECURITY EXPENSE   311.67 311.67 1,769.00 1,457.33 17.6

10-60-511 MEDICARE FICA             2,339.68 2,339.68 8,689.00 6,349.32 26.9

10-60-512 GROUP HEALTH INSURANCE    40,923.99 40,923.99 207,360.00 166,436.01 19.7

10-60-515 UNEMPLOYMENT              .00 .00 7,100.00 7,100.00 .0

10-60-516 WORKERS' COMPENSATION .00 .00 34,033.00 34,033.00 .0

10-60-517 PERS ON BEHALF .00 .00 131,830.00 131,830.00 .0

10-60-518 PERS                     31,667.63 31,667.63 .00 (              31,667.63) .0

10-60-519 UTILITY BENEFIT           .00 .00 36,480.00 36,480.00 .0

10-60-545 TRAINING/TRAVEL           809.50 809.50 10,750.00 9,940.50 7.5

10-60-561 SUPPLIES 8,725.00 8,725.00 22,500.00 13,775.00 38.8

10-60-563 WEARING APPAREL 1,305.38 1,305.38 8,266.00 6,960.62 15.8

10-60-567 FIRE PREVENTION PROGRAM   1,659.22 1,659.22 5,200.00 3,540.78 31.9

10-60-600 TIRES & WHEELS            1,409.19 1,409.19 3,200.00 1,790.81 44.0

10-60-601 VEHICLE MT. (PARTS & TOOLS) 4,179.18 4,179.18 19,250.00 15,070.82 21.7

10-60-602 GASOLINE/DIESEL/OIL 2,749.98 2,749.98 12,000.00 9,250.02 22.9

10-60-621 ELECTRICITY               3,609.23 3,609.23 12,355.00 8,745.77 29.2

10-60-622 TELEPHONE                 341.47 341.47 6,000.00 5,658.53 5.7

10-60-623 HEATING FUEL 3,708.91 3,708.91 25,000.00 21,291.09 14.8

10-60-626 WATER/SEWER/GARBAGE       2,364.82 2,364.82 6,875.00 4,510.18 34.4

10-60-627 STAFF CELLULAR PHONES 189.91 189.91 .00 (                   189.91) .0

10-60-660 VEHICLE MAINT SERVICES .00 .00 16,440.00 16,440.00 .0

10-60-661 VEHICLE MAINT/REPAIRS     184.78 184.78 10,125.00 9,940.22 1.8

10-60-662 PROPERTY MAINT            130.00 130.00 31,500.00 31,370.00 .4

10-60-669 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES  4,843.94 4,843.94 22,500.00 17,656.06 21.5

10-60-683 MINOR EQUIPMENT           532.44 532.44 5,800.00 5,267.56 9.2

10-60-721 INSURANCE                 .00 .00 16,290.00 16,290.00 .0

10-60-724 DUES/SUBSCRIPTIONS 215.00 215.00 2,965.00 2,750.00 7.3

10-60-727 ADVERTISING               575.00 575.00 1,500.00 925.00 38.3

10-60-799 MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES    .00 .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .0

10-60-996 ADMIN OVERHEAD-IT SVCS 5,592.00 5,592.00 .00 (                5,592.00) .0

TOTAL FIRE DEPARTMENT 270,828.89 270,828.89 1,285,256.00 1,014,427.11 21.1

62



CITY OF BETHEL

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 3 MONTHS ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 25 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  12/05/2017     10:51AM       PAGE: 7

POLICE

10-61-501 SALARIES 313,825.80 313,825.80 1,461,756.00 1,147,930.20 21.5

10-61-502 OVERTIME                  49,114.52 49,114.52 .00 (              49,114.52) .0

10-61-508 LEAVE CASHOUT .00 .00 25,000.00 25,000.00 .0

10-61-511 MEDICARE                  5,444.59 5,444.59 21,195.00 15,750.41 25.7

10-61-512 GROUP HEALTH INSURANCE    93,005.18 93,005.18 518,400.00 425,394.82 17.9

10-61-515 UNEMPLOYMENT              .00 .00 17,751.00 17,751.00 .0

10-61-516 WORKERS' COMPENSATION .00 .00 45,452.00 45,452.00 .0

10-61-517 PERS ON BEHALF .00 .00 321,586.00 321,586.00 .0

10-61-518 PERS                     69,043.23 69,043.23 .00 (              69,043.23) .0

10-61-519 UTILITY BENEFIT           .00 .00 91,200.00 91,200.00 .0

10-61-520 RELOCATION COSTS          3,124.63 3,124.63 7,000.00 3,875.37 44.6

10-61-530 TEMP POLICE OFF RELATED COSTS 93.68 93.68 .00 (                     93.68) .0

10-61-545 TRAINING/TRAVEL 10,754.96 10,754.96 35,000.00 24,245.04 30.7

10-61-561 SUPPLIES                  4,361.23 4,361.23 25,500.00 21,138.77 17.1

10-61-563 EMPLOYEE WEARING APPAREL  6,229.21 6,229.21 21,250.00 15,020.79 29.3

10-61-602 GASOLINE/DIESEL/OIL 5,904.51 5,904.51 47,000.00 41,095.49 12.6

10-61-621 ELECTRICITY               9,211.91 9,211.91 30,000.00 20,788.09 30.7

10-61-622 TELEPHONE                 4,564.87 4,564.87 20,500.00 15,935.13 22.3

10-61-623 HEATING FUEL              1,414.22 1,414.22 25,000.00 23,585.78 5.7

10-61-626 WATER/SEWER/GARBAGE       2,250.34 2,250.34 10,000.00 7,749.66 22.5

10-61-627 STAFF CELLULAR PHONES 446.28 446.28 .00 (                   446.28) .0

10-61-660 VEHICLE MAINT SERVICES 77.35 77.35 5,000.00 4,922.65 1.6

10-61-661 VEHICLE MAINT/REPAIR      1,741.94 1,741.94 20,250.00 18,508.06 8.6

10-61-668 SART EXAMS                3,226.00 3,226.00 7,500.00 4,274.00 43.0

10-61-669 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES  4,781.72 4,781.72 25,000.00 20,218.28 19.1

10-61-683 MINOR EQUIPMENT           9,846.97 9,846.97 42,500.00 32,653.03 23.2

10-61-695 VEHICLE - REPLACEMENT     1,000.00 1,000.00 .00 (                1,000.00) .0

10-61-721 INSURANCE                 .00 .00 85,000.00 85,000.00 .0

10-61-722 INSURANCE-DED EXP & OTHER 10.00 10.00 20,000.00 19,990.00 .1

10-61-724 DUES/SUBSCRIPTIONS 140.00 140.00 .00 (                   140.00) .0

10-61-996 ADMIN OVERHEAD-IT SVCS 16,569.00 16,569.00 .00 (              16,569.00) .0

TOTAL POLICE 616,182.14 616,182.14 2,928,840.00 2,312,657.86 21.0

63



CITY OF BETHEL

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 3 MONTHS ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 25 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  12/05/2017     10:51AM       PAGE: 8

PUBLIC WORKS-ADMIN

10-65-501 SALARIES                  18,970.60 18,970.60 67,609.00 48,638.40 28.1

10-65-502 OVERTIME                  522.04 522.04 .00 (                   522.04) .0

10-65-508 LEAVE CASHOUT .00 .00 2,413.00 2,413.00 .0

10-65-511 MEDICARE FICA             289.61 289.61 980.00 690.39 29.6

10-65-512 EMPLOYEE GROUP BENEFITS   4,552.79 4,552.79 29,808.00 25,255.21 15.3

10-65-515 UNEMPLOYMENT              .00 .00 1,021.00 1,021.00 .0

10-65-516 WORKERS' COMPENSATION .00 .00 256.00 256.00 .0

10-65-518 PERS                     4,288.36 4,288.36 14,874.00 10,585.64 28.8

10-65-519 UTILITY BENEFIT           .00 .00 5,244.00 5,244.00 .0

10-65-521 HOUSING (                     99.00) (                     99.00) .00 99.00 .0

10-65-545 TRAINING/TRAVEL           5,701.77 5,701.77 5,000.00 (                   701.77) 114.0

10-65-561 SUPPLIES                  349.34 349.34 2,500.00 2,150.66 14.0

10-65-602 GASOLINE/DIESEL/OIL 85.63 85.63 6,500.00 6,414.37 1.3

10-65-621 ELECTRICITY               206.62 206.62 1,810.00 1,603.38 11.4

10-65-622 TELEPHONE                 31.30 31.30 3,750.00 3,718.70 .8

10-65-623 HEATING FUEL              .00 .00 8,000.00 8,000.00 .0

10-65-626 WATER/SEWER/GARBAGE       319.48 319.48 1,233.00 913.52 25.9

10-65-627 STAFF CELLULAR PHONES 45.60 45.60 .00 (                     45.60) .0

10-65-661 VEHICLE MAINT/REPAIRS     .00 .00 3,037.00 3,037.00 .0

10-65-669 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES  150.87 150.87 .00 (                   150.87) .0

10-65-683 MINOR EQUIPMENT           89.89 89.89 .00 (                     89.89) .0

10-65-721 INSURANCE                 .00 .00 4,860.00 4,860.00 .0

10-65-724 DUES/SUBSCRIPTIONS 10.00 10.00 500.00 490.00 2.0

10-65-799 MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES    .00 .00 500.00 500.00 .0

10-65-996 ADMIN OVERHEAD-IT SVCS 4,563.00 4,563.00 .00 (                4,563.00) .0

TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS-ADMIN 40,077.90 40,077.90 159,895.00 119,817.10 25.1

64



CITY OF BETHEL

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 3 MONTHS ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 25 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  12/05/2017     10:51AM       PAGE: 9

PW-STREETS & ROADS

10-66-501 SALARIES                  102,066.75 102,066.75 383,756.00 281,689.25 26.6

10-66-502 OVERTIME                  3,090.42 3,090.42 .00 (                3,090.42) .0

10-66-508 LEAVE CASHOUT .00 .00 18,915.00 18,915.00 .0

10-66-511 MEDICARE FICA             1,588.53 1,588.53 5,564.00 3,975.47 28.6

10-66-512 EMPLOYEE GROUP BENEFITS   29,748.65 29,748.65 137,376.00 107,627.35 21.7

10-66-515 UNEMPLOYMENT              .00 .00 4,745.00 4,745.00 .0

10-66-516 WORKERS' COMPENSATION .00 .00 16,181.00 16,181.00 .0

10-66-517 PERS ON BEHALF .00 .00 84,426.00 84,426.00 .0

10-66-518 PERS                     21,541.54 21,541.54 .00 (              21,541.54) .0

10-66-519 UTILITY BENEFIT           .00 .00 24,168.00 24,168.00 .0

10-66-545 TRAINING/TRAVEL           .00 .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .0

10-66-561 SUPPLIES 53.17 53.17 1,000.00 946.83 5.3

10-66-562 SIGNS .00 .00 2,800.00 2,800.00 .0

10-66-563 WEARING APPAREL .00 .00 1,500.00 1,500.00 .0

10-66-567 CALCIUM CHLORIDE .00 .00 50,000.00 50,000.00 .0

10-66-576 SALT .00 .00 50,000.00 50,000.00 .0

10-66-600 TIRES & WHEELS            4,375.32 4,375.32 18,000.00 13,624.68 24.3

10-66-601 VEHICLE PARTS             817.26 817.26 500.00 (                   317.26) 163.5

10-66-602 GASOLINE/DIESEL/OIL       25,220.99 25,220.99 60,000.00 34,779.01 42.0

10-66-620 ELECTRICITY (STREET LTS) 5,603.36 5,603.36 50,000.00 44,396.64 11.2

10-66-621 ELECTRICITY               235.82 235.82 2,500.00 2,264.18 9.4

10-66-622 TELEPHONE                 8.54 8.54 650.00 641.46 1.3

10-66-623 HEATING FUEL              .00 .00 10,000.00 10,000.00 .0

10-66-626 WATER/SEWER/GARB/         878.62 878.62 4,500.00 3,621.38 19.5

10-66-627 STAFF CELLULAR PHONES 91.20 91.20 .00 (                     91.20) .0

10-66-647 STREET LIGHT MT & POLE RENTAL .00 .00 19,000.00 19,000.00 .0

10-66-661 VEHICLE MAINT/REPAIR      25,263.50 25,263.50 151,872.00 126,608.50 16.6

10-66-669 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES  741.70 741.70 1,500.00 758.30 49.5

10-66-683 MINOR EQUIPMENT           1,244.78 1,244.78 3,000.00 1,755.22 41.5

10-66-721 INSURANCE                 .00 .00 19,400.00 19,400.00 .0

10-66-724 DUES/SUBSCRIPTIONS        80.00 80.00 .00 (                     80.00) .0

10-66-727 ADVERTISING               .00 .00 200.00 200.00 .0

10-66-771 GRAVEL (WAS #578)  144,247.80 144,247.80 144,000.00 (                   247.80) 100.2

10-66-772 CULVERTS 18"         18,322.09 18,322.09 18,000.00 (                   322.09) 101.8

10-66-773 RIDGECREST DRIVE .00 .00 254,000.00 254,000.00 .0

10-66-799 MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES    .00 .00 500.00 500.00 .0

10-66-996 ADMIN OVERHEAD-IT SVCS 3,993.00 3,993.00 .00 (                3,993.00) .0

TOTAL PW-STREETS & ROADS 389,213.04 389,213.04 1,539,053.00 1,149,839.96 25.3

65



CITY OF BETHEL

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 3 MONTHS ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 25 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  12/05/2017     10:51AM       PAGE: 10

PROPERTY MAINTENANCE

10-70-501 SALARIES                  64,147.13 64,147.13 347,040.00 282,892.87 18.5

10-70-502 OVERTIME                  3,997.91 3,997.91 .00 (                3,997.91) .0

10-70-508 LEAVE CASHOUT .00 .00 14,792.00 14,792.00 .0

10-70-510 SOCIAL SECURITY EXPENSE   .00 .00 1,596.00 1,596.00 .0

10-70-511 MEDICARE FICA             1,040.01 1,040.01 5,032.00 3,991.99 20.7

10-70-512 EMPLOYEE GROUP BENEFITS   28,407.61 28,407.61 130,896.00 102,488.39 21.7

10-70-515 UNEMPLOYMENT              .00 .00 4,480.00 4,480.00 .0

10-70-516 WORKERS' COMPENSATION .00 .00 15,690.00 15,690.00 .0

10-70-517 PERS ON BEHALF .00 .00 70,685.00 70,685.00 .0

10-70-518 PERS                     13,137.46 13,137.46 .00 (              13,137.46) .0

10-70-519 UTILITY BENEFIT           .00 .00 23,028.00 23,028.00 .0

10-70-545 TRAINING/TRAVEL           107.95 107.95 3,000.00 2,892.05 3.6

10-70-561 SUPPLIES                  4,590.64 4,590.64 1,000.00 (                3,590.64) 459.1

10-70-562 MATERIALS                 1,364.35 1,364.35 1,000.00 (                   364.35) 136.4

10-70-563 WEARING APPAREL           .00 .00 2,000.00 2,000.00 .0

10-70-580 BOILER EXPENSE            2,633.95 2,633.95 15,000.00 12,366.05 17.6

10-70-590 GLYCOL SUPPLIES           .00 .00 6,000.00 6,000.00 .0

10-70-591 CARPENTRY EXPENSE         35.97 35.97 10,000.00 9,964.03 .4

10-70-592 PLUMBING SUPPLIES         .00 .00 8,000.00 8,000.00 .0

10-70-593 ELECTRICAL SUPPLIES       151.80 151.80 27,500.00 27,348.20 .6

10-70-594 PAINT SUPPLIES            .00 .00 2,500.00 2,500.00 .0

10-70-595 BOARDWALK REPAIR SUPPLIES .00 .00 3,000.00 3,000.00 .0

10-70-602 GASOLINE/DIESEL/OIL 1,171.13 1,171.13 12,000.00 10,828.87 9.8

10-70-621 ELECTRICITY               1,469.68 1,469.68 12,000.00 10,530.32 12.3

10-70-622 TELEPHONE                 8.54 8.54 .00 (                       8.54) .0

10-70-623 HEATING FUEL              .00 .00 40,000.00 40,000.00 .0

10-70-626 WATER/SEWER/GARB     600.23 600.23 17,400.00 16,799.77 3.5

10-70-627 STAFF CELLULAR PHONES 98.76 98.76 .00 (                     98.76) .0

10-70-661 VEHICLE MAINT/REPAIR      177.85 177.85 6,075.00 5,897.15 2.9

10-70-662 WIND TURBINE CONTRACT .00 .00 5,300.00 5,300.00 .0

10-70-669 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES  519.14 519.14 45,000.00 44,480.86 1.2

10-70-683 MINOR EQUIPMENT           6,033.64 6,033.64 5,000.00 (                1,033.64) 120.7

10-70-721 INSURANCE                 .00 .00 8,550.00 8,550.00 .0

10-70-724 DUES/SUBSCRIPTIONS        10.00 10.00 .00 (                     10.00) .0

10-70-776 CITY SHOP GENERATOR INSTALL .00 .00 2,000.00 2,000.00 .0

10-70-996 ADMIN OVERHEAD-IT SVCS 8,217.00 8,217.00 .00 (                8,217.00) .0

TOTAL PROPERTY MAINTENANCE 137,920.75 137,920.75 845,564.00 707,643.25 16.3

66



CITY OF BETHEL

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 3 MONTHS ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 25 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  12/05/2017     10:51AM       PAGE: 11

PARKS & REC/BYC

10-71-501 SALARIES                  9,531.60 9,531.60 .00 (                9,531.60) .0

10-71-502 OVERTIME                  332.88 332.88 .00 (                   332.88) .0

10-71-511 MEDICARE FICA             145.70 145.70 .00 (                   145.70) .0

10-71-512 EMPLOYEE GROUP BENEFITS   2,109.49 2,109.49 .00 (                2,109.49) .0

10-71-518 PERS                     1,244.98 1,244.98 .00 (                1,244.98) .0

10-71-602 GASOLINE/DIESEL/OIL 180.43 180.43 .00 (                   180.43) .0

10-71-621 ELECTRICITY 1,277.53 1,277.53 .00 (                1,277.53) .0

10-71-622 TELEPHONE                 43.10 43.10 .00 (                     43.10) .0

10-71-623 HEATING FUEL              618.10 618.10 .00 (                   618.10) .0

10-71-624 WATER/SEWER/GARB          4,607.27 4,607.27 .00 (                4,607.27) .0

TOTAL PARKS & REC/BYC 20,091.08 20,091.08 .00 (              20,091.08) .0

COMMUNITY SERVICE

10-72-745 LIBRARY CONTRIBUTION      5,000.00 5,000.00 55,700.00 50,700.00 9.0

10-72-798 UAF 4-H CONTRIBUTION .00 .00 112,000.00 112,000.00 .0

TOTAL COMMUNITY SERVICE 5,000.00 5,000.00 167,700.00 162,700.00 3.0

IN KIND MATCH & TRANFERS

10-73-550 CASH XFER-REC CENTER (F40) .00 .00 562,999.00 562,999.00 .0

10-73-622 CASH XFER- FUND .00 .00 80,580.00 80,580.00 .0

TOTAL IN KIND MATCH & TRANFERS .00 .00 643,579.00 643,579.00 .0

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 1,949,046.47 1,949,046.47 9,979,281.00 8,030,234.53 19.5

67



CITY OF BETHEL

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 3 MONTHS ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

SOA LED STREETLIGHTS GRANT

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 25 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  12/05/2017     10:51AM       PAGE: 12

FY12 LED STREETLIGHTS GRANT

23-50-683 MINOR EQUIPMENT 24,637.85 24,637.85 .00 (              24,637.85) .0

TOTAL FY12 LED STREETLIGHTS GRANT 24,637.85 24,637.85 .00 (              24,637.85) .0

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 24,637.85 24,637.85 .00 (              24,637.85) .0

68



CITY OF BETHEL

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 3 MONTHS ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

LAND PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 25 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  12/05/2017     10:51AM       PAGE: 13

DEPARTMENT 50

25-50-669 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES  .00 .00 21,173.00 21,173.00 .0

TOTAL DEPARTMENT 50 .00 .00 21,173.00 21,173.00 .0

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES .00 .00 21,173.00 21,173.00 .0

69



CITY OF BETHEL

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 3 MONTHS ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

PARKS DEVELOPMENT FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 25 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  12/05/2017     10:51AM       PAGE: 14

PARKS DEVELOPMENT

26-50-694 BIKE/WALKING PATHS .00 .00 20,552.00 20,552.00 .0

TOTAL PARKS DEVELOPMENT .00 .00 20,552.00 20,552.00 .0

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES .00 .00 20,552.00 20,552.00 .0

70



CITY OF BETHEL

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 3 MONTHS ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

COMMUNITY SERVICE PATROL GRANT

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 25 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  12/05/2017     10:51AM       PAGE: 15

CSP PROGRAM

27-50-501 SALARIES                  29,558.42 29,558.42 152,790.00 123,231.58 19.4

27-50-502 OVERTIME                  1,622.98 1,622.98 .00 (                1,622.98) .0

27-50-508 LEAVE CASHOUT .00 .00 6,924.00 6,924.00 .0

27-50-511 MEDICARE FICA             463.36 463.36 2,215.00 1,751.64 20.9

27-50-512 EMPLOYEE GROUP BENEFITS   6,205.81 6,205.81 77,760.00 71,554.19 8.0

27-50-515 UNEMPLOYMENT              .00 .00 2,663.00 2,663.00 .0

27-50-516 WORKMEN'S COMP            .00 .00 4,751.00 4,751.00 .0

27-50-518 PERS                     6,859.92 6,859.92 33,614.00 26,754.08 20.4

27-50-519 UTILITY BENEFIT           .00 .00 13,680.00 13,680.00 .0

27-50-563 WEARING APPAREL .00 .00 813.00 813.00 .0

27-50-570 IN-KIND EXPENSES 4,421.00 4,421.00 .00 (                4,421.00) .0

27-50-602 GASOLINE / DIESEL / OIL 93.19 93.19 9,000.00 8,906.81 1.0

27-50-683 MINOR EQUIPMENT           .00 .00 6,000.00 6,000.00 .0

27-50-721 INSURANCE                 .00 .00 9,412.00 9,412.00 .0

TOTAL CSP PROGRAM 49,224.68 49,224.68 319,622.00 270,397.32 15.4

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 49,224.68 49,224.68 319,622.00 270,397.32 15.4

71



CITY OF BETHEL

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 3 MONTHS ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

YK REG AQUA HLTH & SAFETY CTR

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 25 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  12/05/2017     10:52AM       PAGE: 16

LOCAL FUNDED EXPENDITURES

40-50-602 GASOLINE/OIL/DIESEL 39.67 39.67 7,500.00 7,460.33 .5

40-50-621 ELECTRICITY 23,382.77 23,382.77 192,000.00 168,617.23 12.2

40-50-622 TELEPHONE 313.06 313.06 .00 (                   313.06) .0

40-50-623 HEATING FUEL 26,695.56 26,695.56 400,000.00 373,304.44 6.7

40-50-624 WATER/SEWER/GARBAGE 11,755.34 11,755.34 152,700.00 140,944.66 7.7

40-50-646 CONTRACTOR'S FEES         .00 .00 1,825,068.00 1,825,068.00 .0

40-50-649 PROFESSIONAL SVS   .00 .00 280,000.00 280,000.00 .0

40-50-669 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES  .00 .00 50,320.00 50,320.00 .0

40-50-721 INSURANCE                 .00 .00 52,000.00 52,000.00 .0

40-50-996 ADMIN OVERHEAD-IT SVCS 2,691.00 2,691.00 21,540.00 18,849.00 12.5

40-50-998 ADMINISTRATIVE OVERHEAD-GF 6,807.00 6,807.00 51,742.00 44,935.00 13.2

TOTAL LOCAL FUNDED EXPENDITURES 71,684.40 71,684.40 3,032,870.00 2,961,185.60 2.4

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 71,684.40 71,684.40 3,032,870.00 2,961,185.60 2.4

72



CITY OF BETHEL

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 3 MONTHS ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

E-911 SYSTEM/SURCHARGE

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 25 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  12/05/2017     10:52AM       PAGE: 17

E-911 SERVICES

41-50-501 SALARIES                  34,453.16 34,453.16 46,160.00 11,706.84 74.6

41-50-502 OVERTIME             7,437.40 7,437.40 .00 (                7,437.40) .0

41-50-508 LEAVE CASHOUT .00 .00 2,308.00 2,308.00 .0

41-50-511 MEDICARE FICA             628.84 628.84 669.00 40.16 94.0

41-50-512 EMPLOYEE GROUP BENEFITS   13,660.97 13,660.97 25,920.00 12,259.03 52.7

41-50-515 UNEMPLOYMENT              .00 .00 888.00 888.00 .0

41-50-516 WORKERS' COMPENSATION .00 .00 175.00 175.00 .0

41-50-518 PERS                     8,403.45 8,403.45 10,155.00 1,751.55 82.8

41-50-519 UTILITY BENEFIT           .00 .00 4,560.00 4,560.00 .0

41-50-622 911 PHONE LINES              403.22 403.22 .00 (                   403.22) .0

41-50-627 STAFF CELLULAR PHONES 45.60 45.60 .00 (                     45.60) .0

41-50-649 OTHER PROFESSIONAL SRVS   34,346.95 34,346.95 35,500.00 1,153.05 96.8

41-50-669 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES .00 .00 5,000.00 5,000.00 .0

41-50-721 INSURANCE                 .00 .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .0

41-50-732 RENTS & LEASES 1,200.00 1,200.00 4,800.00 3,600.00 25.0

TOTAL E-911 SERVICES 100,579.59 100,579.59 137,135.00 36,555.41 73.3

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 100,579.59 100,579.59 137,135.00 36,555.41 73.3

73



CITY OF BETHEL

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 3 MONTHS ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

SOA SEWAGE LAGOON

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 25 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  12/05/2017     10:52AM       PAGE: 18

SEWAGE LAGOON

42-50-501 SALARIES                  347.03 347.03 .00 (                   347.03) .0

42-50-511 MEDICARE FICA             5.03 5.03 .00 (                       5.03) .0

42-50-512 EMPLOYEE GROUP BENEFITS 98.67 98.67 .00 (                     98.67) .0

42-50-518 PERS 71.75 71.75 .00 (                     71.75) .0

42-50-648 ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS 180,400.00 180,400.00 .00 (            180,400.00) .0

TOTAL SEWAGE LAGOON 180,922.48 180,922.48 .00 (            180,922.48) .0

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 180,922.48 180,922.48 .00 (            180,922.48) .0

74



CITY OF BETHEL

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 3 MONTHS ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

INSTITUTIONAL CORRIDOR PROJECT

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 25 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  12/05/2017     10:52AM       PAGE: 19

INSTITUTIONAL CORRIDOR PROJECT

45-50-501 SALARIES 352.05 352.05 .00 (                   352.05) .0

45-50-502 OVERTIME 38.88 38.88 .00 (                     38.88) .0

45-50-511 MEDICARE FICA 6.06 6.06 .00 (                       6.06) .0

45-50-512 EMPLOYEE GROUP BENEFITS 175.46 175.46 .00 (                   175.46) .0

45-50-518 PERS 84.35 84.35 .00 (                     84.35) .0

45-50-642 LEGAL FEES (                     84.00) (                     84.00) .00 84.00 .0

45-50-643 ENGINEERING FEES 14,855.49 14,855.49 .00 (              14,855.49) .0

TOTAL INSTITUTIONAL CORRIDOR PROJECT 15,428.29 15,428.29 .00 (              15,428.29) .0

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 15,428.29 15,428.29 .00 (              15,428.29) .0

75



CITY OF BETHEL

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 3 MONTHS ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING-CAP PRJ

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 25 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  12/05/2017     10:52AM       PAGE: 20

SOA NEW PD STATION GRANT

46-50-683 MINOR EQUIPMENT 2,310.00 2,310.00 .00 (                2,310.00) .0

TOTAL SOA NEW PD STATION GRANT 2,310.00 2,310.00 .00 (                2,310.00) .0

SOA POLICE DISPATCH SYS GRANT

46-51-501 SALARIES 113.20 113.20 .00 (                   113.20) .0

46-51-511 MEDICARE FICA 1.62 1.62 .00 (                       1.62) .0

46-51-512 EMPLOYEE GROUP BENEFITS 32.57 32.57 .00 (                     32.57) .0

46-51-518 PERS 21.77 21.77 .00 (                     21.77) .0

46-51-691 NEW PD DISPATCH SYSTEM (                   638.32) (                   638.32) .00 638.32 .0

TOTAL SOA POLICE DISPATCH SYS GRANT (                   469.16) (                   469.16) .00 469.16 .0

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 1,840.84 1,840.84 .00 (                1,840.84) .0

76



CITY OF BETHEL

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 3 MONTHS ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

PORT OFFICE CP FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 25 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  12/05/2017     10:52AM       PAGE: 21

PORT OFFICE EXPENDITURES

47-50-690 CAPITAL EXPENSES 388,382.65 388,382.65 1,382,679.00 994,296.35 28.1

TOTAL PORT OFFICE EXPENDITURES 388,382.65 388,382.65 1,382,679.00 994,296.35 28.1

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 388,382.65 388,382.65 1,382,679.00 994,296.35 28.1

77



CITY OF BETHEL

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 3 MONTHS ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

SOLID WASTE SERVICES

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 25 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  12/05/2017     10:52AM       PAGE: 22

HAULED REFUSE

50-70-501 SALARIES                  26,020.20 26,020.20 117,205.00 91,184.80 22.2

50-70-502 OVERTIME                  952.23 952.23 .00 (                   952.23) .0

50-70-508 LEAVE CASHOUT .00 .00 5,088.00 5,088.00 .0

50-70-511 MEDICARE FICA 397.75 397.75 1,699.00 1,301.25 23.4

50-70-512 EMPLOYEE GROUP BENEFITS   7,153.16 7,153.16 42,768.00 35,614.84 16.7

50-70-515 UNEMPLOYMENT              .00 .00 2,011.00 2,011.00 .0

50-70-516 WORKERS' COMPENSATION .00 .00 8,175.00 8,175.00 .0

50-70-517 PERS ON BEHALF .00 .00 25,785.00 25,785.00 .0

50-70-518 PERS                     5,933.91 5,933.91 .00 (                5,933.91) .0

50-70-519 UTILITY BENEFIT           .00 .00 7,524.00 7,524.00 .0

50-70-545 TRAINING/TRAVEL           .00 .00 500.00 500.00 .0

50-70-561 SUPPLIES                  302.93 302.93 500.00 197.07 60.6

50-70-563 WEARING APPAREL 239.52 239.52 600.00 360.48 39.9

50-70-600 TIRES & WHEELS            6,185.88 6,185.88 8,000.00 1,814.12 77.3

50-70-602 GASOLINE / DIESEL / OIL 5,437.65 5,437.65 18,000.00 12,562.35 30.2

50-70-661 VEHICLE MAINT/REPAIRS     .00 .00 75,936.00 75,936.00 .0

50-70-669 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES 27.99 27.99 3,000.00 2,972.01 .9

50-70-683 MINOR EQUIPMENT           8,850.00 8,850.00 40,000.00 31,150.00 22.1

50-70-721 INSURANCE                 .00 .00 8,700.00 8,700.00 .0

50-70-724 DUES & SUBSCRIPTION       30.00 30.00 .00 (                     30.00) .0

50-70-738 BAD DEBTS EXPENSE          .00 .00 3,000.00 3,000.00 .0

50-70-799 MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES    .00 .00 800.00 800.00 .0

50-70-997 ADMIN OVERHEAD-UTIL BILLING .00 .00 31,898.00 31,898.00 .0

50-70-998 ADMINISTRATIVE OVERHEAD-GF 9,924.00 9,924.00 37,722.00 27,798.00 26.3

TOTAL HAULED REFUSE 71,455.22 71,455.22 438,911.00 367,455.78 16.3

78



CITY OF BETHEL

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 3 MONTHS ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

SOLID WASTE SERVICES

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 25 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  12/05/2017     10:52AM       PAGE: 23

LANDFILL OPERATIONS

50-71-501 SALARIES                  35,603.19 35,603.19 144,599.00 108,995.81 24.6

50-71-502 OVERTIME                  672.53 672.53 .00 (                   672.53) .0

50-71-508 LEAVE CASHOUT .00 .00 6,457.00 6,457.00 .0

50-71-511 MEDICARE FICA             532.33 532.33 2,097.00 1,564.67 25.4

50-71-512 EMPLOYEE GROUP BENEFITS   11,065.15 11,065.15 58,320.00 47,254.85 19.0

50-71-515 UNEMPLOYMENT              .00 .00 1,728.00 1,728.00 .0

50-71-516 WORKERS' COMPENSATION .00 .00 4,976.00 4,976.00 .0

50-71-517 PERS ON BEHALF .00 .00 31,812.00 31,812.00 .0

50-71-518 PERS                     7,980.62 7,980.62 .00 (                7,980.62) .0

50-71-519 UTILITY BENEFIT           .00 .00 10,260.00 10,260.00 .0

50-71-545 TRAINING/TRAVEL           (                   975.00) (                   975.00) 3,000.00 3,975.00 (  32.5)

50-71-561 SUPPLIES                  934.35 934.35 2,000.00 1,065.65 46.7

50-71-563 WEARING APPAREL 441.32 441.32 1,000.00 558.68 44.1

50-71-600 TIRES & WHEELS            7,679.00 7,679.00 .00 (                7,679.00) .0

50-71-601 VEHICLE PARTS 1,005.85 1,005.85 .00 (                1,005.85) .0

50-71-602 GASOLINE / DIESEL / OIL 3,586.08 3,586.08 25,000.00 21,413.92 14.3

50-71-621 ELECTRICITY              263.25 263.25 2,000.00 1,736.75 13.2

50-71-622 TELEPHONE                 .00 .00 2,000.00 2,000.00 .0

50-71-623 HEATING FUEL              .00 .00 3,000.00 3,000.00 .0

50-71-627 STAFF CELLULAR PHONES 45.60 45.60 .00 (                     45.60) .0

50-71-649 ENGINEERING SERVICES .00 .00 60,000.00 60,000.00 .0

50-71-650 LAB TESTS .00 .00 12,000.00 12,000.00 .0

50-71-661 VEHICLE MAINT/REPAIRS     4,931.18 4,931.18 75,396.00 70,464.82 6.5

50-71-669 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES 84.90 84.90 1,000.00 915.10 8.5

50-71-683 MINOR EQUIPMENT           146.59 146.59 5,000.00 4,853.41 2.9

50-71-721 INSURANCE                 .00 .00 3,900.00 3,900.00 .0

50-71-724 DUES & SUBSCRIPTION       10.00 10.00 .00 (                     10.00) .0

50-71-727 ADVERTISING               .00 .00 250.00 250.00 .0

50-71-738 BAD DEBT EXPENSE          .00 .00 500.00 500.00 .0

50-71-799 MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES    100.00 100.00 .00 (                   100.00) .0

50-71-996 ADMIN OVERHEAD-IT SVCS 4,296.00 4,296.00 .00 (                4,296.00) .0

50-71-998 ADMINISTRATIVE OVERHEAD-GF 12,282.00 12,282.00 46,691.00 34,409.00 26.3

TOTAL LANDFILL OPERATIONS 90,684.94 90,684.94 502,986.00 412,301.06 18.0

RECYCLING OPERATIONS

50-72-621 ELECTRICITY               85.49 85.49 .00 (                     85.49) .0

TOTAL RECYCLING OPERATIONS 85.49 85.49 .00 (                     85.49) .0

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 162,225.65 162,225.65 941,897.00 779,671.35 17.2

79



CITY OF BETHEL

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 3 MONTHS ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

WATER & SEWER SERVICES

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 25 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  12/05/2017     10:52AM       PAGE: 24

UTILITY BILLING

51-80-501 SALARIES                  22,149.55 22,149.55 82,158.00 60,008.45 27.0

51-80-502 OVERTIME             356.92 356.92 2,000.00 1,643.08 17.9

51-80-508 LEAVE CASHOUT .00 .00 4,108.00 4,108.00 .0

51-80-511 MEDICARE FICA             332.76 332.76 1,220.00 887.24 27.3

51-80-512 GROUP HEALTH INSURANCE    11,074.82 11,074.82 45,360.00 34,285.18 24.4

51-80-515 UNEMPLOYMENT              .00 .00 1,585.00 1,585.00 .0

51-80-516 WORKERS' COMPENSATION .00 .00 318.00 318.00 .0

51-80-517 PERS ON BEHALF .00 .00 18,515.00 18,515.00 .0

51-80-518 PERS                     4,951.43 4,951.43 .00 (                4,951.43) .0

51-80-519 UTILITY BENEFIT           .00 .00 7,980.00 7,980.00 .0

51-80-545 TRAINING/TRAVEL           .00 .00 3,500.00 3,500.00 .0

51-80-561 SUPPLIES .00 .00 6,000.00 6,000.00 .0

51-80-649 ONLINE BILL PAY 673.40 673.40 3,000.00 2,326.60 22.5

51-80-721 INSURANCE                 .00 .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .0

51-80-727 ADVERTISING               .00 .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .0

51-80-733 POSTAGE                   .00 .00 6,000.00 6,000.00 .0

51-80-736 BANK CHARGES              9,901.96 9,901.96 36,500.00 26,598.04 27.1

51-80-799 MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES    .00 .00 500.00 500.00 .0

51-80-996 ADMIN OVERHEAD-IT SVCS 4,140.00 4,140.00 16,566.00 12,426.00 25.0

51-80-998 ADMINISTRATIVE OVERHEAD-GF 7,704.00 7,704.00 29,287.00 21,583.00 26.3

TOTAL UTILITY BILLING 61,284.84 61,284.84 266,597.00 205,312.16 23.0

80



CITY OF BETHEL

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 3 MONTHS ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

WATER & SEWER SERVICES

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 25 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  12/05/2017     10:52AM       PAGE: 25

HAULED WATER

51-81-501 SALARIES                  103,689.89 103,689.89 486,344.00 382,654.11 21.3

51-81-502 OVERTIME                  27,287.70 27,287.70 .00 (              27,287.70) .0

51-81-508 LEAVE CASHOUT .00 .00 20,495.00 20,495.00 .0

51-81-511 MEDICARE                  2,000.18 2,000.18 7,052.00 5,051.82 28.4

51-81-512 EMPLOYEE GROUP BENEFITS   51,812.85 51,812.85 224,856.00 173,043.15 23.0

51-81-515 UNEMPLOYMENT              .00 .00 7,925.00 7,925.00 .0

51-81-516 WORKERS' COMPENSATION .00 .00 14,359.00 14,359.00 .0

51-81-517 PERS ON BEHALF .00 .00 106,996.00 106,996.00 .0

51-81-518 PERS                     28,815.05 28,815.05 .00 (              28,815.05) .0

51-81-519 UTILITY BENEFIT           .00 .00 39,558.00 39,558.00 .0

51-81-545 TRAINING/TRAVEL           1,919.51 1,919.51 4,000.00 2,080.49 48.0

51-81-561 SUPPLIES                  1,437.36 1,437.36 5,525.00 4,087.64 26.0

51-81-563 WEARING APPAREL           730.40 730.40 12,000.00 11,269.60 6.1

51-81-600 TIRES                    4,454.30 4,454.30 15,000.00 10,545.70 29.7

51-81-601 VEHICLE PARTS             2,457.92 2,457.92 5,000.00 2,542.08 49.2

51-81-602 GASOLINE/DIESEL/OIL       32,370.03 32,370.03 110,000.00 77,629.97 29.4

51-81-621 ELECTRICITY               1,178.56 1,178.56 10,000.00 8,821.44 11.8

51-81-622 TELEPHONE 8.54 8.54 600.00 591.46 1.4

51-81-623 HEATING FUEL              .00 .00 30,000.00 30,000.00 .0

51-81-626 WATER/SEWER/GARB/         2,096.48 2,096.48 8,200.00 6,103.52 25.6

51-81-627 STAFF CELLULAR PHONES 74.15 74.15 .00 (                     74.15) .0

51-81-650 LAB TESTS 50.00 50.00 2,000.00 1,950.00 2.5

51-81-661 VEHICLE MAINT/REPAIR 17,123.10 17,123.10 313,869.00 296,745.90 5.5

51-81-669 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES  1,800.00 1,800.00 .00 (                1,800.00) .0

51-81-683 MINOR EQUIPMENT           482.10 482.10 2,000.00 1,517.90 24.1

51-81-721 INSURANCE                 .00 .00 21,000.00 21,000.00 .0

51-81-722 INSURANCE-DED EXP & OTHER .00 .00 10,000.00 10,000.00 .0

51-81-724 DUES/SUBSCRIPTIONS        75.00 75.00 .00 (                     75.00) .0

51-81-738 BAD DEBT EXPENSE          .00 .00 9,000.00 9,000.00 .0

51-81-799 MISCELLANEOUS             486.95 486.95 1,000.00 513.05 48.7

51-81-996 ADMIN OVERHEAD-IT SVCS 3,840.00 3,840.00 15,359.00 11,519.00 25.0

51-81-998 ADMINISTRATIVE OVERHEAD-GF 42,834.00 42,834.00 162,827.00 119,993.00 26.3

TOTAL HAULED WATER 327,024.07 327,024.07 1,644,965.00 1,317,940.93 19.9

81



CITY OF BETHEL

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 3 MONTHS ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

WATER & SEWER SERVICES

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 25 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  12/05/2017     10:52AM       PAGE: 26

PIPED WATER

51-82-501 SALARIES                  31,114.91 31,114.91 178,030.00 146,915.09 17.5

51-82-502 OVERTIME                  6,232.19 6,232.19 .00 (                6,232.19) .0

51-82-508 LEAVE CASHOUT .00 .00 6,819.00 6,819.00 .0

51-82-511 MEDICARE                  570.57 570.57 2,581.00 2,010.43 22.1

51-82-512 EMPLOYEE GROUP BENEFITS   13,347.89 13,347.89 55,728.00 42,380.11 24.0

51-82-515 UNEMPLOYMENT              .00 .00 3,970.00 3,970.00 .0

51-82-516 WORKERS' COMPENSATION .00 .00 5,256.00 5,256.00 .0

51-82-517 PERS ON BEHALF .00 .00 39,167.00 39,167.00 .0

51-82-518 PERS                     8,216.35 8,216.35 .00 (                8,216.35) .0

51-82-519 UTILITY BENEFIT           .00 .00 9,804.00 9,804.00 .0

51-82-545 TRAINING/TRAVEL           .00 .00 2,500.00 2,500.00 .0

51-82-561 SUPPLIES                  433.55 433.55 4,525.00 4,091.45 9.6

51-82-563 WEARING APPAREL           .00 .00 2,000.00 2,000.00 .0

51-82-592 PLUMBING SUPPLIES         .00 .00 5,000.00 5,000.00 .0

51-82-602 GASOLINE/DIESEL/OIL       2,059.75 2,059.75 20,000.00 17,940.25 10.3

51-82-621 ELECTRICITY-UTIL MT SHOP  935.22 935.22 7,500.00 6,564.78 12.5

51-82-622 TELEPHONE                 17.08 17.08 2,750.00 2,732.92 .6

51-82-623 HEATING FUEL              744.03 744.03 20,000.00 19,255.97 3.7

51-82-626 WATER/SEWER/GARB    123.90 123.90 600.00 476.10 20.7

51-82-627 STAFF CELLULAR PHONES 97.07 97.07 .00 (                     97.07) .0

51-82-649 ENGINEERING SERVICES .00 .00 3,000.00 3,000.00 .0

51-82-661 VEHICLE MAINT/REPAIR      137.87 137.87 3,037.00 2,899.13 4.5

51-82-669 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES  .00 .00 2,500.00 2,500.00 .0

51-82-683 MINOR EQUIPMENT           .00 .00 3,000.00 3,000.00 .0

51-82-721 INSURANCE                 .00 .00 5,400.00 5,400.00 .0

51-82-722 INSURANCE-DED EXP & OTHER .00 .00 5,000.00 5,000.00 .0

51-82-724 DUES & SUBSCRIPTION       10.00 10.00 .00 (                     10.00) .0

51-82-727 ADVERTISING               .00 .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .0

51-82-738 BAD DEBT EXPENSE          .00 .00 5,000.00 5,000.00 .0

51-82-799 MISCELLANEOUS             10.00 10.00 .00 (                     10.00) .0

51-82-998 ADMINISTRATIVE OVERHEAD-GF 14,223.00 14,223.00 54,065.00 39,842.00 26.3

TOTAL PIPED WATER 78,273.38 78,273.38 448,232.00 369,958.62 17.5

82



CITY OF BETHEL

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 3 MONTHS ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

WATER & SEWER SERVICES

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 25 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  12/05/2017     10:52AM       PAGE: 27

BETHEL HTS WTR TREATMENT  

51-83-501 SALARIES                  30,714.52 30,714.52 125,389.00 94,674.48 24.5

51-83-502 OVERTIME                  4,699.44 4,699.44 .00 (                4,699.44) .0

51-83-508 LEAVE CASHOUT .00 .00 11,239.00 11,239.00 .0

51-83-511 MEDICARE                  176.24 176.24 1,818.00 1,641.76 9.7

51-83-512 EMPLOYEE GROUP BENEFITS   6,410.59 6,410.59 44,064.00 37,653.41 14.6

51-83-515 UNEMPLOYMENT              .00 .00 2,014.00 2,014.00 .0

51-83-516 WORKERS' COMPENSATION .00 .00 3,668.00 3,668.00 .0

51-83-517 PERS ON BEHALF .00 .00 27,585.00 27,585.00 .0

51-83-518 PERS                     7,791.08 7,791.08 .00 (                7,791.08) .0

51-83-519 UTILITY BENEFIT           .00 .00 7,752.00 7,752.00 .0

51-83-545 TRAINING/TRAVEL           .00 .00 1,500.00 1,500.00 .0

51-83-561 SUPPLIES                  8,253.94 8,253.94 50,000.00 41,746.06 16.5

51-83-563 WEARING APPAREL           .00 .00 800.00 800.00 .0

51-83-567 CHEMICALS 36,999.03 36,999.03 .00 (              36,999.03) .0

51-83-592 PLUMBING SUPPLIES         .00 .00 4,000.00 4,000.00 .0

51-83-621 ELECTRICITY (PUMPHOUSE)   11,661.17 11,661.17 70,000.00 58,338.83 16.7

51-83-622 TELEPHONE                 140.43 140.43 1,600.00 1,459.57 8.8

51-83-623 HEATING FUEL (PUMPHOUSE)  8,650.95 8,650.95 130,000.00 121,349.05 6.7

51-83-649 ENGINEERING SERVICES      .00 .00 2,000.00 2,000.00 .0

51-83-650 LAB TESTS                 400.00 400.00 5,000.00 4,600.00 8.0

51-83-661 VEHICLE MAINT/REPAIR      .00 .00 3,037.00 3,037.00 .0

51-83-669 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES  1,710.00 1,710.00 10,000.00 8,290.00 17.1

51-83-683 MINOR EQUIPMENT           .00 .00 5,000.00 5,000.00 .0

51-83-721 INSURANCE                 .00 .00 10,380.00 10,380.00 .0

51-83-727 ADVERTISING               .00 .00 500.00 500.00 .0

51-83-996 ADMIN OVERHEAD-IT SVCS 3,957.00 3,957.00 15,822.00 11,865.00 25.0

51-83-998 ADMINISTRATIVE OVERHEAD-GF 10,548.00 10,548.00 40,103.00 29,555.00 26.3

TOTAL BETHEL HTS WTR TREATMENT  132,112.39 132,112.39 573,271.00 441,158.61 23.1

83



CITY OF BETHEL

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 3 MONTHS ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

WATER & SEWER SERVICES

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 25 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  12/05/2017     10:52AM       PAGE: 28

CITY SUB WTR TREATMENT    

51-84-501 SALARIES                  29,800.36 29,800.36 127,735.00 97,934.64 23.3

51-84-502 OVERTIME                  5,749.31 5,749.31 .00 (                5,749.31) .0

51-84-508 LEAVE CASHOUT .00 .00 5,257.00 5,257.00 .0

51-84-511 MEDICARE                  531.35 531.35 18,232.00 17,700.65 2.9

51-84-512 EMPLOYEE GROUP BENEFITS   13,289.65 13,289.65 44,064.00 30,774.35 30.2

51-84-515 UNEMPLOYMENT              .00 .00 2,014.00 2,014.00 .0

51-84-516 WORKERS' COMPENSATION .00 .00 3,712.00 3,712.00 .0

51-84-517 PERS ON BEHALF .00 .00 27,662.00 27,662.00 .0

51-84-518 PERS                     7,820.89 7,820.89 .00 (                7,820.89) .0

51-84-519 UTILITY BENEFIT           .00 .00 7,752.00 7,752.00 .0

51-84-545 TRAINING/TRAVEL           300.00 300.00 3,000.00 2,700.00 10.0

51-84-561 SUPPLIES                  7,522.13 7,522.13 45,000.00 37,477.87 16.7

51-84-563 WEARING APPAREL           .00 .00 800.00 800.00 .0

51-84-567 CHEMICALS 37,882.72 37,882.72 .00 (              37,882.72) .0

51-84-592 PLUMBING SUPPLIES         .00 .00 2,000.00 2,000.00 .0

51-84-602 GASOLINE/DIESEL/OIL       43.50 43.50 600.00 556.50 7.3

51-84-621 ELECTRICITY (CS WTF)      10,013.55 10,013.55 50,000.00 39,986.45 20.0

51-84-622 TELEPHONE                 8.54 8.54 1,800.00 1,791.46 .5

51-84-623 HEATING FUEL(CS WTF)      17,240.37 17,240.37 80,000.00 62,759.63 21.6

51-84-649 ENGINEERING SERVICES      .00 .00 1,500.00 1,500.00 .0

51-84-650 LAB TESTS                 620.60 620.60 7,500.00 6,879.40 8.3

51-84-661 VEHICLE MAINT (ISF)  .00 .00 3,037.00 3,037.00 .0

51-84-669 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES  216.00 216.00 15,000.00 14,784.00 1.4

51-84-683 MINOR EQUIPMENT           377.83 377.83 5,000.00 4,622.17 7.6

51-84-721 INSURANCE                 .00 .00 5,700.00 5,700.00 .0

51-84-727 ADVERTISING               .00 .00 500.00 500.00 .0

51-84-771 FILTERS 19.50 19.50 .00 (                     19.50) .0

51-84-996 ADMIN OVERHEAD-IT SVCS 4,296.00 4,296.00 17,181.00 12,885.00 25.0

51-84-998 ADMINISTRATIVE OVERHEAD-GF 11,064.00 11,064.00 42,058.00 30,994.00 26.3

TOTAL CITY SUB WTR TREATMENT    146,796.30 146,796.30 517,104.00 370,307.70 28.4

84



CITY OF BETHEL

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 3 MONTHS ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

WATER & SEWER SERVICES

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 25 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  12/05/2017     10:52AM       PAGE: 29

HAULED SEWER

51-85-501 SALARIES                  105,351.55 105,351.55 488,733.00 383,381.45 21.6

51-85-502 OVERTIME                  15,246.31 15,246.31 60,000.00 44,753.69 25.4

51-85-508 LEAVE CASHOUT .00 .00 24,164.00 24,164.00 .0

51-85-511 MEDICARE                  1,836.14 1,836.14 7,957.00 6,120.86 23.1

51-85-512 EMPLOYEE GROUP BENEFITS   52,820.15 52,820.15 250,776.00 197,955.85 21.1

51-85-515 UNEMPLOYMENT              .00 .00 10,150.00 10,150.00 .0

51-85-516 WORKERS' COMPENSATION .00 .00 16,201.00 16,201.00 .0

51-85-517 PERS ON BEHALF .00 .00 120,721.00 120,721.00 .0

51-85-518 PERS                     26,531.51 26,531.51 .00 (              26,531.51) .0

51-85-519 UTILITY BENEFIT           .00 .00 44,118.00 44,118.00 .0

51-85-545 TRAINING/TRAVEL           369.69 369.69 .00 (                   369.69) .0

51-85-561 SUPPLIES                  864.21 864.21 5,525.00 4,660.79 15.6

51-85-563 WEARING APPAREL           720.58 720.58 10,000.00 9,279.42 7.2

51-85-600 TIRES & WHEELS            4,454.30 4,454.30 12,000.00 7,545.70 37.1

51-85-601 VEHICLE PARTS             3,391.71 3,391.71 4,200.00 808.29 80.8

51-85-602 GASOLINE/DIESEL/OIL       26,826.61 26,826.61 110,000.00 83,173.39 24.4

51-85-621 ELECTRICITY              1,178.56 1,178.56 8,000.00 6,821.44 14.7

51-85-622 TELEPHONE                 .00 .00 350.00 350.00 .0

51-85-623 HEATING FUEL              .00 .00 30,000.00 30,000.00 .0

51-85-626 WATER/SEWER/GARB/         2,096.48 2,096.48 6,500.00 4,403.52 32.3

51-85-661 VEHICLE MAINT/REPAIR      6,353.71 6,353.71 313,869.00 307,515.29 2.0

51-85-669 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES  1,790.00 1,790.00 .00 (                1,790.00) .0

51-85-683 MINOR EQUIPMENT           482.10 482.10 2,000.00 1,517.90 24.1

51-85-721 INSURANCE                 .00 .00 17,000.00 17,000.00 .0

51-85-722 INSURANCE-DED EXP & OTHER .00 .00 10,000.00 10,000.00 .0

51-85-724 DUES/SUBSCRIPTIONS        30.00 30.00 .00 (                     30.00) .0

51-85-738 BAD DEBT EXPENSE          .00 .00 12,000.00 12,000.00 .0

51-85-799 MISCELLANEOUS             (                     16.94) (                     16.94) 1,000.00 1,016.94 (    1.7)

51-85-996 ADMIN OVERHEAD-IT SVCS 153.00 153.00 615.00 462.00 24.9

51-85-998 ADMINISTRATIVE OVERHEAD-GF 48,270.00 48,270.00 183,502.00 135,232.00 26.3

TOTAL HAULED SEWER 298,749.67 298,749.67 1,749,381.00 1,450,631.33 17.1

85



CITY OF BETHEL

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 3 MONTHS ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

WATER & SEWER SERVICES

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 25 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  12/05/2017     10:52AM       PAGE: 30

PIPED SEWER

51-86-501 SALARIES                  29,859.17 29,859.17 178,080.00 148,220.83 16.8

51-86-502 OVERTIME                  6,271.02 6,271.02 .00 (                6,271.02) .0

51-86-508 LEAVE CASHOUT .00 .00 6,819.00 6,819.00 .0

51-86-511 MEDICARE                  553.22 553.22 2,582.00 2,028.78 21.4

51-86-512 EMPLOYEE GROUP BENEFITS   13,071.44 13,071.44 57,024.00 43,952.56 22.9

51-86-515 UNEMPLOYMENT              .00 .00 3,971.00 3,971.00 .0

51-86-516 WORKERS' COMPENSATION .00 .00 5,258.00 5,258.00 .0

51-86-517 PERS ON BEHALF .00 .00 39,178.00 39,178.00 .0

51-86-518 PERS                     7,948.61 7,948.61 .00 (                7,948.61) .0

51-86-519 UTILITY BENEFITS          .00 .00 9,478.00 9,478.00 .0

51-86-545 TRAINING/TRAVEL           .00 .00 2,000.00 2,000.00 .0

51-86-561 SUPPLIES                  1,281.78 1,281.78 5,525.00 4,243.22 23.2

51-86-563 WEARING APPAREL           2,136.90 2,136.90 2,500.00 363.10 85.5

51-86-592 PLUMBING SUPPLIES         .00 .00 4,000.00 4,000.00 .0

51-86-602 GASOLINE/DIESEL/OIL       582.52 582.52 25,000.00 24,417.48 2.3

51-86-621 ELECTRICITY-LIFTST & BLDG 12,161.39 12,161.39 75,000.00 62,838.61 16.2

51-86-622 TELEPHONE                 .00 .00 2,000.00 2,000.00 .0

51-86-623 HEATING FUEL              621.19 621.19 35,000.00 34,378.81 1.8

51-86-626 WATER/SEWER/GARB 123.88 123.88 600.00 476.12 20.7

51-86-661 VEHICLE MAINT/REPAIR      192.56 192.56 3,037.00 2,844.44 6.3

51-86-669 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES  2,135.98 2,135.98 20,000.00 17,864.02 10.7

51-86-683 MINOR EQUIPMENT           900.98 900.98 125,000.00 124,099.02 .7

51-86-685 EQUIPMENT                 2,398.00 2,398.00 .00 (                2,398.00) .0

51-86-721 INSURANCE                 .00 .00 4,500.00 4,500.00 .0

51-86-722 INSURANCE-DED EXP & OTHER .00 .00 5,000.00 5,000.00 .0

51-86-736 LEASED PROPERTY-LIFT STATIONS 338.55 338.55 10,000.00 9,661.45 3.4

51-86-996 ADMIN OVERHEAD-IT SVCS 153.00 153.00 615.00 462.00 24.9

51-86-998 ADMINISTRATIVE OVERHEAD-GF 14,271.00 14,271.00 54,251.00 39,980.00 26.3

TOTAL PIPED SEWER 95,001.19 95,001.19 676,418.00 581,416.81 14.0

86



CITY OF BETHEL

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 3 MONTHS ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

WATER & SEWER SERVICES

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 25 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  12/05/2017     10:52AM       PAGE: 31

SEWER LAGOON

51-87-501 SALARIES                  8,213.64 8,213.64 63,327.00 55,113.36 13.0

51-87-502 OVERTIME                  1,445.43 1,445.43 .00 (                1,445.43) .0

51-87-508 LEAVE CASHOUT .00 .00 1,616.00 1,616.00 .0

51-87-511 MEDICARE                  147.13 147.13 918.00 770.87 16.0

51-87-512 EMPLOYEE GROUP BENEFITS   3,449.49 3,449.49 18,144.00 14,694.51 19.0

51-87-515 UNEMPLOYMENT              .00 .00 1,412.00 1,412.00 .0

51-87-516 WORKERS' COMPENSATION .00 .00 1,870.00 1,870.00 .0

51-87-517 PERS ON BEHALF .00 .00 13,932.00 13,932.00 .0

51-87-518 PERS                     2,124.95 2,124.95 .00 (                2,124.95) .0

51-87-519 UTILITY BENEFIT           .00 .00 3,016.00 3,016.00 .0

51-87-545 TRAINING/TRAVEL           .00 .00 1,500.00 1,500.00 .0

51-87-561 SUPPLIES                  451.98 451.98 1,000.00 548.02 45.2

51-87-563 WEARING APPAREL           .00 .00 1,200.00 1,200.00 .0

51-87-592 PLUMBING SUPPLIES         .00 .00 2,500.00 2,500.00 .0

51-87-602 GASOLINE                  1,987.13 1,987.13 15,000.00 13,012.87 13.3

51-87-650 LAB TESTS (SAMPLES)       2,302.24 2,302.24 12,000.00 9,697.76 19.2

51-87-661 VEHICLE MAINT/REPAIR      1,464.69 1,464.69 .00 (                1,464.69) .0

51-87-669 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES  .00 .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .0

51-87-683 MINOR EQUIPMENT           .00 .00 2,000.00 2,000.00 .0

51-87-721 INSURANCE                 .00 .00 800.00 800.00 .0

51-87-727 ADVERTISING               .00 .00 500.00 500.00 .0

51-87-998 ADMINISTRATIVE OVERHEAD-GF 4,920.00 4,920.00 18,700.00 13,780.00 26.3

TOTAL SEWER LAGOON 26,506.68 26,506.68 160,435.00 133,928.32 16.5

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 1,165,748.52 1,165,748.52 6,036,403.00 4,870,654.48 19.3

87



CITY OF BETHEL

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 3 MONTHS ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

MUNICIPAL DOCK            

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 25 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  12/05/2017     10:53AM       PAGE: 32

DOCK EXPENDITURES

52-50-501 SALARIES 40,715.24 40,715.24 196,845.00 156,129.76 20.7

52-50-502 OVERTIME 1,939.10 1,939.10 .00 (                1,939.10) .0

52-50-508 LEAVE CASHOUT .00 .00 8,700.00 8,700.00 .0

52-50-510 SOCIAL SECURITY EXPENSE 476.70 476.70 1,417.00 940.30 33.6

52-50-511 MEDICARE FICA 635.80 635.80 2,854.00 2,218.20 22.3

52-50-512 EMPLOYEE GROUP BENEFITS 9,818.86 9,818.86 65,318.00 55,499.14 15.0

52-50-515 UNEMPLOYMENT              .00 .00 2,462.00 2,462.00 .0

52-50-516 WORKERS' COMPENSATION .00 .00 8,318.00 8,318.00 .0

52-50-517 PERS ON BEHALF .00 .00 43,306.00 43,306.00 .0

52-50-518 PERS                     6,436.88 6,436.88 .00 (                6,436.88) .0

52-50-519 UTILITY BENEFIT           .00 .00 11,491.00 11,491.00 .0

52-50-545 TRAINING/TRAVEL           996.93 996.93 5,000.00 4,003.07 19.9

52-50-561 SUPPLIES                  790.22 790.22 5,500.00 4,709.78 14.4

52-50-563 WEARING APPAREL           164.30 164.30 1,300.00 1,135.70 12.6

52-50-601 VEHICLE MT 211.13 211.13 4,000.00 3,788.87 5.3

52-50-602 GASOLINE/DIESEL/OIL 2,194.67 2,194.67 18,000.00 15,805.33 12.2

52-50-621 ELECTRICITY               821.61 821.61 15,000.00 14,178.39 5.5

52-50-622 TELEPHONE                 17.08 17.08 1,000.00 982.92 1.7

52-50-623 HEATING FUEL              .00 .00 2,000.00 2,000.00 .0

52-50-624 WATER, SEWER, GARBAGE     1,938.53 1,938.53 12,000.00 10,061.47 16.2

52-50-626 WATER FOR BARGES 4,438.29 4,438.29 12,000.00 7,561.71 37.0

52-50-627 STAFF CELLULAR PHONES 45.60 45.60 .00 (                     45.60) .0

52-50-642 LEGAL FEES                .00 .00 5,000.00 5,000.00 .0

52-50-643 PLANNING/ENGINEERING FEES .00 .00 5,000.00 5,000.00 .0

52-50-661 VEHICLE MAINT/REPAIR      1,792.11 1,792.11 3,037.00 1,244.89 59.0

52-50-666 MUNICIPAL DOCK MAINT. 496.48 496.48 5,000.00 4,503.52 9.9

52-50-667 MAINT-SEAWALL             344.12 344.12 7,000.00 6,655.88 4.9

52-50-668 MAINT SMALL BOAT HARBOR   .00 .00 4,000.00 4,000.00 .0

52-50-669 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES 2,873.95 2,873.95 24,000.00 21,126.05 12.0

52-50-683 MINOR EQUIPMENT           1,483.37 1,483.37 19,000.00 17,516.63 7.8

52-50-687 LAND/EASEMENT ACQUISITION .00 .00 30,000.00 30,000.00 .0

52-50-690 CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 1,125,000.00 1,125,000.00 .00 (         1,125,000.00) .0

52-50-696 WATERFRONT FACILIITIES IMPROV .00 .00 25,000.00 25,000.00 .0

52-50-721 INSURANCE                 .00 .00 16,000.00 16,000.00 .0

52-50-724 DUES                     .00 .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .0

52-50-727 ADVERTISING               156.60 156.60 1,000.00 843.40 15.7

52-50-736 BANK CHARGES 82.76 82.76 .00 (                     82.76) .0

52-50-775 MUNICIPAL DOCK GRAVEL 69,848.04 69,848.04 55,000.00 (              14,848.04) 127.0

52-50-777 CONTAMINATED SOIL PROCESSING .00 .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .0

52-50-996 ADMIN OVERHEAD-IT SVCS 5,472.00 5,472.00 21,887.00 16,415.00 25.0

52-50-998 ADMINISTRATIVE OVERHEAD-GF 16,080.00 16,080.00 61,126.00 45,046.00 26.3

TOTAL DOCK EXPENDITURES 1,295,270.37 1,295,270.37 700,561.00 (            594,709.37) 184.9

88



CITY OF BETHEL

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 3 MONTHS ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

MUNICIPAL DOCK            

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 25 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  12/05/2017     10:53AM       PAGE: 33

SMALL BOAR HARBOR

52-55-501 SALARIES 46,489.35 46,489.35 100,676.00 54,186.65 46.2

52-55-502 OVERTIME 1,279.85 1,279.85 .00 (                1,279.85) .0

52-55-508 LEAVE CASHOUT .00 .00 1,268.00 1,268.00 .0

52-55-510 SOCIAL SECURITY 2,488.39 2,488.39 4,483.00 1,994.61 55.5

52-55-511 MEDICARE FICA 679.60 679.60 1,460.00 780.40 46.6

52-55-512 EMPLOYEE GROUP BENEFITS 2,654.02 2,654.02 12,442.00 9,787.98 21.3

52-55-515 UNEMPLOYMENT .00 .00 2,245.00 2,245.00 .0

52-55-516 WORKERS' COMPENSATION .00 .00 4,254.00 4,254.00 .0

52-55-517 PERS ON BEHALF .00 .00 22,149.00 22,149.00 .0

52-55-518 PERS 1,390.97 1,390.97 .00 (                1,390.97) .0

52-55-519 UTILITY BENEFIT .00 .00 2,189.00 2,189.00 .0

52-55-561 SUPPLIES 895.66 895.66 1,800.00 904.34 49.8

52-55-563 WEARING APPAREL 1,081.59 1,081.59 1,700.00 618.41 63.6

52-55-602 GASOLINE 3,036.34 3,036.34 7,000.00 3,963.66 43.4

52-55-621 ELECTRICITY .00 .00 2,000.00 2,000.00 .0

52-55-624 WATER/SEWR/GARBAGE .00 .00 10,500.00 10,500.00 .0

52-55-668 SMALL BOAT HARBOR MAINTENANCE 454.58 454.58 7,000.00 6,545.42 6.5

52-55-683 MINOR EQUIPMENT 227.02 227.02 1,000.00 772.98 22.7

52-55-799 MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES .00 .00 250.00 250.00 .0

52-55-998 ADMINISTRATIVE OVERHEAD-GF 7,134.00 7,134.00 27,120.00 19,986.00 26.3

TOTAL SMALL BOAR HARBOR 67,811.37 67,811.37 209,536.00 141,724.63 32.4

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 1,363,081.74 1,363,081.74 910,097.00 (            452,984.74) 149.8

89



CITY OF BETHEL

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 3 MONTHS ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

LEASED PROPERTIES         

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 25 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  12/05/2017     10:53AM       PAGE: 34

LEASED PROP-COURT COMPLEX

53-55-621 ELECTRICITY-COURT COMPLEX 15,827.16 15,827.16 .00 (              15,827.16) .0

53-55-622 TELEPHONE 163.57 163.57 .00 (                   163.57) .0

53-55-623 HEATING FUEL-COURTCOMPLEX .00 .00 120,000.00 120,000.00 .0

53-55-626 WATER/SEWER/GARB-COURTCOM 2,925.00 2,925.00 12,000.00 9,075.00 24.4

53-55-662 PROPERTY MT-COURT COMPLEX 65.26 65.26 .00 (                     65.26) .0

53-55-663 JANITORIAL-COURT COMPLEX  11,790.33 11,790.33 61,422.00 49,631.67 19.2

53-55-714 COURTHOUSE LOAN INTEREST  4,375.00 4,375.00 93,050.00 88,675.00 4.7

53-55-717 AMORT OF BOND PREMIUM .00 .00 7,252.00 7,252.00 .0

53-55-721 INSURANCE .00 .00 19,000.00 19,000.00 .0

TOTAL LEASED PROP-COURT COMPLEX 35,146.32 35,146.32 312,724.00 277,577.68 11.2

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 35,146.32 35,146.32 312,724.00 277,577.68 11.2

90



CITY OF BETHEL

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 3 MONTHS ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

EMPLOYEE GROUP HEALTH BEN.   

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 25 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  12/05/2017     10:53AM       PAGE: 35

EMPLOYEE GROUP HEALTH BENEFITS

54-50-646 CLAIMS PAID               235,323.11 235,323.11 1,586,667.00 1,351,343.89 14.8

54-50-669 TPA SERVICES              12,882.10 12,882.10 96,864.00 83,981.90 13.3

54-50-722 STOP LOSS PREMIUM 98,833.95 98,833.95 657,816.00 558,982.05 15.0

54-50-723 PREMIUM LIFE AD&D LTD     16,959.70 16,959.70 92,000.00 75,040.30 18.4

TOTAL EMPLOYEE GROUP HEALTH BENEFITS 363,998.86 363,998.86 2,433,347.00 2,069,348.14 15.0

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 363,998.86 363,998.86 2,433,347.00 2,069,348.14 15.0

91



CITY OF BETHEL

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 3 MONTHS ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SERV.

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 25 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  12/05/2017     10:53AM       PAGE: 36

IT SERVICES

55-50-732 EQUIPMENT RENTAL          1,313.52 1,313.52 .00 (                1,313.52) .0

TOTAL IT SERVICES 1,313.52 1,313.52 .00 (                1,313.52) .0

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 1,313.52 1,313.52 .00 (                1,313.52) .0

92



CITY OF BETHEL

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 3 MONTHS ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

BETHEL PUBLIC TRANSIT SYSTEM

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 25 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  12/05/2017     10:53AM       PAGE: 37

TRANSIT SYSTEM EXPENDITURES

56-50-501 SALARIES                  36,190.58 36,190.58 152,592.00 116,401.42 23.7

56-50-508 LEAVE CASHOUT .00 .00 7,630.00 7,630.00 .0

56-50-510 SOCIAL SECURITY EXPENSE   226.10 226.10 .00 (                   226.10) .0

56-50-511 MEDICARE FICA             531.19 531.19 2,213.00 1,681.81 24.0

56-50-512 EMPLOYEE GROUP BENEFITS   15,730.23 15,730.23 77,760.00 62,029.77 20.2

56-50-515 UNEMPLOYMENT              .00 .00 2,661.00 2,661.00 .0

56-50-516 WORKERS' COMPENSATION .00 .00 9,278.00 9,278.00 .0

56-50-517 PERS ON BEHALF .00 .00 33,570.00 33,570.00 .0

56-50-518 PERS                     7,159.65 7,159.65 .00 (                7,159.65) .0

56-50-519 UTILITY BENEFIT           .00 .00 12,924.00 12,924.00 .0

56-50-545 TRAINING/TRAVEL           716.70 716.70 500.00 (                   216.70) 143.3

56-50-561 SUPPLIES                  99.45 99.45 3,500.00 3,400.55 2.8

56-50-600 TIRES & WHEELS            .00 .00 2,500.00 2,500.00 .0

56-50-602 GASOLINE                  2,732.43 2,732.43 25,000.00 22,267.57 10.9

56-50-621 ELECTRICITY 1,027.38 1,027.38 9,500.00 8,472.62 10.8

56-50-622 TELEPHONE                 8.54 8.54 200.00 191.46 4.3

56-50-623 HEATING FUEL .00 .00 9,000.00 9,000.00 .0

56-50-626 WTR/SWR/GRB 284.94 284.94 1,200.00 915.06 23.8

56-50-627 STAFF CELLULAR PHONES 53.15 53.15 .00 (                     53.15) .0

56-50-646 DRUG TESTING/BCKGRND CKS  267.00 267.00 1,000.00 733.00 26.7

56-50-661 VEHICLE MAINT/REPAIR      389.98 389.98 20,250.00 19,860.02 1.9

56-50-669 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES  30.00 30.00 3,500.00 3,470.00 .9

56-50-683 MINOR EQUIPMENT           .00 .00 3,000.00 3,000.00 .0

56-50-721 INSURANCE                 .00 .00 9,000.00 9,000.00 .0

56-50-724 DUES/SUBSCRIPTIONS 30.00 30.00 300.00 270.00 10.0

56-50-727 ADVERTISING               .00 .00 1,500.00 1,500.00 .0

56-50-799 MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES    .00 .00 300.00 300.00 .0

56-50-996 ADMIN OVERHEAD-IT SVCS 4,296.00 4,296.00 17,181.00 12,885.00 25.0

56-50-998 ADMINISTRATIVE OVERHEAD-GF 14,094.00 14,094.00 .00 (              14,094.00) .0

TOTAL TRANSIT SYSTEM EXPENDITURES 83,867.32 83,867.32 406,059.00 322,191.68 20.7

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 83,867.32 83,867.32 406,059.00 322,191.68 20.7

93



CITY OF BETHEL

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 3 MONTHS ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

VEHICLES & EQUIP MAINTENANCE

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 25 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  12/05/2017     10:53AM       PAGE: 38

VEHICLE & EQUIP MAINT

57-50-501 SALARIES 64,601.08 64,601.08 363,751.00 299,149.92 17.8

57-50-502 OVERTIME                  799.09 799.09 .00 (                   799.09) .0

57-50-508 LEAVE CASHOUT .00 .00 15,665.00 15,665.00 .0

57-50-511 MEDICARE FICA             992.32 992.32 5,274.00 4,281.68 18.8

57-50-512 EMPLOYEE GROUP BENEFITS   24,661.88 24,661.88 156,816.00 132,154.12 15.7

57-50-515 UNEMPLOYMENT              .00 .00 5,325.00 5,325.00 .0

57-50-516 WORKERS' COMPENSATION .00 .00 16,076.00 16,076.00 .0

57-50-517 PERS ON BEHALF .00 .00 80,025.00 80,025.00 .0

57-50-518 PERS                     14,388.13 14,388.13 .00 (              14,388.13) .0

57-50-519 UTILITY BENEFIT           .00 .00 27,588.00 27,588.00 .0

57-50-545 TRAINING/TRAVEL           8,474.60 8,474.60 15,000.00 6,525.40 56.5

57-50-561 SUPPLIES                  2,356.15 2,356.15 10,000.00 7,643.85 23.6

57-50-563 WEARING APPAREL 694.89 694.89 1,500.00 805.11 46.3

57-50-600 TIRES & WHEELS            .00 .00 1,500.00 1,500.00 .0

57-50-601 VEHICLE PARTS & MOTOR OIL 3,179.91 3,179.91 5,000.00 1,820.09 63.6

57-50-602 GASOLINE / DIESEL / OIL 14,686.88 14,686.88 40,000.00 25,313.12 36.7

57-50-621 ELECTRICITY               2,061.82 2,061.82 18,096.00 16,034.18 11.4

57-50-622 TELEPHONE                 .00 .00 2,000.00 2,000.00 .0

57-50-623 HEATING FUEL       .00 .00 50,000.00 50,000.00 .0

57-50-626 WATER/SEWER/GARB 1,597.51 1,597.51 6,220.00 4,622.49 25.7

57-50-627 STAFF CELLULAR PHONES 53.15 53.15 .00 (                     53.15) .0

57-50-661 VEHICLE MAINT (ISF) 424.62 424.62 .00 (                   424.62) .0

57-50-662 PROPERTY MAINT            .00 .00 8,615.00 8,615.00 .0

57-50-669 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES 53.44 53.44 15,000.00 14,946.56 .4

57-50-683 MINOR EQUIPMENT           420.00 420.00 20,000.00 19,580.00 2.1

57-50-721 INSURANCE                 .00 .00 7,000.00 7,000.00 .0

57-50-724 DUES/SUBSCRIPTIONS 58.85 58.85 1,200.00 1,141.15 4.9

57-50-799 MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES    61.00 61.00 .00 (                     61.00) .0

57-50-996 ADMIN OVERHEAD-IT SVCS 5,133.00 5,133.00 20,532.00 15,399.00 25.0

57-50-998 ADMINISTRATIVE OVERHEAD-GF 31,644.00 31,644.00 120,297.00 88,653.00 26.3

TOTAL VEHICLE & EQUIP MAINT 176,342.32 176,342.32 1,012,480.00 836,137.68 17.4

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 176,342.32 176,342.32 1,012,480.00 836,137.68 17.4

94



CITY OF BETHEL

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 3 MONTHS ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

LAGOON UPGRADES DESIGN SERV

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 25 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  12/05/2017     10:53AM       PAGE: 39

DEPARTMENT 50

63-50-643 PLANNING/ENGINEERING FEES 100,300.00 100,300.00 .00 (            100,300.00) .0

63-50-727 ADVERTISING 336.60 336.60 .00 (                   336.60) .0

TOTAL DEPARTMENT 50 100,636.60 100,636.60 .00 (            100,636.60) .0

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 100,636.60 100,636.60 .00 (            100,636.60) .0

95



CITY OF BETHEL

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 3 MONTHS ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

2016 HOMELAND SECURITY

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 25 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  12/05/2017     10:53AM       PAGE: 40

DEPARTMENT 51

71-51-683 MINOR EQUIPMENT 4,003.65 4,003.65 .00 (                4,003.65) .0

TOTAL DEPARTMENT 51 4,003.65 4,003.65 .00 (                4,003.65) .0

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 4,003.65 4,003.65 .00 (                4,003.65) .0

96



 

Mayor’s Report  
 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

97



 

City Manager’s Report 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

98



BETHEL CITY MANAGERS REPORT  

November 22 to December 5, 2017  

 

Safety- Our insurance broker continues to receive the departments attendance sheets 

of their safety meetings. 

Jetty- 12/2 Teleconference with our Project Manager, USDA and City Admin. to discuss 

the project funding. The bids for construction will go out in Dec; a pre-bid conference 

will take place in mid-January. 

Intuitional Corridor-.Have a meeting scheduled here in Bethel on Thurs, Dec 7 with 

DOWL, our project manager for this project. 

The Avenues Project – PERS/EA is being worked on by DOWL and progress report is 

expected Dec. 7. 

Ridgecrest Dr. – Received the final comments and plans for this project. The State 
should put this out to bid soon. 
 
POLICE DEPT. – 11/29 the Police chief and myself discussed a COA regarding a 
missing person. We discussed his employment with the City and he stated he 
understood that this position would be advertised but was concerned that the morale of 
the officers might be affected, that it might be perceived that Administration was not 
happy with his work and was seeking new leadership. Discussed redacting of video 
tapes and audio that is recorded on the police officers body cams. The city has no way 
to redact these tapes. We are looking at for a company that is qualified to redact 
videos. 
 
Bethel Spirts Liquor-12/1-Requested concerned depts. to provide the necessary 
information for Bethel Spirts license renewal. 
 
Port- 12/1 Donated a connex to the Winterhouse for use during the winter; discussed 

an open house for the new building; one person employed by the port is helping out 

the hauled water and sewer services. 

Finance Dept. – 11/29-Meet with Fire Chief, Finance Director and myself to determine 

a COA for the billing of past due ambulance fees. We will work on a two RFP’s in Dec. 

to hire a company to process the ambulance fees and another to collect delinquent 

accounts. Forward requested monthly financial statements to the city council. Meet with 

the Wilson Agency, our health insurance broker, for two hours with the Finance director 

and H.R. Manager to review our health insurance plan. 

 

99



2 

Courthouse- 11/29- Sent letter to the Ak Court System regarding their 

occupancy.12/4- Ron Woods the Court Administrator discussed the current situation 

and I agreed to discuss the matter of the lease in Executive session.  

YKFC- Reviewed their monthly newsletter.  

Planning Dept.-11/29- Reviewed the Planning Depts. COA with DOWL regarding the 

AVEC’s wind tower. 

H.R. –Discussed a COA of action to advertise the Police Chiefs position.  

ONC-Need still need a MOA regarding the lighting in Pinky’s park. 

 

Peter Williams, City Manger 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

100



 

 
 

Management Team Reports 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

101



102



MEMORANDUM 

 

DATE:         12.01.2017 

TO:   Peter Williams, City Manager 

FROM:  Bill Arnold, Public Works Director 

SUBJECT:  Manager’s Report – 

 

Programs/Divisions 

 

Public Works Director:  

 

Hauled Utilities: 

  We have had shortage of drivers since I started November 9, 2017. In which we 

had a lot of overtime for drivers operating in adverse conditions. The weather has 

been unpredictable that has caused safety concerns for all drivers in which a few 

incidents have occurred. 

 

  We lost three drivers with two whom quit for another job offer and one whom got 

fired under instructions from my Supervisor. The driver has had incidents and 

accidents that costed the City Of Bethel a lot of money. 

 

  We had three applicants that applied for a job here with one that hasn’t showed up 

since he been hired out of Anchorage, Ak. One applicant whom got hired I haven’t 

heard from since his interview. And one that hasn’t returned my call for an 

interview. 

 

  We haven’t had incidents since the last driver was fired. I have been speaking to 

the drivers at The Safety Meetings in the morning. They have been watching 

Trucker Incidents under Target Solutions as well. 

 

  Even there has been a lot of paperwork involved at work I have been driving to 

help Drivers catch up with route sheets with paperwork still stacking for the next 

morning but all paperwork is done before I start driving. 

 

  A lot of updates are being done in the system and files that are still being updated 

daily since I started. And files I have started on the desktop for easy access even on 

paper. Everything is picking up over in this department so far. 

 

Utility Maintenance:   

 

103



 

Property Maintenance: 

For the current month of November Property Maintenance Crew has worked in 25 

work Orders and Emergencies calls; to maintain the City of Bethel buildings; I will 

describe some of the most important that the crew worked on it and have a Work 

Orders Report list attached. 

 

 Court House changed 20 filters at AHU-4 and AHU-5 and two valves. 

 Transit Services replace 4- Auto vents. 

 DA’s office need to replace new two bathroom faucets. 

 Port Office Building changed all door cylinders cores. 

 Fire Department Bay #1and #2 have problems. Chain was adjusted, censor 

need to keep clean from snow and ice. 

 Highway Lift Station was losing boiler pressure as a resulted of the 

circulation pump was not working, leaking seals and pressure valves that 

need to be changed. 

 Public Works Diesel fuel pump need it a new nozzle and filter. 

 

Parks and Recreation: 

The City of Bethel Parks and Recreation is closed for the season. Property 

Maintenance will periodically check the board walks, benches and picnic tables for 

repairs and prune or remove overgrown trees and shrubs. 

 

Road Maintenance: 

Streets and Roads has now been helping at the landfill as we have time by hauling 

landfill cover with the two roads maintenance dump trucks. We been hauling in 

cover to cover the trash and to a pile at the landfill to use latter.  

 

 Streets and Roads with all the rain that we had this last month, we had to sand the 

roads a lot with the sander truck in order to keep the roads from being to slippery. 

We also used a lot of gravel this mouth to keep the roads smooth as possible during 

the rain and before freeze up again.      

 

 Streets and Roads also graded the roads as much, as we can, but with all the rain, 

it would not hold up to grading, due to the roads being so wet, and muddy. 

However by keeping up with the weather during this last thaw, that it was going to 

freeze at 9:00pm on the 16th of November, we sent both graders out at 7:00pm to 

grade roads until to roads froze up to much to grade. By doing it during the freeze, 

the roads would hold up long enough for it to freeze up as smooth as possible.    

 

104



 

Vehicles and Equipment:  

 

Transit System: We've increased the number of passengers purchasing monthly 

passes the last three months, averaging 10-15/ month. Several of the local agencies, 

OCS and LKSD have been purchasing adult and youth passes, three or four LKSD 

teachers, several YKHC employees and then community members.  Our ridership 

is holding fast averaging between 90-120 per day. I hate to cancel buses because 

once you do that it takes several days for passengers to start using it again.  I think 

they lose trust and then we have to rekindle that trust. 

 

The month of November has been a busy month.  One of our full time drivers 

transferred to another department his replacement did not work out and the other 

full time driver had jury duty. When the full time driver was not on jury duty and 

Transit Manager filled in trying to keep both the Red Line and Green Line running 

according to the schedule. The ridership for the month was 1829; 310 elders, 127 

youth, 1392 adults/passes, and 164 with disabilities.   

Our buses are maxing out, the State, DOT, recommends that buses be phased out 

when they are five years old and/or 100,000 miles.  Our newest bus was purchased 

in October of 2014, three years old, but has 108,000 miles, Bus 438 our oldest and 

smallest bus was purchased in 2008, nine years old, and has 114,000 miles. Bus 

436, the diesel, was purchased in 2008, nine years old, and has 140,000 miles.  Bus 

437, diesel, was purchased in 2008, and has a bad motor and is not being used.    

We have put studded tires on buses 439 and 438.  Bus 438 has new studded tires 

and the studded tires on bus 439 were used last winter but still are good.  The bus 

stop shelter at Corina’s was ran “over” and smashed.  This spring, after the ground 

thaws, we will replace it with one that is not being used.  In the mean time, we 

have put the old wooden one back.  Thanks to the crew in Streets and Roads. 

 

 

Landfill / Recycle Center: 

The Landfill has been busy covering trash and stock piling for future use, with the 

help of the Streets and Roads Department. This is a neverending job. I really 

appreciate this department’s willingness to help with this huge ongoing job.  

We have been putting new bottoms on some of the old dumpsters, so we can 

continue to use them. 

 

105



 

Water Plant Operations: 

For the month of November we started to complete our Monitoring Summary 

reports for BHWTP and CSWTP to ADEC 2017 requirements. We also continue 

our monthly maintenance logs for both our water plants. We also continue to file a 

monthly Discharge Monitoring Reports (DMRs). We also have our Water storage 

tank cleaning out to Bid. Also did an inspection with ARWA at the Police Dept. 

water system. It’s been a warm November. 

 

Staffing Issues/Concerns/Training:  

 

   

 

106



CITY OF BETHEL 
Post Office Box 1388  

Bethel, Alaska  99559 

Phone: 907- 543- 2047 

 

 
 

“Deep Sea and Transportation Center of the Kuskokwim” 

TO:  City Manager 

FROM:  Human Resources 

SUBJECT: November 2017 Manager Report 

 

DATE:  December 5, 2017 

 

The following identifies significant projects that were in addition to general personnel action-
based activities (hiring, terminations, disciplinary, etc.): 

Applications and Hiring 
Job Description was updated for Assistant Finance Director (Comptroller). 

A total of 119 applications were received during November for advertised vacancies. 

 

Position 
Number 

of 
Vacancies 

(Average) 
Days 

Vacant 

Number of 
New 

Applications  

Number 
Hired 

During 
Period 

Number of 
Vacancies 
Remaining  

Applicants 
Still in 

Department 
Review 
Process  

Assistant 
Finance Director  

1 138 2 0 1 2 

Water and 
Wastewater 
Foreman  

1 359 0 0 1 0 

Property 
(Facilities, 
Land, Parks) 
Maintenance 
Worker 

1 284 2 0 1 0 

Firefighter/EMT 1 
Temp 
Hire 

3 0 1 2 

Dispatch 
Supervisor 

1 137 0 0 1 4 

Transit Driver 1 28 1 1 1 
Conditional 

Offer for 
12/11/2017 

Accounting 
Specialist I 

2 124 3 0 2 
Conditional 

Offer for 
12/14/2017 

Dispatcher 1 7 1 0 1  

Driver – Hauled 
Utility 

6 N/A 3 0 4 
Conditional 

Offer for 
12/6/2017 

Police Officer 1 N/A 1 0 1 2 

107



  December 6, 2017 

  2 

Position 
Number 

of 
Vacancies 

(Average) 
Days 

Vacant 

Number of 
New 

Applications  

Number 
Hired 

During 
Period 

Number of 
Vacancies 
Remaining  

Applicants 
Still in 

Department 
Review 
Process  

 
TOTALS 15 134 16 1 14 10 

 

 

Program Updates 

None 

108



 1 

MEMORANDUM 
 
DATE:  December 5, 2017 
 
TO:  Peter Williams, City Manager 
 
FROM:  John Sargent, Grant Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Grant Manager’s Report – December 12, 2017 Bethel City Council Meeting 
 
 
Ex-officio for Grant Board 
 
The City Manager assigned me to serve as ex-officio committee member to the Community 
Action Grant Technical Review Board. I will attend meetings, engage in discussion, and provide 
information to the group. 
 
Grant Projects 
 
Sewer Lagoon Rehabilitation 
Dredging 
The City signed the fourth grant from Village Safe Water Program in the amount of $500,000 to 
cover costs associated with the dredging and baffle replacement project. The grant allowed the 
City to pull 400 additional dry tons of sludge from the lagoon. All parts of the dredging project 
must be completed by June 30, 2018. All four dredging grants will be expended by that date. 
 
Jetty Repair 
The City and USDA-RD are in receipt of the 95% design and bid documents. The City Attorney 
and other administrators are providing comments to CH2M, the engineer firm that completed 
the design documents and is serving as project manager. The plan is to go out to bid as early 
as January so that a contractor can complete the jetty work in summer 2018. 
 
Grant Applications 
Transit Grant 
Per Bethel City Council approval, I am preparing the FY 2019 Community Transit Grant 
application that is due January 19, 2018.  
 
State Homeland Security Grant 
This grant is due out in December and will be due in January. Notice has been provided to the 
Police, Fire, Public Works, Information Technology, and Port Departments. The City can typically 
apply for five projects/equipment. No match is required.  
 
Request for Bids/Proposals 
 
Water Tank Cleaning RFP Issued 3rd Time 
The City prepared and issued a Request for Proposals document to hire a company to clean, 
inspect, and make recommendations regarding the condition of the City’s two 500,000 gallon 
water tanks. The sediment on the bottom of the tanks must be cleaned every 3-4 years. The 
City received no responses to the first two times it issued this RFP. Firms in the industry were 
sent notice of this RFP.  

109



 2 

 
YK Fitness Center Utility Management Software 
I am preparing an RFP to hire a company to manage the City’s utility management software at 
the YK Fitness Center.  
 
Boilers for Public Works Building 
I will prepare and Request for Bids/Proposals once DOWL determines a scope of work for the 
City’s new boilers to be installed at the Public Works building. 
 
Lowboy and Semi Truck 
I prepared a draft RFB to purchase one lowboy and one semi truck. The document is under 
review by several staff members. 
 

City of Bethel 
Grant Summary 

Calendar Year 2017 
  

Preparing 
 
 
Sponsor 

 
 
Name 

 
 
Products/Services 

City 
Depts. 
(Partners) 

 
 

Date 

 
 $ Grant 

$ City Match 
DOT&PF Community 

Transit Grant 

Transit System 

Operations 

Public 

Works – 

Transit 

1/19/17 $408,553 

$70,100 

USDA-RD Water and 

Sewer grants 

and loan 

Sewer Lagoon 

Rehabilitation Project 

– Jetty Repair 

Public 

Works 

Ongoing $3,332,358 

Submitted in Calendar Year 2017 Most recent first 
Federal Government President 

Trump’s 

Infrastructure 

Improvement 

Program 

Water Loop A 

Water Loop B 

Water Loop C 

Public 

Works 

6/20/17 $23,167,254 

$5,791,814 

Approved in Calendar Year 2017 Most recent first 
Village Safe Water, 

DEC 

Water and 

Sewer 

Infrastructure 

Grant 

Dredging Sewer 

Lagoon 

Public 

Works 
 $500,000 

0 

Alaska Public 

Entity Insurance 

Safety 

Supplies Grant 

Ear plugs, safety 

vests, warm jackets 

Water & 

Sewer/Prop 

Maint. 

9/25/17 $3,000 

0 

Rasmuson 

Foundation 

Grant YK Fitness Center 

operating & maint. 

YK 

Fitness 

Ctr. 

9/2017 $500 

0 

110



 3 

 
 
Sponsor 

 
 
Name 

 
 
Products/Services 

City 
Depts. 
(Partners) 

 
 

Date 

 
 $ Grant 

$ City Match 
U.S. Forest Service Volunteer 

Firefighter 

Assistance 

Turnouts Fire 9/2017 $7,453 

? 

AK Div. of 

Homeland Security 

and Emerg. Mgmt. 

State 

Homeland 

Security 

Program 

GIS Mapping, 

repeaters for radios, 

ALERRT active 

shooter training 

Police, 

Fire 

9/2017 $126,055 

0 

Village Safe Water-

DEC 

Wastewater 

Grant #16EP29 

Engineering & 

dredging sewer 

lagoon 

Public 

Works 

7/14/17 $2,230,851 

0 

Village Safe Water-

DEC 

Wastewater 

Grant #14EP70 

Engineering & 

dredging sewer 

lagoon 

Public 

Works 

7/14/17 $2,233,816 

0 

Village Safe Water-

DEC 

Wastewater 

Grant #17EP77 

Engineering & 

dredging sewer 

lagoon 

Public 

Works 

7/14/17 $300,037 

0 

AK Div. of 

Homeland Security 

and Emerg. Mgmt. 

State 

Homeland 

Security 

Program 

Portable & Mobile 

radios, coverage of 

previous over-

expenditure 

Police, 

Fire 

8/2017 $103,987 

0 

AK Dept. of Health 

& Social Services 

Community 

Service Patrol 

Grant 

Fund 3 CSPs, 

gasoline, minor 

equipment 

Police 4/26/17 $323,081 

AK Div. of 

Homeland Security 

and Emerg. Mgmt. 

State 

Homeland 

Security 

Program 

Radios, programming, 

installation of 

mobiles. 

Police, 

Fire 

12/2016 $89,373 

& $14,614 

No match 

AK Dept. of 

Environmental 

Cons., Village Safe 

Water Program 

Sanitation 

Deficiency 

Database 

Lift station 

replacement; five new 

lift station electric 

panels 

Public 

Works 

4/2016 $900,000 

0 

AK Dept. of 

Transportation & 

Public Facilities 

FY 2018 

Community 

Transit Grant 

Bethel Transit System 

operations. 

Public 

Works 

12/16 $250,597 

$80,580 

Alaska Public 

Entity Insurance 

Surface 

Material Grant 

Playground surface 

material (woodchips) 

Parks & 

Rec. 

1/16 $10,000 

$10,000 

Total $7,078,750 

Not Approved Most recent first 
EPA, IHS, USDA, 

ANTHC 

Sanitation 

Deficiency 

Database 

Sewer pipe to connect 

18 homes on 6th & 

7th Aves. 

Public 

Works 

3/14/17 $1,800,000 

EPA, IHS, USDA, 

ANTHC 

Sanitation 

Deficiency 

Database 

Sewer pipe to connect 

33 homes on 6th & 

7th Aves. 

Public 

Works 

3/14/17 $2,150,000 

111



 4 

 
 
Sponsor 

 
 
Name 

 
 
Products/Services 

City 
Depts. 
(Partners) 

 
 

Date 

 
 $ Grant 

$ City Match 
Village Safe Water Planning Grant 

as part of: 

Capital 

Improvement 

Project List 

Preliminary 

engineering report 

and environmental 

report for Avenues 

piped W&S project. 

Public 

Works 

6/2/17 $75,000 

AK Division of 

Homeland Security 

& Emergency 

Mgmt. 

State 

Homeland 

Security 

Program 

Video camera system, 

repeaters for radio 

signals, police active 

shooter training. 

Police, 

Fire, Port, 

Public 

Works 

2/17/17 $1,696,850 

 

$126,055 

was funded 

State of Alaska State Capital 

Requests 

Inst. Corridor, Road 

Around H-Marker 

Lake, Ladder Truck, 

Small Boat Harbor. 

PW, Fire, 

Port 

12/16 $9,670,752 

0 

 

 

112



Memorandum 
Date: November 17, 2017 
To: Pete Williams, City Manager 
From: Bo Foley, IT Director 
Subject: IT Director’s Report 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 

November 2017 Current Events 

 Port Building Live: I managed to get network and telecom services put into the new port 

building during the month of November. With the port director’s help, we moved all their 

equipment over from their connex office to the new building and confirmed everything was 

working.  

 Failed 911 Computer: Since receiving back the main 911 computer for the police dept., we have 

not run into any further power issues with the machine shutting down for no reason. I believe 

this to be completely resolved now.  

 Failed Backups: I had previously been experiencing issues with the city’s backups failing. This 

was due to some software that was running on the servers that had recently been updated and 

was not playing nice with the data assurance solution. Upon review, the software really hasn’t 

been utilized since I took the position of IT director and I had it removed completely from the 

servers in favor of alleviating the problems it was causing with the backups.   

 Police Dept APSIN Non‐Compliance: I am still working with the police dept. to address their 

issues of noncompliance with regards to APSIN and CJIS data. Currently I am awaiting a 

Statement of Declaration that covers their policies and procedures regarding how they handle 

APSIN/CJIS data and how their employees should conduct themselves with said data. With this 

document, we can tailor the behaviors equipment to support the procedures and help get things 

under compliance. 

 Anti‐virus Change: ArcticIT worked with me in changing our anti‐virus/anti‐malware software 

from ESET to Sophos. The new software offers more tools and options necessary to keep the 

network free of viruses and malware.  

 Vacation: I will be taking a two‐week vacation during the last week of November and through 

the first week of December. I have instructed employees to direct computer issues to TotalCare. 

 Business‐As‐Usual: Beyond the above mentioned items, the month has mostly been fixing or 

helping with run‐of‐the‐mill trouble tickets such as email, printing, Caselle access, and login 

problems. 

 

 

Future Plans 

 Server Room Cable Management: I am expecting TecPro on a return trip in a couple weeks to 

assist me with some cable management for the server room change. This shouldn’t be an issue 

to get completed in a single day 

 

 

113



 

 

PORT OF BETHEL 

Post Office Box 1388 
Bethel, Alaska 99559 
Voice: 907-543-2310 
Fax:    907-543-2311 

   
TO:                Peter Williams 

FROM: Allen Wold Port Director 

SUBJECT:  November 2017 Managers Report  

                         
 
 

 Small Boat Harbor 
-Cleaned embankments and everywhere else in the SBH. 
-Pulled 35 boats off the embankments for winter storage. 
-Used 420 Backhoe to a dig trench for drainage on the road headed toward tailings.  
-Getting VINS on vehicles left in the SBH to send them notices about their vehicles. SBH is not a 
storage area. 

 
 

 City Dock/Beach 1 
-Customers are still in and out of the Dock getting to their stored containers. 
-Measured all freight and equipment for winter storage. 
-Grading the Dock and Beach 1 with grader, D-5, and loader. 

 

 Petro Port 
-Pulled up the ladders. 
-Put cement planks on open areas along the wall. 

 
 Port Office  

-Got the internet and phone hooked up at the New Port Office. 
-Relocated Port Office to new Port Office.  
-TC Construction is coming out in December to finish up touch up work. 
-Went over security system with everyone who needs access to the building. 
-Waiting on Pro Dev on the amount we have left over to order furniture. 

 
 Admin 

-Monthly Storage billing for customers.  
 -2 workers went to different depts. (Transit and Public Works) 

-1 Worker has been helping out the Public Works Department to help with the water and sewer.  
 - Port Commission Recorder is also helping out being the Recorder for Community Action Grant 
Technical Review Board. 
  

114



 
 

 Seawall 
-Fixing Cable Fencing/Welding new posts for cable fencing. 
-Picking up around dumpsters daily. 
-Cleared the Float Plane Area of boats and drift for access to the river.  

 

 East Addition 
-Used utility poles as barricades to the open areas of the seawall.  
-15 loads of dirt to Second Street. Knocked piles down with D-5 dozer. 

 
 Misc./Vehicles 

-V&E working on our heavy equip. (Telehandler, D-5 Dozer, and Dump truck) 
-Safety checks along the seawall 
-Picking up as needed where needed. 

 -Safety Meetings. 
 

   
 
 

 
 
               
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
  

115



 

                CITY OF BETHEL      William F. Howell III, Fire Chief  

                             Fire Department                                P.O. Box 1388, Bethel, Alaska 99559  
                                  Phone: (907)-543-2131 

                  Fax: (907)-543-2702  
                                                                     bhowell@cityofbethel.net 

    
 
 

Celebrating 50 Years of Service 
  

      
 
    

DATE:  December 4, 2017 

            
TO:  Pete Williams, City Manager 
 
FROM: Bill Howell, Fire Chief 
 
SUBJECT: October 27, 2017 through November 30, 2017 Manager’s Report  
 
 
Current Events 

 

 The Department is conducting a Fire Fighter-1 graduation ceremony on 

December 1 at 7:00 p.m. at the fire station.  Eight Firefighter recruits are 

expected to graduate. 

   

 A ribbon cutting ceremony is scheduled for Friday, December 15 at noon for the 

support Medic-6 fundraiser.  Sponsors of the project, council and management 

team members are all invited.  

 

 The Department is hosting a Community Open House on Saturday, December 

16 from 2 p.m. to 4 p.m. to celebrate the new ambulance and thank the 

community for supporting the Medic 6 project. 

 

 We are preparing a Request for Proposals for an EMT 2/3 refresher/initial class 

sometime in January 2018. 

 

 The Department’s new Driver/Operator course is up and running.  Eight 

members are taking the preliminary online courses. 

 

 Data is being input into the Department’s new Records Management System 
(RMS) “Emergency Reporting”.  This new RMS places all important documents 
and records within quick reach of any member authorized to access it.  A 
significant improvement in efficiency and operational picture is expected from the 
use of the new RMS.   

116



 

 The specifications for the new ladder truck are in the final stages of review.  We 
are working with the Finance Department to secure a lease company for the 
purchase.  

 The RFP for ambulance billing and collection services is undergoing final review 
by the City Attorney and Finance department and should be issued soon. 

 The Department’s administrative staff continues work on a new Policies, 

Procedures, S.O.P. Rules and Regulations manual for the department.   

Community Planning/Preparedness 

 On 11/09/17 at 8:00 p.m., the Fire Department hosted the DHS Active Shooter 
Preparedness Workshop at the fire station. Responders and community 
members gained an awareness of how active shooter incidents occur and what 
to do during an event. Participants completed several planning exercises.   

 

 The Department is working with Dowl Engineering to determine removal of two 
hydrants from the Institution Corridor water project. 

 

 The Department made a public service announcement for recall of Kidde plastic 
valve fire extinguishers. The CPSC recall is attached to this report.  The recall 
applies to over 30M extinguishers. 

 

Training 

 On 11/07/17 at 7:00 p.m., an EMT Meeting was held at the fire station. 

Responders reviewed airway management procedures and conducted several 

skill drills. 

 On 11/09/17, the Fire Meeting was cancelled. 

 On 11/18/17, the Fire Department started its EMT-1 class with 13 students. Since 

the initial class, students were instructed on the following topics: Introduction to 

Emergency Care, EMS Systems, Well Being of the EMT, Medical Terminology, 

and Medical, Legal and Ethical Issues. 

 On 11/21/17 at 7:00 p.m., an EMT Meeting was held at the fire station. 

Responders were instructed on the administration of intranasal naloxone for 

suspected opioid overdoses and conducted skills check-offs. This medication 

delivery method will be added to our Medical Standing Orders.  

 On 10/26/17 at 7:00 p.m., a Fire Meeting was held at the fire station. Responders 

reviewed and practiced search and rescue techniques. 

 One member received his certification as State of Alaska Emergency Trauma 

Technician, after completing the Department’s hybrid ETT course.  

117



 

Responses 

 

 Between 10/28/17 and 11/29/17, the Bethel Fire Department responded to 108 
EMS and 7 Fire incidents. 
 

 During this period, 68 EMS incidents (62.9%) were alcohol-related.  

 

 On 10/28/2017 Medics responded to grant aviation for the report of a person 
suffering a stroke, the patient was treated and transported to the ER for further 
treatment.  
 

 On 10/30/2017 at 11:04 am Medics responded to the area of Napakiak Drive for 
the report of a person having a Heart Attack. Patient assessed and transported to 
the hospital. 
 

 On 11-10-17 at 8:39 pm, Medics responded to the area of the hospital for the 
report of a vehicle collision. Patient was assessed and transported to the 
hospital. 
 

 On 11-14-17 at 3:42 p.m. medic responded to the area of Tundra Ridge for a 
person not waking up. On arrival, medics found a BPD Officer on scene 
preforming CPR, which was continued by medics. The patient regained a pulse 
during transport to the YKDRH Emergency Department, but later was taken off of 
life support and passed away in Anchorage. 
 

 On 11-14-17 at 8:20 p.m. firefighters responded to the area of the Pit out by the 
Shooting Range for a vehicle fire. Firefighters arrived, found a fully involved truck 
on fire, and extinguished the fire. Firefighters then cleared the scene.  
 

 On 11-25-17 at 10:30 p.m. firefighters responded to AVCP apartments for a 
propane smell. Source located and turned off and apartment ventilated. 

 

Budget/Financial  
 

 All Department accounts are within budget. 

 The department is developing budget figures for future capital needs, firefighting 
foam and firefighter turnouts. 

Grants  
 

 The Department was awarded $7,500 in Code Blue grant funding for a new 
power stretcher for the new ambulance.  This grant is administered by YKHC’s 
EMS office.  Matching funds have been committed by the Volunteer fire fighters 
association (BVESA). 
 

 The Department received $7,500 in funding for portable radios through the 2017 
VFA grant.   

118



 

 
 The Grants Manager reported that a Homeland Security reallocation request was 

approved to supply the fire department with 3 new mobile radios and 12 new 
portables.  A purchase order will be submitted for this purchase soon. 

 
Staffing/recruitment 

 The Department is recruiting for one Firefighter/EMT position. Interviews have 
started.  We will announce our decision sometime in December. 
 

Vehicles & Equipment 
 

 Engine 3, our 1986 Grumman reserve pumper, is still out of service but most 
major repairs are complete and it can be used in an emergency. The vehicle is 
being restocked with equipment. 
 

 The fire department crew is in the process of stocking Medic Six with equipment 

and supplies. 

 
 

FIRE DEPARTMENT VEHICLE STATUS 

Vehicle Type  Year Status 
Medic 4 Ambulance 1999 (Backup ambulance)In service. Leaking airbags.  

Undergoing repairs of air suspension by local shop. 

Medic 5 Ambulance 2003 (Frontline Ambulance) In service.  Frequent no 
starts/dead batteries.  Batteries changed by V&E (Plan 

to remount to new chassis in 2018) 
Medic 6 Ambulance 2017 (Soon-to-be Frontline Ambulance) Outfitting with 

equipment.  Tires need to be studded. 

Engine 4 Pumper 2013 (Frontline pumper) In service, Seat belt sensor 
silenced but still needing repair by V&E.  Ground and 
marker lights changed to LED to reduce maintenance 

Engine 3 Pumper 1986 (Back up pumper) Out of service, Tank repair 
complete.  Awaiting pump test.  In service for 
emegencies 
(Poor overall condition  needs replacement) 

Truck 1  Ladder 
Truck 

1980 (Frontline ladder truck) Out of service, Pump and 
ladder need repair.  Decertified. No work order, 
equipment is obsolete.  (Scheduled for replacement in 2018.) 

Tanker 1 Tanker  
(1500 gallon) 

1980 In service, runs poorly, needs tune up, Work order 
issued. (Undersized for Bethel, poor condition, needs replacement). 

Com 1 Pickup 2014 In service registration completed.  Plow repaired. 

Com 2 Pickup 2004 In service, plow parts ordered, running board needs 
repair. 

 
 

 
 

 

119



12/1/2017 Kidde Recalls Disposable Plastic Fire Extinguishers Due to Failure to Discharge | CPSC.gov

https://www.cpsc.gov/Recalls/2015/Kidde-Recalls-Disposable-Plastic-Fire-Extinguishers/ 1/3

Kidde Recalls Disposable Plastic Fire Extinguishers Due to Failure to Discharge

United States
CONSUMER PRODUCT SAFETY COMMISSION

Recall Summary

Name of product:
Kidde plastic valve disposable fire extinguishers

Hazard:
A faulty valve component can cause the disposable fire extinguishers not to fully discharge when the lever is
repeatedly pressed and released during a fire emergency, posing a risk of injury.

Remedy:
Replace

Recall date:
February 12, 2015

Recall number:
15-079

Consumer Contact:
Kidde toll-free at 800-880-6788 from 8 a.m. to 5 p.m. ET
Monday through Friday, or online at www.kidde.com and
click on Safety Notice for more information.

 

120

http://www.kidde.com/


12/1/2017 Kidde Recalls Disposable Plastic Fire Extinguishers Due to Failure to Discharge | CPSC.gov

https://www.cpsc.gov/Recalls/2015/Kidde-Recalls-Disposable-Plastic-Fire-Extinguishers/ 2/3

Recall Details
Description:
This recall involves 31 models of Kidde disposable fire extinguishers with Zytel  black plastic valves. The recalled extinguishers are

red, white or silver and are either ABC or BC rated. The ratings can be found to the right of the nameplate.  Manufacture dates

included in the recall are July 23, 2013 through October 15, 2014. A 10-digit date code is stamped on the side of the cylinder, near

the bottom. Digits five through nine represent the day and year of manufacture in DDDYY format. Date codes for recalled units

manufactured in 2013 are XXXX 20413 X through XXXX 36513 X and 2014 are XXXX 00114 X through XXXX 28814 X. A

nameplate affixed to the front of the fire extinguisher has one of the following model numbers:

 

10BC

1A 10BC

1A 10BCW

2A10BC

5BC

5BCW

FA10G

FA110

FA5B

FC10

FC110

FC5

FH/ RESSP

FX10

FX10BC

FX10K

FX210

FX210R

FX210W

FX340GW

FX340SC

FX5II

KFH Twin

M110 Twin

M5 Twin

Mariner 10

Mariner 110

Mariner 5

Mariner 5 G

®

121



12/1/2017 Kidde Recalls Disposable Plastic Fire Extinguishers Due to Failure to Discharge | CPSC.gov

https://www.cpsc.gov/Recalls/2015/Kidde-Recalls-Disposable-Plastic-Fire-Extinguishers/ 3/3

RESSP

XL 5MR

 

Remedy:
Consumers should immediately contact Kidde for a replacement fire extinguisher.

Incidents/Injuries:
Kidde has received 11 reports of the recalled fire extinguishers failing to discharge as expected. No injuries have been reported.

Sold At:
Home Depot, Menards, Walmart and other department, home and hardware stores nationwide, and online from August 2013

through November 2014 for between $18 and $65, and about $200 for model XL 5MR.

Manufactured In:
Mexico

Units:
About 4.6 million units in the U.S. and 175,000 in Canada

122



 

       Bethel Police Department | P.O. Box 809 | 157 Salmonberry Rd. | Bethel, Alaska 99559 

                 Telephone 907-543-3781 | Fax 907-543-5086 | www.cityofbethel.org 

 

City of Bethel 

PPoolliiccee  DDeeppaarrttmmeenntt 
              
 

 

November 2017 Monthly Report 

 

 

Personnel: 

 

Both Officer Shawgo and M. Oulton graduated from the Public Safety 

Academy On November 9th and have started their field training.  CSP 

Wesdahl continues to progress while working on his own.  Unfortunately, 

CSP Hughes has separated from service with BPD.  We are currently 

actively searching for his replacement.     

 

Vivian Bosgal continues to progress with her training as a Public Safety 

Dispatcher.  We hope to have her ready to cover shifts on her own by 

1/1/2018.  Also unfortunately, PSD Darlene Kiunya, separated from service 

as well.  That leaves the supervisor position and one dispatcher position 

vacant.  Both positions are advertised at this time.  A previous dispatcher has 

been rehired, on a temporary basis, to help cover the shortage until staffing 

improves. 

 

Officer Scott Kvittem has resigned effective mid-December.  That will leave 

a total of three vacant officer positions.  At this time, background 

investigations are being conducted on two applicants.  Neither of the 

applicants are currently certified police officers and will have to attend the 

Public Safety Academy in Sitka.      

 

Operations: 

 

There were 1,935 calls for service between October 27th  and November 30th.  

This is approximately 150 more calls than the previous month.  111 of those 

calls resulted in police case reports being generated, almost double from the 

previous month.  A total of 45 misdemeanor and 16 felony cases were 

investigated.  Again, significant increases from the previous month.  Both 

domestic violence related calls and property crimes increased significantly.   

 

123



 

       Bethel Police Department | P.O. Box 809 | 157 Salmonberry Rd. | Bethel, Alaska 99559 

                 Telephone 907-543-3781 | Fax 907-543-5086 | www.cityofbethel.org 

 

Several burglaries were investigated, mostly in the City Subdivision area, 

and approximately $3,000 was stolen from the till during bingo at the VFW.  

The bingo theft was solved and a suspect has been arrested and charged.      

 

There were a total of 489 reports of intoxicated pedestrians in this period.  

That is down nearly 100 reports from last month which was permanent 

dividend month.  The remains of a male missing since mid-September were 

located near the Oscarville trail on November 25th.  Another male was 

reported to be lost on November 18th while trying to walk to Napakiak.  He 

was subsequently located, deceased, on November 27th inside the restricted 

area of the airport.   Alcohol is a suspected factor in both of these cases.   

 

On November 30th, Mike Gottlieb, the Assistant Director of the Executive 

Office of the President, Office of National Drug Control Policy, traveled to 

Bethel along with the Special Agent in Charge of the Anchorage Office of 

the FBI, the U.S. Attorney for the District of Alaska, along with several 

other dignitaries of the State of Alaska and met with Chief Waldron and 

Acting Lieutenant Davis.  The primary topic of discussion was drug 

distribution and interdiction on the YK Delta region.  The state of Alaska is 

applying for a High Intensity Drug Trafficking Area (HIDTA) designation 

and potential grant funding that would come with that designation.  

 

Animal Control: 

 

There were 54 animal control calls for service for the month and 46 calls for 

service for pound duties.  Again, both are significant increases from the 

previous period.    

 

 

  
 

 

 

124



 

City Clerk’s Report  
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

125



1 of 1 cityclerk@cityofbethel.net  

907-543-1384 

 

City of Bethel, Alaska 
City Clerk’s Office 
 

Council Meetings and Events 
December 12, Regular Meeting 
December 21, 2017 Joint Task Force Meeting –Deadline for agenda items will be December 13, 2017.  
 
 
 
 

Community Action Grant- The first meeting of the Board was held on November 29th. The Office is working 
with the recorder of the Committee to get the materials updated as provided by the members and prepare 
for the next meeting. Administration has assigned an Ex Officio member to the body who will be attending 
the meeting in January.   

 
Committee/Commission Training - The Office provided training to the Committee/Commission Ex Officio 
Members and Recorders.  
We are also preparing for annual training for the Committee/Commission Members.  
 
Passports- This was a busy year for passports, the office is working on the close out of the passport year and 
issuing their annual report to the Department of Justice. The City Clerk is also working on completing the 
required annual Passport Acceptance Agent training.  

 
Hazards and Nuisances – The Office is working closely with the Planning Department on the Nuisance 
Abatement procedures for 220 Osage. We are in the process of notifying the last known owner of the 
property and will be holding a hearing in January (we thought the 3rd but are waiting on another notice, the 
date may need to be changed). Much time has been spent researching the property and possible owners.  
 
Election Recap- The City Clerk’s Office is preparing a summary of the City’s Election processes which includes 
coordination with State on State and Federal Elections. As provided previously, the Office faces growing 
concerns of the impacts to the City’s financial situation if the Office continues to provide the level of 
support the State has become accustomed. As a reminder, in 2008 the City was involved in a suite Nick V. 
City of Bethel, st al. from the ACLU that resulted in significant legal costs to the City and results in no 
changes to the City’s Election procedures except translated written ballots used by the City’s Election 
Officials.    
 
Public Request for Information – The Office worked closely with the Police Department at correcting public 
records processes to help ensure timely responses to submitted requests.  
A training on Public Records and the maintained/disclosure of records is being updated. The Office hopes to 
have a training provided by the end of December.  
 
 

126

mailto:cityclerk@cityofbethel.net


 

 
 

Executive Session   
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

127



 
 

 

 

 
ALASKA COURT SYSTEM 

 
BETHEL COURTHOUSE LEASE 

Project Number BET-L-18-0003 
 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 
 

November 20, 2017 
 

1. Solicitation 
 
The Alaska Court System (ACS) is seeking proposals from firms qualified and interested in 
providing a leased courthouse facility to accommodate the Alaska Court System in Bethel.  
The leased facility shall be constructed, remodeled and/or built out to provide 12,165 square 
feet of net usable space, including finishes, amenities and services described in this RFP.     
 
Location:      Bethel Alaska  

Description of Lease:    Approximately 12,165 NUSF 

Period of Lease:    Fifteen (15) years with Two (2) Five (5)-year options to 
renew. 

Lease Commencement:    No earlier than March 31, 2019, no later than October 1 
2019  

NOTE:  The Lease Commencement date is an 
evaluation criterion. 

Annual Budgeted Lease Rental:   Not to exceed (NTE) $300,000  
NOTE:  The Lease Rental amount does not include the 
utilities and services to be contracted separately by 
ACS as described in the attached General Lease 
Conditions.  The NTE Lease Rental amount is an 
evaluation criterion. 

 
Issuing Office Information: Contact Jack Bailey, Alaska Court System Facilities 

Manager, for further information.   
Phone:  907-264-8283;  Fax: 907-264-8296 
Email:  jbailey@akcourts.us 

 

2. Selection Process and Basis for Award:   
 
This document sets forth information regarding the Landlord (LL) selection process for a 
future  Lease Contract.  Proposals will be evaluated based on cost and technical submittals.  
The intent is to select a LL offering the best combination of lease experience, references, 
and yearly cost; and proposed court facility delivery schedule, facility characteristics, and 
provided amenities, for a 15 year term lease contract.  The LL’s Price Proposal will not be the 
sole consideration. The ACS will award a Lease Contract to the responsible proposer whose 
proposal, conforming to the RFP requirements, received the highest total number of 
evaluation points, price and other factors considered, pending availability of funding.   

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 

128



Bethel Lease RFP  November 16, 2017 

Page 2 of 4 REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 
   

 

 

3. Pre-Submittal Conference:   
 

A Pre-Submittal Conference for all interested parties will be held on December 13th, 2017, at 
2:00pm in Courtroom 6 located at the Bethel Courthouse at 204 Chief Eddie Hoffman 
Highway, Bethel AK. Attendance is optional.  Participation by teleconference will be 
available.  
 

4. Submittal Information and Deadline: 
 

To be considered, respondents must deliver submittals in a sealed package to the address 
below, on or before the deadline, and in the number of copies indicated below. 
 
Deadline:  Proposals will be accepted until February 15th, 2018 at 

2:00 PM AKST. Any proposal not received by that date 
and time will not be considered.  Proposals will be 
collected for review by the selection committee as 
outlined below.  They will not be publicly opened or read 
aloud. 

 
 
Address Responses To:     Jack Bailey – Facilities Manager 
  Alaska Court System 
  820 W 4th Ave. 
  Anchorage, Alaska  99501 
 
Mark Submittals as Follows:  Bethel Courthouse Lease Proposal 
 
Required Number of Copies: Three (3) copies 
 
Note to Proposers:   Faxes, facsimiles, or electronic submissions will not be 

accepted; they will be rejected as non-responsive.  
 
Any costs incurred in response to this request are at the Proposer’s sole risk and will not be 
reimbursed by the ACS. The ACS reserves the right to reject all proposals and proceed 
utilizing a different process. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

129



Bethel Lease RFP  November 16, 2017 

Page 3 of 4 REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 
   

 

 

 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS  

        

 

 # PAGES 
 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS ....................................................................................... 2  

1. Solicitation ..............................................................................................................  
2. Selection Process and Basis of Award ...................................................................  
3. PreSubmittal Conference .......................................................................................  
4. Submittal Information and Deadline .......................................................................  
 
SECTION A – INSTRUCTION TO OFFERORS ............................................................. 4  

1. Definitions ...............................................................................................................  
2. Authority .................................................................................................................  
3. This Procurement is Governed ...............................................................................  
4. Availability of Contract Documents .........................................................................   
5. Use of ACS Provided Design Information...............................................................  
6. Inclusion in Planholder’s List ..................................................................................  
7. Completeness of Contract Documents ...................................................................   
8. Questions and Explanations Regarding the RFP ...................................................  
9. ACS Contact ...........................................................................................................  
10. RFP Amendements ................................................................................................  
11. RFP Protests ..........................................................................................................  
12. RFP Preparation .....................................................................................................  
13. RFP Offers .............................................................................................................  
14. Timeliness of Proposals .........................................................................................  
15. Reservation of Rights .............................................................................................  
16. Modification or Withdrawal of Proposals ................................................................  
17. Documents required for Proposal ...........................................................................  
18. Solication and Responsiveness of Offers ...............................................................  
19. Responsibility Requirement ....................................................................................  
20. Confidential or Proprietary Information ...................................................................  
21. Preferences ............................................................................................................  
22. EEO and Federal Civil Rights Compliance .............................................................  
23. Taxes......................................................................................................................  
24. Evaluation and Scoring Confidentiality ...................................................................  
25. Alaska Little Davis Bacon Act .................................................................................  
26. Employment Preference in Zones of Underemployment ........................................  
 
SECTION B – RFP DELIVERABLES AND SELECTION PROCESS ............................ 8 

PART I - Selection Process  ..............................................................................................  
PART II - Criteria Evaluation  ............................................................................................  
PART III - Documents Required for Proposal ...................................................................  

130



Bethel Lease RFP  November 16, 2017 

Page 4 of 4 REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 
   

 

PART IV – Technical Criteria ............................................................................................  
PART V – Cost Criteria .....................................................................................................  
 PART IV.5 – Building Questionnaire  ................................................................... 2  

PART V – Price Proposal Form  ........................................................................... 1  
 PART VI – Proposal Submittal Information & Certifications ................................. 2  
 
SECTION C – LEASE REQUIREMENTS 

General Lease Conditions  .............................................................................................. 8 
Supplementary Lease Conditions ................................................................................... 1 
Technical Lease Requirements ..................................................................................... 20 
Appendices 
A.  Lease Space Requirements ................................................................................. 2 
B. Schematic Floor Plan of Court Facility ................................................................. 2 
C. Space Programming Sheets ............................................................................... 30 
D.       Typical Courtroom Layout - Superior .................................................................... 1 

1) Judge’s Bench Casework ................................................................................ 3 
2) Not Used  
3) Typical Mobile Witness Stand & Platform ....................................................... 2 
4) Fixed Courtroom Modesty Wall  ...................................................................... 1 
5) Jury & Judge’s Casework Platform Construction ............................................ 1 

E.  Server & Communications Room Equipment Layout ........................................... 1 
F. - I. Unused  ..................................................................................................................  
J.  Sound Isolation Wall ............................................................................................. 1 
 
SECTION D – LEASE CONTRACT (SAMPLE)  ............................................................ 4  

 

131



Bethel Lease RFP                                                            November 16, 2017 

Page 1 of 4 INSTRUCTIONS TO OFFERORS  
 

 

SECTION A – INSTRUCTIONS TO OFFERORS  
 

 
 
INSTRUCTIONS TO OFFERORS 
 
1 DEFINITIONS:  Throughout this Request for Proposal (RFP) the term "Offeror”, “Proposer”, “Proposal” and "Offer” 

are utilized.  For purposes of this RFP "Offeror" and “Proposer” are defined as the respondents to the RFP and 
"Proposal" and “Offer” are the response submitted by an Offeror.  Where the wording “day” is utilized in this RFP, it 
is defined as a calendar day, unless otherwise specified.. 
 

2 AUTHORITY:  The ACS Facilities Manager has authority to act as agent for the ACS. Offerors are cautioned 
that instructions or interpretations will be binding upon the ACS only if they are issued by the Facilities Manager 
in writing.  

 
3 THIS PROCUREMENT IS GOVERNED:  This Request for Proposal (RFP) is governed by the Alaska Court 

System (ACS) Procurement Guidelines, adopted by the administrative director of the ACS effective September 
25, 2013.  Copies of the Procurement Guidelines are available without charge from the ACS, Procurement 
Office, 820 4th Ave, Anchorage, Alaska 99501, telephone 907-264-8224.   
 

4 AVAILABILITY OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS:  The RFP documents are available for at no cost to the 
Offeror by the following methods: 1) Pick-up from the Facilities Office, 820 West 4

th
 Avenue, Anchorage, 

Alaska; 3)  Pick-up from the Bethel Courthouse Clerk’s Office, 204 Chief Eddie Hoffman Hwy, Bethel, Alaska; 
3) Transmission via regular USPS mail, 4) Available online at http://aws.state.ak.us/OnlinePublicNotices/; or; 5) 
Email (PDF package) to Offeror. Requests for RFP documents are made to Facilities Office, Jack Bailey, 
Facilities Manager at 907-264-8283 or Dawn Molina, Leasing Manager, at 907-264-8284. 

a. When requesting RFP Documents either by pick-up, by mail or e-mail from the court system, prospective 
Offerors must provide firm and contact names, address, fax and phone numbers and e-mail address for 
inclusion on an RFP Planholder’s List. Additionally, if downloading RFP documents from online, 
prospective Offerors should contact the ACS Facilities office to provide this same information.  Only RFP 
Planholders registered on this list will receive any addenda or other correspondence regarding this 
RFP.   

b. RFP Documents may also be available from commercial plans rooms throughout the state, but note that 
access of the RFP documents from these sources will not register prospective Offerors on the RFP 
Planholders List, so will not entitle these Offerors to receive any addenda or other correspondence 
regarding this RFP.  

 
5 USE OF ACS PROVIDED DESIGN INFORMATION: The drawings and technical requirements provided in 

Appendix A through Appendix J, which are part of the RFP package, were supplied for the purpose of allowing 
the Offerors to submit information in their proposals that is applicable to this type of facility and construction. 
The Offerors are not expected to provide design, cost estimating or additional services other than as 
specifically required to comply with Section B – RFP Deliverables.  
 

6 INCLUSION IN PLANHOLDER’S LIST:  It is the responsibility of the Offeror to ensure that the Offeror’s firm is 
placed on the Plan Holder’s List by submitting accurate information to the ACS at the time project documents 
are ordered. Addenda, notices and other information regarding the proposal phase and award of this project will 
only be sent to those firms on the Plan Holder’s Lists for this project 

 
7 COMPLETENESS OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS: Offerors should read this solicitation carefully and review 

all instructions herein. The submission of a proposal is considered a representation that the Offeror has 
examined the Contract Documents to make certain that all sheets and pages were provided and that the 
Offeror understands the specific work and services required to comply with this RFP. Incomplete or incorrect 
submittals may be rejected as not conforming to the essential requirements of the Request for Proposal (RFP).  

 
8 QUESTIONS AND EXPLANATIONS REGARDING THE RFP:  Any Offeror wanting an explanation or 

interpretation of the solicitation, specifications, provisions, etc, must request it in writing no later than ten (10) 
days before the written proposal due date. Failure to bring any defect in the solicitation to the attention of the 
ACS by that time will result in waiver of the defect.  

132

http://aws.state.ak.us/OnlinePublicNotices/


Bethel Lease RFP                                                            November 16, 2017 

Page 2 of 4 INSTRUCTIONS TO OFFERORS  
 

a. Written questions must be submitted to the ACS at the E-mail address or Fax number shown for inquiries 
on the face of this RFP. All inquiries must include the RFP number. 

b. Oral explanations or instructions given by ACS personnel or others will not be binding. Any information 
given to an Offeror concerning the solicitation will be furnished promptly to all other Offerors, as an 
Addendum to the solicitation, if that information is necessary in submitting proposals or if the lack of it 
would be prejudicial to any other Offerors. 

 
9 ACS CONTACT: No contact regarding this RFP with any firm or person affiliated with the ACS other than as 

identified in this RFP or identified by the Facilities Manager in the Pre-Submittal Conference is permitted. Any 
such contact by an Offeror not in compliance with the terms of this RFP may result in rejection of that Offeror’s 
proposal.  
 

10 RFP AMENDMENTS: The ACS may amend, extend, or cancel this RFP as provided in the Procurement 
Guidelines. The RFP may be canceled before the submittal deadline in whole or in part when the Facilities 
Manager determines in writing that such action is in the best interest of the court system. 

To the extent practicable, the ACS shall give such notice to all interested parties, but will not be responsible to 
those parties for receipt of this information. It is the Offeror’s responsibility to ascertain prior to submittal that 
any or all Addenda to the solicitation have been received. If an Offeror fails to notify the ACS prior to the 
submittal deadline of an error in the RFP or the Offeror’s proposal, such proposal shall be submitted at the 
Offeror’s own risk, and if a contract is awarded as a result of such proposal, the Offeror shall not be entitled to 
additional compensation by reason of the error or its later correction.  
 

11 RFP PROTESTS:  Offerors are requested to carefully review this entire RFP as soon as it is received for 
defects and questionable or objectionable content.  A person desiring to protest the provisions of this RFP or 
the award must comply with the applicable provisions of ACS Procurement Guideline 4-40.02.   

a. Protest Prior to the RFP submittal deadline - Questions, objections or comments regarding any ambiguity, 
conflict, discrepancy, omission, or other errors in this RFP must be reported in writing to the ACS Facilities 
Manager at the submittal location shown on the face of the Solicitation at the front of this RFP not later than 
ten (10) days prior to the proposal submittal deadline.    

b. Any clarifications, changes or corrections to the RFP will be made only by written amendment issued by the 
ACS and distributed to all Offerors. Failure to report ambiguities, conflicts, discrepancies, omissions or 
other errors in a timely manner to the Facilities Manager will result in waiver of those issues.  

c. Protest after a Notice of Intent to Award: An interested party may protest an award under this solicitation no 
later than ten (10) days after issuance of the Notice of Intent to Award. The protest must comply with the 
applicable provisions of ACS Procurement guideline 4-401.  If a protest is sustained in whole or in part, the 
protestor’s sole remedy is the successful protestor’s documented reasonable proposal preparation costs. 

 
12 RFP PREPARATION:  Except as provided in Procurement Guideline 4-401.03.8, the ACS shall not be liable for 

any costs incurred by an Offeror in response to this RFP or any subsequent requirements related to this RFP.  
 

13 RFP OFFERS: Offers made in response to this RFP shall be good and firm for a period of 60 days from the 
date of bid opening. All offers and acceptance resulting from this RFP are limited to the terms and conditions 
contained in this document and its attachments. 

 
14 TIMELINESS OF PROPOSALS:  It is the responsibility of the Offeror to ensure that the Proposal and any 

Proposal modifications are received by the Facilities Manager before the scheduled RFP deadline.  Late 
Proposals, including Proposals mis-delivered to other ACS divisions, shall not be accepted.   

Sealed Proposals cannot be faxes.  Faxed Proposal modifications only shall be accepted providing that the 
faxed modification is received by the ACS Facilities Manager by the RFP deadline and that the modification 
amends a Proposal which was received before the RFP deadline.  The fax number of the ACS Facilities Office 
is (907) 264-8296. 

 
15 RESERVATION OF RIGHTS: The ACS reserves all its rights including the right to reject all offers and cancel 

this solicitation, and to re-offer the RFP in the same or a different procurement format or to negotiate such 
contracts with other Offerors in the order of ranking.  

a. The ACS may reject any and all proposals.  A proposal may be rejected if it does not conform in all material 
respects to the requirements of the RFP, if it is incomplete, if it contains a material alteration from the RFP, 

133



Bethel Lease RFP                                                            November 16, 2017 

Page 3 of 4 INSTRUCTIONS TO OFFERORS  
 

or if the Offeror changes or qualifies the terms or conditions of the RFP in a material manner which gives 
the Offeror a competitive advantage over other Offerors. 

b. The ACS reserves the right to negotiate with the lower ranked Offerors if, in its sole discretion, the ACS 
determines that to do so is in the best interest of the ACS. 

c. Offerors are specifically advised that there will not be a contractual relationship between the ACS and the 
Offeror until a written agreement is executed by an authorized agent of the ACS. The ACS shall not be 
liable for any cost incurred by an Offeror prior to execution of a contract and issuance of a Notice to 
Proceed.  
 

16 MODIFICATION OR WITHDRAWAL OF PROPOSALS: Modifications to or withdrawal may be allowed only if 
received prior to the deadline for receipt of the proposal. No changes to or withdrawals of the proposal will be 
permitted after the time for receipt specified.  
 

17 DOCUMENTS REQUIRED FOR PROPOSAL:  Reference Section B – RFP Deliverables, Evaluation 
Criteria and Selection Process for all information regarding the required proposal submittals, including 
delivery details and packaging format, number of copies and originals, required forms, and signatures.  
Proposal (including all items indicated in Section B) must be submitted to the ACS location and by the 
Submittal Deadline designated in the Solicitation at the front of this RFP.  

 
18 SOLICITATION AND RESPONSIVENESS OF OFFERS:  The solicitation requirements have been established 

to obtain full and accurate representation of the Offeror’s responsiveness and responsibility, which will enable 
the ACS to evaluate proposals and award contracts for providing the services requested. The ACS in its sole 
discretion will determine responsiveness and final evaluation results for this RFP as provided herein. 

a. All responses to this RFP shall be subject to verification by the ACS. Any proposal which contains material 
or information which cannot be verified or otherwise confirmed for purposes of determining responsibility or 
responsiveness to the solicitation may result in rejection of the proposal.  

b. Proposals with minor irregularities will be considered responsive and accepted if the Facilities Manager 
determines that acceptance is in the best interest of the court system.  "Minor Informalities" means matters 
of form rather than substance which are evident from the submittal, or are insignificant matters that have a 
negligible effect on price, quantity, quality, delivery, or contractual conditions and can be waived or 
corrected without prejudice to other Offerors. 

c. Any deviations from the RFP requirements must be fully disclosed in detail as part of the submittal. 
Proposals submitted on other than the prescribed forms contained in this RFP may be rejected. Offerors 
may copy the forms contained in the RFP for use in their proposals, but substitute forms or formats are 
unacceptable.  The ACS expressly denies any responsibility or liability for a proposal submitted on the 
basis of an incomplete set of Contract Documents.  

 
19 RESPONSIBILITY REQUIREMENT:  A contract will be awarded only to a responsible Offeror, who 

demonstrates the capability in all respects to perform fully the contract requirements and has the integrity and 
reliability which will assure good faith performance. A Offeror shall be declared non-responsible and the 
proposal shall be rejected when:  

a. The Offeror is in arrears on taxes due the State. 

b. The Offeror has failed to perform satisfactorily on a previous contract with the ACS, another state agency, 
or is not in a position to perform this contract; 

c. The Offeror does not have a state of Alaska business license 

d. If construction is necessary to comply with the RFP requirements, the Offeror’s proposed contractor is not 
licensed as a general contractor in the state of Alaska. 

See ACS Procurement Guidelines Section 2-213 for responsibility criteria.  A determination by the Facilities 
Manager that an Offeror is not responsible may be protested. 
 

20 CONFIDENTIAL OR PROPRIETARY INFORMATION:  Any documents submitted in response to the RFP will 
be considered confidential until a Notice of Intent to Award a contract is issued. After the Notice of Intent to 
Award is issued, the proposal will be become public information.  Should an Offeror submit information that 
they consider proprietary of the type not subject to public review (typically financial statements, tax records, and 
personnel/personal information), the Offeror may request the ACS to keep such information confidential.   The 

134



Bethel Lease RFP                                                            November 16, 2017 

Page 4 of 4 INSTRUCTIONS TO OFFERORS  
 

material not be disclosed by the ACS under the Public Records Act must meet the requirements of ACS 
Procurement Guideline 1-107. 
 

21 PREFERENCES:  Bidder Preferences do not apply to leases per AS 36.30.321(j). 
 
22 EEO AND FEDERAL CIVIL RIGHTS COMPLIANCE:  By signature on the submitted Proposal Form the Offeror 

certifies compliance with the applicable portions of the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 and the Equal Employment 
Opportunity Act and the regulations issued thereunder by the State and Federal Governments.  If any Offeror fails 
to comply with the Act or Regulations issued thereunder, the ACS reserves the right to terminate the contract. 
 

23 TAXES:  All proposals shall exclude federal, state and local sales taxes.  However, if the Offeror believes that 
certain taxes are properly payable by the ACS such taxes may be listed separately, directly below the proposal 
price.  The ACS is exempt from federal excise tax under Registration No. 92-6001185. 
 

24 EVALUATION AND SCORING CONFIDENTIALITY: The Selection Committee evaluations, scoring and 
ranking are confidential until the Notice of Intent to Award is issued. After the Notice of Intent to Award is 
issued, this information will be public information.  
 

25 ALASKA LITTLE DAVIS BACON ACT:  Prospective Offerors are advised that construction or remodeling in 
connection with the contract is subject to AS 36.05.010.  The minimum wages to be paid various classes of 
laborers, mechanics, or field surveyors are shown in the attached wage determination.  The rate of wages shall 
be adjusted to the wage rate under AS 36.05.010.   

a. Before commencing construction of improvements on the premises, the lessor shall designate a primary 
contractor for purposes of this section.  Before work commences, the primary contractor shall file a notice 
of work with the Department of Labor and Workforce Development, with a copy to the Alaska Court System 
Facilities Manager.  The notice of work must list the leasehold improvement work to be performed by each 
contractor who will perform any portion of the leasehold improvement work and the contract price being 
paid to each contractor.  The primary contractor shall pay all filling fees for each contractor performing on 
the contract, including a filing fee bases on the contract price being paid for work performed by the primary 
contractor’s employees.  The filing fee payable shall be the sum of all fees calculated for each contractor.  
The filing fee shall be one percent of each contractor’s contract price.  The total filing fee payable by the 
primary contractor under this sub-section may not exceed $5,000.  There is no fee for a contract under 
which the total amount payable by the contracting agency is less than $25,000.  In this subsection, 
“contractor” means an employer who is using employees to perform leasehold improvement work on the 
premises. 

 
26 EMPLOYMENT PREFERENCE IN ZONES OF UNDEREMPLOYMENT:  The Alaska Department of Labor and 

Workforce Development has determined that certain areas of Alaska are Zones of Underemployment.  If the 
services to be performed under this procurement are construction services wholly or partly within a Zone of 
Underemployment, the contractor must give employment preference to Alaska residents as determined by the 
Alaska Department of Labor and Workforce Development.  Failure to comply with this requirement can result in 
substantial civil and criminal penalties under AS 36.10.100.  Within 20 days after award of a contract under this 
procurement, the Alaska Court System will report the contract to the Alaska Department of Labor and 
Workforce Development, which will be responsible for administration and enforcement of employment 
preference requirements.   Bidders can obtain the Alaska Department of Labor and Workforce Development 
Employment Preference Determination at the following internet address: http://labor.alaska.gov/lss/forms/res-
hire-notice-2013.pdf.  For further information, contact the Alaska Department of Labor and Workforce 
Development, Division of Wage and Hour Administration, at 907-269-4900. 
 

 
 

135

http://labor.alaska.gov/lss/forms/res-hire-notice-2013.pdf
http://labor.alaska.gov/lss/forms/res-hire-notice-2013.pdf


Bethel Lease RFP                                                            November 16, 2017 

Page 1 of 8 RFP DELIVERABLES, CRITERIA EVALUATION, SELECTION PROCESS 
 

 

SECTION B – RFP DELIVERABLES, EVALUATION CRITERIA, AND SELECTION PROCESS 
 

 

PART I – SELECTION PROCESS       

This procurement process represents an innovative procurement as permitted by AS 36.30.308. All Offerors should 
review this process description prior to responding to the RFP.  
 
A. Offerors will submit a Combined Technical and Price Proposal.  Each Offeror’s proposal will be reviewed to 

establish compliance with the requirements of this RFP. At a minimum, and before further consideration is 
given, the following criteria must be met: 

a. Part V Price Proposal Form must be fully completed, and pricing must not exceed “MAXIMUM” limits 
stated in Price Criteria 1 and Price Criteria 2. 

b. Part VI Proposal Submittal Information and Certifications must be submitted and signed.  
c. Proposal Guarantee must accompany the Proposal as noted in PART III, Paragraph E. 
d. Proof of compliance with the statutory requirements for licensing by the State of Alaska.  
e. Absence of material defect in the proposal.  

 
B. Proposals will be evaluated by a committee selected by ACS. The Technical and Price criteria to be used in 

evaluation is outlined in PART IV TECHNICAL CRITERIA and Part V PRICE PROPOSAL CRITERIA below. 
The Technical criteria in PART IV has been assigned a maximum point total and the committee members will 
independently assign a score to each proposal resulting in a numerical total technical score for each proposal.  
The Price criterion will be evaluated and scored as determined in accordance with Part V to determine the 
preliminary ranking. 

 
C. The total score for each Offeror will be obtained by adding together the scores determined for the PART IV 

TECHNICAL CRITERIA and Part V PRICE PROPOSAL CRITERIA. The order of ranking shall be as follows: 
highest scored Offeror will be ranked first, next highest scored second, and so on.   
 

D. After completion of individual ratings, the committee will meet to discuss proposals. Evaluators may alter their 
ratings after these discussions; however, any changes must be based solely on the criteria set forth in PART IV 
TECHNICAL CRITERIA. Once each committee member’s total technical scores are finalized they will be 
assigned weights to obtain weighted scores. These weighted scores will be added together and then divided by 
the number of evaluators to obtain an average weighted technical score. Any Offeror whose proposal does not 
meet minimum qualifications will not be considered further.  
 

E. The Selection Committee may discuss factual knowledge of, and may investigate Offerors' prior work 
experience and performance, including past projects, property and lease contacts referenced in proposal, 
available written evaluations, or other relevant information, and may contact listed references or other persons 
knowledgeable of an Offeror, Offeror’s proposed contractor's and/or a subcontractor's past performance. The 
ACS reserves the right to request site visits of the Offerors’ offices or previous projects prior to or after the 
submission of proposals. Factors such as overall experience relative to the proposed contract, quality of work, 
control of cost, and ability to meet schedules may be addressed. If any issues of significant concern to the 
proposed contract are identified, the Selection Committee may 

a. Deem the submitting RFP to be unqualified;  

b. Treat the omission or inaccuracy as immaterial; or  

c. Request clarification or supplemental information in accordance with Paragraph F, below.  

F. The ACS intends to evaluate proposals and make award without discussions with Offerors. However, ACS 
reserves the right to conduct discussions if the Facilities Manager later determines them to be necessary. 
Therefore, Offerors are advised to submit complete proposals with their best terms and pricing and not expect 
an opportunity to revise their proposals at a later time in the process. The Selection Committee may, but are 
not required to, conduct discussions with Offerors whose proposals are determined to have a reasonable 
likelihood of being selected for award. The purpose of the discussions is to obtain full understanding of, and 
ensure responsiveness to, the solicitation requirements (AS 36.30.240). The Offerors may be requested to 
submit written clarifications of their proposal. The technical scores may be adjusted in response to discussions 
and clarifications submitted by the Offerors. Offerors whose proposals are determined to have a reasonable 
likelihood of being selected for award may be requested to submit Best and Final Offers (BAFO) for final 
Selection Committee evaluation. 

136



Bethel Lease RFP                                                            November 16, 2017 

Page 2 of 8 RFP DELIVERABLES, CRITERIA EVALUATION, SELECTION PROCESS 
 

G. After discussions and BAFO's, if any, Selection Committee members will determine the final scoring and 
ranking for contract negotiations by evaluating written and oral responses using only the criteria set forth in Part 
II of this RFP.  

H. Offerors will be advised of the name of the Offeror whose proposal is selected by the ACS via the issuance of a 
Notice of Intent to Award. A copy of this Notice will be provided to all Offerors. 
 

PART II – CRITERIA EVALUATION  

Each proposal will initially have a maximum of 200 points available for award. Final scoring of the combined 
proposals for each Offeror will be weighted at 60% for the Technical Criteria and 40% for the Price Criterion. For 
example, if an Offeror’s Technical Criteria had a score of 200.0 points and its companion Price Criterion had a 
score of 167.4 points the final weighted score would be 187.0 [(200 X. 0.60) + (167.4 X. 0.40) = 187.0]. The Offeror 
with the highest score will be ranked 1st, and the next highest 2nd, and so on.  

Example:  

Offeror A (Ranked 2
nd

 )  
Technical Evaluation Points  200.0   Weighted Points @ 60%  120.00  
Price Evaluation Points   167.4   Weighted Points @ 40%    67.00  

Total Weighted Score   187.00  
Offeror B (Ranked 1

st
 )  

Technical Evaluation Points  185.0   Weighted Points @ 60%  111.00  
Price Evaluation Points   180.0   Weighted Points @ 40%    72.00  

Total Weighted Score   183.00  
Offeror C (Ranked 3

rd
 )  

Technical Evaluation Points  150.0   Weighted Points @ 60%    90.00  
Price Evaluation Points   200.0   Weighted Points @ 40%    80.00  

Total Weighted Score   170.00  
 

PART III – DOCUMENTS REQUIRED FOR PROPOSAL 

Offerors must submit the following documents, properly completed and executed, within a sealed envelope, no later 
than the time of the deadline shown, and to the address shown, in the Request For Proposals, Submittal 
Information and Deadline.  Seal Proposal documents in an envelope with the project number and RFP submittal 
deadline marked on the front of the envelope.  Bids not including all of the items noted below in A, C (if 
applicable), D, E, F and G will be rejected. Documents to be Submitted for PART IV Technical Criteria: 

A. Documents to be Submitted for PART IV Technical Criteria:  

1. Response Technical Criteria 1 through 3:  Submit up to four (4) single sided 8-½ x 11 sheets with 
distinct responses to each Technical Criteria 1 through 3 stapled together.  Font size shall be no less than 
10pt. Criteria responses must be titled, numbered and assembled in the order of Criterion1 through 3.   

2. Response to Technical Criteria 4: Submit Floor Plan(s), Site Plan, Vicinity Site Map, and Photographs, 
Elevations, and Narrative Statement (if applicable) of proposed building and property.  Floor Plan(s) must be 
shown on a sheet size of 11 x 17 – up to two (2) sheets is allowed to show the full lease area layout. Site 
Plan and Photos and/or Exterior Elevations may be smaller.  Staple all plans, map, photos and elevations 
together. Narrative Statement should be on up to two (2) single sided 8 ½” x 11” sheets of paper stapled 
together.  Font size shall be no less than 10pt.  

3. Response to Technical Criteria 5:  Submit Proof of Ownership documents and Building Questionnaire 
(Appendix PART IV.5) stapled together. Paper clip to the back of Criteria 4 Response. 

4. Response to Technical Criteria 6:  Submit one (1) single sided 8-½ x 11 sheet listing all Design Elements 
that the Offeror is able to incorporate in their Floor Plan(s) submitted in Criteria 4 above.  Font size shall be 
no less than 10pt. Paper clip to back of Criteria 4 and Criteria 5 Response. 

5. Response to Technical Criteria 7:  Submit one (1) single sided 8-½ x 11 sheet with a schedule showing 
the required Milestone dates that the Offeror proposes to accomplish the work required for occupancy.  
Staple this sheet to the back of Criteria 1 through 3 above. Font size shall be no less than 10pt.  

 

137



Bethel Lease RFP                                                            November 16, 2017 

Page 3 of 8 RFP DELIVERABLES, CRITERIA EVALUATION, SELECTION PROCESS 
 

B. Documents to be Submitted for PART V Price Proposal Form:  Submit a fully completed Part V – Price 
Proposal Form (one page).  All requested pricing must be fully completed.  Price Proposal Form may be 
photocopied for submittal. 

C. Documents to be Submitted for PART VI Proposal Submittal Information & Certifications:  Submit a fully 
completed  Part VI Proposal Form.  Include acknowledgment of any addenda that may be issued.  Proposal 
Submittal Form may be photocopied for submittal. 

D. Proposal Guaranty.  All proposals shall be accompanied by bid security in the form of an acceptable bond 
issued by a surety company, certified check, cashier’s check or money order made payable to the Alaska Court 
System (State of Alaska).  ACS requires the proposal guaranty in the amount of 5% of the Annualized Basic 
Proposal amount.  The surety of a bid security may be any corporation or partnership authorized to do business 
in Alaska as an insurer under AS 21.09.  This bid security from the awarded Proposer shall be held until a firm 
contract is executed.  All other bid securities shall be returned to the unsuccessful Offerors upon Notice of 
Award.  If the successful Offeror fails to accept and proceed with the Work of this RFP after issuance of a 
Notice of Award, this bid security shall be forfeited to the Alaska Court System. Award may be made to the next 
lowest responsive and responsible Offeror.  By submission of a bid security and signature on the bid schedule, 
the successful Offeror acknowledges and agrees to the conditions of this Request for Proposals.  

E. Alaska Business License: A current valid Alaska Business License number is required on PART VI Proposal 
Submittal Information & Certifications form.  If Offeror has applied, but not yet received, an Alaska Business 
License, then a photocopy of the Application for same must be submitted with proposal as required under 
AS.08.18.  Staple to the back of PART VI Proposal Submittal Information & Certifications. 

F. Quantity of Proposals to be Submitted:  Submit three (3) sets of Proposal documents in separately sealed 
envelopes.  All envelopes shall have the project number and RFP submittal deadline marked on the front of the 
envelope as noted above. 

 

 
 

PART IV – TECHNICAL CRITERIA     Total Max Points: 200  
 

The Technical Evaluation criteria consist of four (4) sub-categories:  
Criteria 1. Relevant Experience  - Lease Contracts    30 points 
Criteria 2. Relevant Experience  - Design and Construction   30 points 
Criteria 3. Financial History & Funding Plan     15 points 
Criteria 4. Proposed Floor Plans, Building Photos, Narrative Statements             65 points 
Criteria 5. Proof of Ownership, Building Questionnaire     20 points 
Criteria 6. Preferred Design Elements        20 points 
Criteria 7. Lease Commencement Date       20 points 

Submit only information specifically requested and relevant to the specific Criteria and this project. Unnecessary 
text which does not respond directly to the information requested in the Criteria will be disregarded and may affect 
the Offeror’s score. 
 
 

TECHNICAL CRITERIA 1:                 Max Total Points for Criteria 1:  30 

Relevant Experience of Offeror with Lease Contracts  
 

 
The response to this criterion will be evaluated on how well Offeror demonstrates the organization has the 
experience and institutional expertise to perform successfully the services required of a landlord in the Bethel 
region. Consideration will be given as to how effectively and successfully the organization has executed past lease 
contracts. Landlord/Lessor surveys will be considered in this item.  

A Provide the following information for all facilities in which the Offeror has acted as the landlord for the past 5 
years:   

1. Address and name (if applicable) of the facility 

2. Name, e-mail, and phone number for private Tenant, or a contact of the Tenant company.  The ACS will 
contact Tenant to obtain references.    

138



Bethel Lease RFP                                                            November 16, 2017 

Page 4 of 8 RFP DELIVERABLES, CRITERIA EVALUATION, SELECTION PROCESS 
 

3. Description of the leased building, including: size, construction type, zoning, occupancy type, finishes and 
amenities.  Additionally, describe exterior features that are part of the lease agreement such as parking 
areas, storage, signage, headbolt heaters, sidewalks, and porches.    

4. Description of services and utilities provided as part of the lease agreement. 

5. Type of tenants (private residents, government entity, commercial, retail, etc.), and quantity of tenants. 

6. Date of building construction and expiration of lease(s).  

7. Narrative of difficulties related to maintenance, services and tenant issues, and description of how the 
issues were resolved with least impact to the tenant(s). 

The ACS reserves the right to investigate referenced leased properties, contact references and research other 
leased properties that the Offeror has managed. 

B List history of defaults, lawsuits, or arbitrated claims on lease contracts by or against the Offeror initiated during 
the last seven years, including case name, location, and case number or citation.   

 
 
 

TECHNICAL CRITERIA 2:                 Max Total Points for Criteria 2:  30 

Relevant Experience with Design, Construction, Remodel or Renovation  
    

The response to this criterion will be evaluated on how well Offeror demonstrates that the organization has the 
expertise to manage design and construction, either in-house, with outside subcontractors, or in a contract with a 
General Contractor.  Note that at least a minimal amount of construction is required to comply with all the RFP 
requirements. Consideration will be given as to how effectively and successfully the organization has executed past 
construction projects.  

Provide the following information on at least 2 past construction projects – preferably for buildings intended as 
lease space: 

1. Address and name (if applicable) of the facility 

2. Name, location and contact information for Consulting firm(s) contracted for design of building and property 
upgrades. Include at least Architect, and Electrical and Mechanical Engineers. 

3. Name, location and contact information for General Construction Contracting firm used, or if in-house, then 
include Sub-contractors. 

4. A brief description of the project and scope of construction – if it is a property included in the above Criteria 1, 
just identify which lease it is.  

5. Originally scheduled completion date and final (or anticipated) completion date.  

6. Description of the difficulties and/or challenges encountered and resolved during the management of this 
project.  Emphasis should be on challenges that may be similar to those that will be faced in this project.  
 

The ACS reserves the right to investigate referenced projects, contact references and research other projects that 
the Offeror has worked on. For each project referenced clearly identify any unresolved changes, claims and 
lawsuits, assessments of liquidated damages, insurance claims, and explain in detail the alleged basis of any 
litigation or lawsuit and the results, including settlement amount, if settled. 
 
 
 

TECHNICAL CRITERIA 3:                 Max Total Points for Criteria 3:  15 

Financial History and Funding Plan 
    

The Offeror will be evaluated on its financial condition and funding plan for this lease project. Note that the 
information submitted will be considered public information unless confidentiality is requested by the Offeror and 
granted by the ACS.  A detailed description of the information requested for evaluation is as follows:  
 
History and Funding Plan 

1. Provide information indicating your Company’s financial resource capabilities and address your Company’s 
stability in the marketplace.  

139



Bethel Lease RFP                                                            November 16, 2017 

Page 5 of 8 RFP DELIVERABLES, CRITERIA EVALUATION, SELECTION PROCESS 
 

2. Describe how your company intends to fund the costs associated with any and all necessary property 
acquisition, permitting, design, construction, and management required to comply with this lease RFP.  
Additionally, identify the anticipated pay off period for these upfront costs after commencement of the lease. 

 

 
 

TECHNICAL CRITERIA 4:                 Max Total Points for Criteria 4:  65 

Proposed Floor Plans, Building Photos and Narrative Statements  
    

The Offeror will be evaluated on its ability to provide those design elements, in particular the relationships, 
adjacencies and required access, that are described in Appendix A Lease Space Requirements and Appendix C 
Space Programming Sheets, on a diagrammatic floor plan. Note that incorporation of the “Preferred” items 
submitted under Criteria 6 below, within the floor plan submitted for this Criteria 4, will be a factor for the review 
committee.   

A. Plans, Documentation:  Offerors shall provide a floor plan or plans with their proposal.  The floor plan(s) shall 
show square footage (as described in the in Appendix A Lease Space Requirements) for each space and 
indicate at a minimum, overall building dimensions.  The floor plan shall identify all spaces described in Appendix 
A Lease Space Requirements and further detailed in Appendix C Space Programming Sheets.  The plan may 
be in the form of schematic diagrams drawn to a scale no smaller than 1/8" equals one foot.  All lease areas and 
adjacent public use and common spaces must be shown.  

In addition to the building floor plans, Offeror should provide: 

1. Existing Building to be Remodeled:   

i. On the Floor Plans:  Show only the final floor configuration proposed.  Construction features to be 
demolished do not need to be separately identified on the drawings.   

ii. Provide proposed Site Plan at a scale that will fit on one (1) 11” x 17” or one (1) 8 ½” x 11” sheet. 
Show location of required reserved parking and available public parking, in addition to any other 
required site elements (i.e. flagpole(2)). 

iii. Submit photographs of the existing interior of the proposed building lease areas and photos 
showing views of the building exterior.   

iv. Provide a narrative statement describing all intended alterations to the interior and exterior of the 
building. 

2. New Construction:   

i. Provide exterior elevations of the proposed building at no less than 1/8" = 1'-0" scale. 

ii. Provide proposed Site Plan at a scale that will fit on one (1) 11” x 17” or one (1) 8 ½” x 11” sheet. 
Show location of required reserved parking and available public parking, in addition to any other 
required site elements (i.e. flagpole(2)). 
 

B. Vicinity Site Map:  Offeror shall also provide a vicinity site map, which clearly identifies the location of the 
proposed space in relation to the rest of the community and indicates location of highway access points.  
 
 

 

TECHNICAL CRITERIA 5:                 Max Total Points for Criteria 5: 20 

Proof of Ownership, Building Questionnaire  
    

A. Proof of Ownership:  Proof of Ownership of the existing or proposed building/property, or proof of possession of 
the existing or proposed building and power to lease the same to the ACS for the entire term of the lease.  The 
ACS will accept as proof of ownership of the existing or proposed building/property, a contract of purchase of the 
building/property provided that the contract clearly shows that the Offeror will have possession of the 
building/property no later than thirty (30) days after the date of proposal deadline, and provided that the Offeror 
resolves any and all contingencies in the contract (other than payment of the purchase price) within twenty (20) 
days after the proposal deadline.  If the Offeror does not provide written proof of resolution of any and all 
contingencies in the contract (other than payment of the purchase price) within twenty (20) days after the date of 

140



Bethel Lease RFP                                                            November 16, 2017 

Page 6 of 8 RFP DELIVERABLES, CRITERIA EVALUATION, SELECTION PROCESS 
 

proposal deadline, the ACS may cancel the award to the Offeror without penalty to the ACS, and award to the next 
high ranked responsive and responsible Offeror who proposed premises acceptable to the ACS 
 

B. Building Questionnaire:  Offeror shall fully complete attached Appendix Part IV.5 Building Questionnaire, for 
both new construction and for existing buildings to be remodeled.   

 

 
 

TECHNICAL CRITERIA 6:                 Max Total Points for Criteria 6:  20 

Preferred Design Elements  
    

Reference Appendix A Lease Space Requirements and Appendix C Space Programming Sheets for 
“Preferred” design features and construction elements that the ACS would like to have incorporated into the 
finished facility. The Offeror must show each item from the below list that they were able to incorporate into their 
Floor Plan(s) submitted under Criteria 4, and describe its location and any other pertinent information.   Note that 
the document location where the design feature is shown as “Preferred”, and where it is described in more detail, 
is referenced below. 

A Appendix A:  Clerk’s Office Access from Grand Jury Room    

B Appendix C – Jury Assembly:  

1. Add Door 2 from Customer Service Lobby to Jury Assembly         

2. Add Door 3 from Clerk’s Office to Jury Assembly       

C Appendix C – Superior Courtrooms and Multi-litigant Courtroom:  Offeror should indicate on response 
how many of the four (4) required Courtrooms will have these features: 

1. Raise Ceiling over Judge’s Bench to a Minimum of 11’-0”H 

2. Modesty Wall at exit for Judge at Judge’s Bench 

3. Center the Public Entry Door 2 to make a center aisle at spectator seating    

4. Add Door 6 to be used solely for Prisoner Transport into Courtroom 

D Appendix C – Grand Jury:  Add Door 2 for Secure Hall access for Clerk       

E Appendix C – Superior Court Jury Deliberation Suites: Offeror should indicate how many of the three (3) 
required Jury Suites will have these features:  

1. Provide direct access to Jury Soundlock from Courtroom – Door 2 

F Appendix C–Clerk’s Office: Direct Clerk access from Secure Corridor    
 

 
 

TECHNICAL CRITERIA 7:                 Max Total Points for Criteria 7: 20 

Lease Commencement Date  
    

The Offeror must provide a facility which complies with this RFP and all code requirements ready for ACS occupancy 
by the earliest possible date within the following time range. In addition to a higher rating being given to the Offeror with 
the earliest possible date, this criteria  will be evaluated on its ability clearly show reasonable durations and dates 
necessary for the work required by this Lease RFP:   

Time Range for Occupancy:  Occupancy no earlier than March 31, 2019, and no later than October 1, 2019.  

Proposed Schedule: Provide a schedule with the following milestone dates.  Should the Offeror believe additional 
milestone dates are needed for clarity to the schedule, include those dates and descriptions also.   : 

A. Procurement and clearing of land (if necessary). 

B. Execution of agreement with Design Team for this facility. 

C. Submittal of Construction Drawings to ACS and AHJ for approval. 

D. Approval of Construction Drawings and Specifications 

141



Bethel Lease RFP                                                            November 16, 2017 

Page 7 of 8 RFP DELIVERABLES, CRITERIA EVALUATION, SELECTION PROCESS 
 

E. Execution of contract with either 1) general contractor for construction (if necessary); or 2) with subcontractors, 
if Landlord is acting as general contractor. 

F. Procurement of materials, Start of Construction. 

G. Completion of Construction, and Ready for Occupancy date. 
 
 
 

 

PART V – PRICE PROPOSAL CRITERIA    Total Max Points: 200  
 

 
Determination of Price Proposal Points:  
The proposal with the lowest proposed price after adjustment for allowable preferences will get the maximum points 
(200). The score for the remaining proposals will be calculated using the following formula:  

[Lowest Proposed Total Price X 200) / Offeror’s Proposed Total Price] = Price Proposal Points  

Offeror’s Total Proposed Price = (Criteria 1 Cost x 15 year Term; plus Criteria 2 Price). 
 
Example:  
Offeror A 
Criteria 1 – Annualized Lease Amount:  Lump Sum Price Proposal        $300,000  

Term Contract Amount: 15 years X  $300,000:            $4,500,000  
Criteria 2 – Pre-Occupancy Construction Payment Lump Sum Price Proposal            $500,000   

Total Proposed Price for Offeror A:               $5,000,000  

Price Points ($4,185,000 X 200) / $5,000,000           167.4 
 
Offeror B 
Criteria 1 – Annualized Lease Amount:  Lump Sum Price Proposal        $290,000  

Term Contract Amount: 15 years X  $290,000:            $4,350,000  
Criteria 2 – Pre-Occupancy Construction Payment Lump Sum Price Proposal            $300,000   

Total Proposed Price for Offeror B:               $4,650,000  

Price Points ($4,185,000 X 200) / $4,650,000           180.0 

 
Offeror C 
Criteria 1 – Annualized Lease Amount:  Lump Sum Price Proposal        $250,000  

Term Contract Amount: 15 years X  $250,000:            $3,750,000  
Criteria 2 – Pre-Occupancy Construction Payment Lump Sum Price Proposal            $435,000   

Total Proposed Price for Offeror C:               $4,185,000  

Price Points ($4,185,000 X 200) / $4,185,000           200.0 
 
 
 
 

COST CRITERIA 1:                Max Total Points for Criteria 1:  120 

Annualize Lease Amount  
    

ANNUALIZED (YEARLY) LEASE AMOUNT:  The Offeror must enter a fixed annualized price for this space lease 
on PART V Price Proposal Form, Cost Criteria 1. Failure to enter a yearly price on this item will result in the 
proposal being declared non-responsive. Lease cost for approximately 12,165 Net Usable Square Feet Lease 
Space, in a Facility with an estimated Total Building Area of 13,725 square feet, as described in Sections A, B and 
C, and Appendix A of this RFP.  This Lease Amount shall include only those Services, Utilities and Maintenance as 
described in Section C General Lease Conditions, Supplementary Lease Conditions and Technical Lease 
Requirements of this RFP. 

Note:  MAXIMUM ANNUALIZED LEASE AMOUNT IS LIMIITED TO $300,000.00.  A yearly price which 
exceeds this maximum amount will result in the proposal being declared non-responsive. 

142



Bethel Lease RFP                                                            November 16, 2017 

Page 8 of 8 RFP DELIVERABLES, CRITERIA EVALUATION, SELECTION PROCESS 
 

 
 
 

COST CRITERIA 2:                  Max Total Points for Criteria 2:  80 

Construction Payment Prior to Occupancy  
    

CONSTRUCTION PAYMENT PRIOR TO OCCUPANCY:  The Offeror must enter a total ACS contribution amount 
required by the Offeror to subsidize the specialized build-out construction (as specified in these RFP documents) 
on the PART V Price Proposal Form, Cost Criteria 2. This payment may be in in one lump sum just prior to 
acceptance and occupancy of the building, or it may be requested in progress payments as construction 
progresses.  However, whichever form the Offeror’s billings take, the request for payment(s) must be supported by 
back-up documents (contractor or material invoices, labor costs, etc) substantiating the actual construction costs to 
the Offeror. 

Note:  MAXIMUM PRE-OCCUPANCY CONTRIBUTION AMOUNT IS LIMIITED TO $500,000.00.  A Pre-
Occupancy Contribution Amount which exceeds this maximum amount will result in the proposal being 
declared non-responsive 
 

 

143



Bethel Lease RFP                                                          November 16, 2017 

 

Page 1 of 2                              PART IV TECHNICAL CRITERIA 5 BUILDING QUESTIONNAIRE                                                        

 

SECTION B – PART IV TECHNICAL CRITERIA 5 
 

 
ALASKA COURT SYSTEM (ACS) 

BUILDING QUESTIONNAIRE 
LEASE CONTRACT 

 
Procurement per ACS Procurement Guidelines 

The ACS will use the information provided in this questionnaire to determine whether the premises offered by An Offeror meet the 
minimum project criteria.  If the premises offered are not acceptable to the ACS and do not meet the minimum criteria in the project 
criteria, as set forth in these RFP documents, the ACS will not consider the Offer to be eligible for award.  If the proposed premises 
are new Construction, respond to all questions with the proposed building information, including address, design and construction, 
or write “N/A” if not applicable. 

  
1. Address and Location of building/facility:         

              
 
2. Recordable legal description:  (include lot, block, town site, and plat and/or U.S. survey number, recording 

district)              
 
3. Type of construction:               
 
4. Single or multi-story;  ___________________ Number of floors: ________ 
 
5. Maximum Permissible Live Floor Load:  Except when a floor is constructed of poured concrete set in earth, 

provide the maximum permissible live floor load per square foot on each floor.  In cases where the floor load 
factor is not uniform, explain the deviation in sufficient detail to permit the occupants to safely distribute the 
floor load.  A floor plan may be submitted with the bid, which sets forth this information. 

 
  Floor  Maximum Permissible   Floor  Maximum Permissible 
Number         Live Floor Load      No.      Live Floor Load  
     1  ______ lbs/sq. ft.     3  ______ lbs/sq. ft. 
     2  ______ lbs/sq. ft.       4  ______ lbs/sq. ft. 

 
6. Type of wall construction inside: 

  
 
7. Type of wall construction outside: 

  
 

8. Unit or Suite Number within building where space is located (if known), and this must be shown on building 
floor layout/plans of proposed space (ref. Section B RFP Deliverables):    

 
9. If an exiting building;  Type of existing flooring and location of existing flooring at time of submittal: 

Carpet ___________________________ Tile/Vinyl   
Other (explain)    
 

10. Total Net usable square footage for this RFP:         
 1

st
 floor: ________                        2

nd
 floor: _________                                 Total Bldg: ___________ 

 
11. Total Net usable square footage available, or proposed, for lease in building at date of submittal: 

1
st
 floor: ________                            2

nd
 floor: _________                                        Total Bldg: ___________ 

 
12. Type of heating system available in, or proposed for, the building at date of submittal: 

  
 

144



Bethel Lease RFP                                                          November 16, 2017 

 

Page 2 of 2                              PART IV TECHNICAL CRITERIA 5 BUILDING QUESTIONNAIRE                                                        

13. Type of ventilation system available in, or proposed for, the building at date of submittal: 
  

 
14. If the space offered is above ground level, confirm the building has or will have, a code compliant elevator at 

date of submittal: 
Existing: ______________________  Proposed Elevator Addition: _____________________ 

 
15. If other tenants are to occupy the building, list names and types of businesses they will conduct:   

  
 
16. If an existing building:  Are all building requirements, including the accessibility requirements, as set forth in 

this offer, in place and functional at date of submittal: 
YES ______________________  NO _____________________ 

 
If “NO”, indicate exceptions, which shall be corrected prior to occupancy: 

  
 
 
  
(Use additional sheets if necessary) 

 
17. Parking 

A. Number of exclusive use parking spaces offered in this Proposal: __________ 

B. Distance from building to exclusive use parking spaces: _________Feet 

C. Number of parking spaces required by local code, if applicable: _______ 

D. Reserved parking spaces are:              ____________ on street   ___________ off street 

____________ on site      ___________ off site 

E. Other available parking: 

1. Normal availability of other parking spaces:  ____________ 

2. Other available parking is: _______ public ______ private 

3. Distance from building to other available parking: _________ Feet 
 
18. Offeror __________(is)  ___________(is not) in arrears on Alaska State Taxes. 
 
19. Offeror __________(does/will) _________(does/will not) carry liability insurance. 
 
20. Offeror __________(does/will) _________(does/will not) carry Workers’ Compensation Insurance. 
 
21. Is property encumbered by a mortgage, lien or any other financial obligation?  

 

YES ____________________ NO _________________ 
 

If yes, please attach a copy of the document for the State’s review. 
 

22. Is Existing Building Sprinklered, if new construction, is it proposed to be Sprinklered? 
 

YES ____________________ NO _________________ 
 

23. Is the Direct Access Road Paved? 
 

YES ____________________ NO _________________ 
 

25. Who maintains the Access Road?  _____________________________________ 

145



Bethel Lease RFP                                                              November 16 2017 

Page 1 of 1 PART V PRICE PROPOSAL FORM  
 

 

SECTION B – PART V PRICE PROPOSAL 
 

 
 

PART V - PRICE PROPOSAL FORM 
 

 

PRICE CRITERIA 1 – ANNUALIZED (YEARLY) LEASE AMOUNT: 
 
Lease cost for approximately 12,165 Net Usable Square Feet Lease Space, in a building with at least 13,725 
square feet of total building space, as described in Sections A, B and C of this RFP.  This Lease Amount shall 
include only those Services, Utilities and Maintenance as described in Section C General Lease Conditions, 
Supplementary Lease Conditions and Technical Lease Requirements of this RFP.  
       
     Note:  MAXIMUM ANNUALIZED LEASE AMOUNT IS LIMIITED TO $300,000.00 
 
           ANNUALIZED LEASE AMOUNT                =  $     
 
 

 
 
 

PRICE CRITERIA 2 – CONSTRUCTION PAYMENT PRIOR TO OCCUPANCY:  
 
Offeror’s total required ACS contribution amount to subsidize the specialized build-out construction specified in 
these RFP documents:       
 
     Note:  MAXIMUM PRE-OCCUPANCY CONTRIBUTION AMOUNT IS LIMIITED TO $500,000.00 
 
           REQUIRED PRE-OCCUPANCY ACS CONTRIBUTION AMOUNT      = $     
 
 

 
 
 
 

TOTAL ESTIMATED PRICE PROPOSAL FOR EVALUATION PURPOSES ONLY  
 

PRICE CRITERIA 1 AMOUNT:  Annualized Lease Payment: 

 

 

 

 

 

$           

PRICE CRITERIA 2 AMOUNT: Pre-Occupancy Construction Payment: $ 

 

                    TOTAL PRICE PROPOSAL  
                    (FOR EVALUATION PURPOSES ONLY)  

 

$ 

 

146



Bethel Lease RFP                                                            November 16, 2017 

Page 1 of 2 PART VI PROPOSAL SUBMITTAL INFORMATION & CERTIFICATIONS 
 

 

SECTION B – PART VI PROPOSAL INFORMATION & CERTIFICATIONS 

 
 

PART VI – PROPOSAL SUBMITTAL INFORMATION & CERTIFICATIONS  
 

1. OFFEROR INFORMATION AND ADDENDA ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

Submitting Firm Name:            

Mailing Address:             

              
 

Business License #:           
 
EIN or SSN:             
 
Phone:     Fax:      E-Mail:       
 
 
Check one of the following to indicate type of business entity for your company: 
 
Sole Proprietor: _____    Partnership: _____   Corporation: _____   LLC: _____ Other (Specify):                    

 

 

(Seal if Proposal by Corporation)  

NOTE: If more than one firm, i.e., joint venture or subcontractor, please attach a list of all firms using the above 
format. Please list the firm who is fully authorized to act in behalf of all concerns.  

 

The Offeror acknowledges receipt of the following addenda:  

ADDENDUM        DATE:    

ADDENDUM        DATE:    

ADDENDUM        DATE:    

ADDENDUM        DATE:    
 

                                No other alternates or substitutions allowed on this Bid Form. 

 

2. OFFEROR CERTIFICATION AND REPRESENTATION SIGNATURE  

Certifications:  

1. I certify that I am a duly authorized representative of the firm(s) listed above, that information and materials 
enclosed with this proposal accurately represent the capabilities of the firm(s) to provide the services 
indicated in compliance with the requirements of the solicitation. The ACS is hereby authorized to request 
from any individual any pertinent information deemed necessary to verify information regarding capacity, 
capabilities, or performance of the firm, as an Offeror.  

147



Bethel Lease RFP                                                            November 16, 2017 

Page 2 of 2 PART VI PROPOSAL SUBMITTAL INFORMATION & CERTIFICATIONS 
 

2. By completing, signing and submitting this form I certify that I have reviewed the RFP documents, with 
addenda, and understand the scope of services and conditions required for this Property/Facility.  
Furthermore, if awarded this contract, I agree to furnish for the Price Proposal Amounts furnished in Part V 
Price Proposal Form – which were arrived at independently and without collusion –necessary labor, 
materials, and equipment in full compliance with the Contract and each of its incorporated terms and 
conditions.  Work shall be accomplished in a workmanlike manner, observing all applicable civil rights and 
equal employment opportunity acts, and to the satisfaction of the Contracting Officer 

3. By signature on the Bid Schedule the bidder certifies compliance with the applicable portions of the Federal 
Civil Rights Act of 1964 and the Equal Employment Opportunity Act and the regulations issued thereunder 
by the State and Federal Governments.  If any bidder fails to comply with the Act or Regulations issued 
thereunder, the ACS reserves the right to terminate the contract. 

By signing below, the Offeror represents that all of its statements, certifications, and representations, and other 
information supplied herein are true and correct as of the date of submittal of this offer.  

 

OFFEROR:              
(Type or Print Company Name of Offeror)  

 

AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE:           DATE:     

           
(Type or Print Name and Title)  

E-Mail Address of Signing Individual:          

Telephone of Signing Indiviual:         
 

148



Bethel Lease RFP                                                             November 16, 2017 

Page 1 of 8 GENERAL LEASE CONDITIONS  
 

 

SECTION C – LEASE REQUIREMENTS 
 

  
 

GENERAL LEASE CONDITIONS 
 
 
INDEX: 
1. General Conditions Govern 
2. Definitions 
3. Landlord's Responsibilities 
4. Tenants' Rights and Responsibilities 
5. Other Terms and Conditions 
 

1 GENERAL CONDITIONS shall govern unless expressly modified by the Supplementary Conditions section. 
 

2 DEFINITIONS: 
 

A ACS – The Alaska Court System.  References to Tenant mean “ACS”. 
 
B Landlord – The individual, firm, corporation or any acceptable combination thereof, who proposes on this 

project and is awarded the Lease Contract.  References to Contractor mean “Landlord”. 
 
C Property – The land, building and all site furnishings, parking areas, landscaping and utility services located at 

the legal address described in the Building Questionnaire which contains the Premises offered by the Landlord 
for lease in this RFP.   

 
D Premises – The area offered by the Landlord for lease within a building on the Property, including net useable 

space, circulation, dedicated parking areas and other space external to the leased space provided as 
necessary for the full utilization of the leased space.  References to Leased Space mean “Premises”. 
 

E ACS Work Hours – Monday through Thursday: 8:00 a.m. - 5:00 p.m.; Friday: 8;00 a.m. - 12:00 p.m.; and up 
to 2 hours each Saturday and Sunday, at variable times for arraignments as needed. 
 

F Contracting Officer –The person authorized by the ACS to enter into and administer the Lease Contract on 
behalf of the ACS.  This person has authority to make findings, determinations and decisions with respect 
to the Contract and, when necessary, to modify or terminate the Lease Contract.  The Contracting Officer is 
identified on the Contract.  
 

3 LANDLORD'S RESPONSIBILITIES: 
 

A Delivery and Condition of Premises:  The Premises shall be delivered ready for occupancy by the 
Commencement Date stated on the Technical Proposal Form submitted by the Landlord, and accepted by 
the ACS.   “Ready for Occupancy" means that all mechanical and electrical facilities, equipment and 
fixtures shall be in good operating condition, all required remodeling has been completed, a current 
certificate of occupancy has been obtained, if required, and all other required work has been completed to 
the ACS's satisfaction on or before that date.  The ACS will move in furniture and equipment, and install, 
set up and program equipment immediately following the “Ready for Occupancy” date.  Correction of minor 
deficiencies by the Landlord may occur after move-in has already commenced by the ACS, and shall not 
delay the move-in.  Any deficiencies substantial enough to delay move-in and occupancy will be considered 
a delay to the Commencement Date, and subject to liquidated damages.    

 
B Compliance with Building Code Requirements.  Prior to occupancy of the premises by the ACS, the 

Landlord must provide to the ACS a written certification from a local building official or other person 
responsible for ensuring compliance with building codes to the effect that the premises are, to the best 
knowledge of the person completing the certification in compliance with all building code requirements 
applicable to the premises.  All alterations of the premises must be constructed in accordance with 
construction documents prepared, signed, and sealed by a licensed architect or engineer as required by 
law, and must satisfy all building code requirements. 

149



Bethel Lease RFP                                                             November 16, 2017 

Page 2 of 8 GENERAL LEASE CONDITIONS  
 

C Site Visits:  Landlord must have an on-site designated representative available during ACS regularly 
scheduled visits.  The Landlord will be provided with adequate advance notice of proposed site visits.  The 
purpose of the ACS site visits are to ensure that RFP requirements are met, and that the project schedule is 
maintained.  The ACS will not assume responsibility for reviewing for code compliance during these site visits.  
 

D Construction Schedule:  The Landlord shall submit a construction/completion schedule for ACS’s 
approval, which will include a critical path with milestone dates and a completion date on or before the date 
that the Premises are “Ready for Occupancy”.  Landlord shall submit to the ACS current schedules every 
30 days updating the critical path milestone dates.  The purpose of this requirement is to monitor work in 
progress and to allow the ACS to better plan its anticipated relocation to the Premises. 

 
E Building Alterations Required by Law:  The Premises must be safe for occupancy and must comply with all 

applicable local, state and federal laws.  The Landlord agrees to pay the cost of any alteration or improvements 
needed for the Premises to comply with all mandatory requirements of present or future laws, ordinances, 
orders or regulations of any governmental authority, unless non-compliance is a result of the ACS’s actions.  
Noncompliance with applicable laws shall be an occasion for Maintenance and Repair under Paragraph H, 
below. 

 
F Fire Prevention:  The Landlord will maintain the Premises in keeping with Title 13 of the Alaska 

Administrative Code, Part 2 Fire Prevention.  The ACS reserves the right at reasonable times to make 
inspections of the building and notify the Landlord of unsafe conditions.  If any fire hazard is detected through 
inspection of the Property or the Premises, the Landlord shall promptly correct it in compliance with Paragraph 
F, below. 

 
G Accident Hazard:  The Landlord will maintain the Premises free of health, structural, electrical, mechanical or 

fire hazards; in compliance with all applicable local, state and federal codes.  If any accident hazard pertaining 
to the structure or building operating equipment is detected through inspections of the Property or the 
Premises, the Landlord shall promptly correct the hazard in compliance with Paragraph G, below. 

 
H Maintenance and Repair:  The Landlord shall retain sole responsibility for the maintenance and repair of the 

Premises and Property, except for such maintenance and repair as may be required because of damage 
beyond ordinary wear and tear that results from the negligence or other fault of the ACS or its employees.  This 
responsibility encompasses keeping the Premises and Property in a good state of general repair and 
tenantable condition.  The term "repair" includes repairs of any type, including, but not limited to, exterior and 
interior, structural and nonstructural, routine or periodic.  Landlord will notify the ACS if Landlord will be making 
any alterations or repairs, and will schedule work at times before or after ACS Work Hours, unless an 
emergency requires immediate repair.  Any and all costs to coordinate and/or relocate ACS employees, their 
furniture or fixtures to enable Landlord to perform its responsibilities shall be at the Landlord’s expense. 

1) After reasonable notice to the Landlord in writing by the ACS that a repair, maintenance, or service 
obligation as specified herein has not been satisfactorily fulfilled, the ACS may correct the deficiencies and 
either bill the Landlord for the costs incurred or deduct the costs from the monthly rent.  As used in this 
paragraph, “reasonable notice” means the notice that is reasonable under the circumstances:  the method 
of notification and the amount of time considered reasonable will depend on the nature of the problem and 
the danger that it poses to human life and/or property.  The ACS reserves the right to determine the 
method of notice and the time allowed for repairs depending on its determination of these factors. 

2) Bills for such work will be paid by the ACS, and a copy will be forwarded to the Landlord for their notice and 
files. The ACS shall deduct the costs from the next month(s) rent payment(s) as determined appropriate by 
the ACS. 

 
I Janitorial Requirements:  The ACS, at their own expense, shall contract out separately for janitorial services 

within ACS lease space inclusive of all supplies and equipment necessary to perform those services.  Landlord 
shall provide janitorial services outside of ACS lease required spaces, with a similar scope and schedule, 
unless ACS is the sole tenant of the building and premises. 

1) The ACS shall provide the Landlord with a copy of the janitorial contract executed by the ACS and their 
contractor.  

 
 
 

150



Bethel Lease RFP                                                             November 16, 2017 

Page 3 of 8 GENERAL LEASE CONDITIONS  
 

J Utilities & Other Services: Landlord shall provide as part of the monthly rent the following utilities: Sewage, 
potable water, and trash removal from the premises and all general building services.  ACS will provide its own 
janitorial services, snow removal services, telephone and data service, and will pay for fuel oil for heating 
system, and electric utility cost.  Landlord must provide separate meters and fuel tanks for the ACS, if the 
building is not solely occupied by the ACS. 

 
K Maintenance Outside the Lease Premises: Landlord will maintain stairways, porches, and common hallways 

used for access to the Premises in a good state of repair and a clean and safe condition year round. The ACS 
shall include the following in their janitorial or snow removal contracts: Removal of accumulations of ice and 
snow from outside steps, parking lot, driveway and sidewalks/pathways which are provided for, and used 
solely by, the ACS and their clients on the Property.  Entrances, steps, sidewalks/pathways and parking areas 
not used solely by the ACS shall be maintained by the Landlord.   
 

L Other Tenants: The occupancy by other tenants is restricted to those whose intended and actual use, in the 
sole discretion of the ACS, will not detract from the dignity of the court functions and safety of court users and 
the functions of the ACS. 

 
M Security Clearance:  After occupancy, a  completed Background Check Form must be completed, submitted 

to the ACS and approved by the ACS prior to commencement of any work by the Landlord or their contractors, 
agents, principals, officers or employees within the secured ACS areas of the Premises. Additionally, the ACS 
may also require fingerprints be taken.  The Landlord shall ensure these requirements are met and pay for all 
costs associated with obtaining and submitting to the ACS the information and fingerprints. 

1) The court system uses the following guidelines when evaluating criminal background: 
a Any person with the following conditions may not work or provide any kind of services on the ACS 

Premises, unless the ACS Facilities Manager has agreed to waive the disqualification under 
Section 3) below 
i Has been convicted of a violent crime or crime of theft within last 5 years 
ii Has been convicted of more than 2 misdemeanors in last 5 years 
iii Has been convicted of more than one felony in previous 10 years 
iv Has an on on-going criminal case in the court where work is being performed with ACS (until case 

is resolved).  

2) Application. 
a Prior Convictions. Multiple convictions arising out of the same criminal episode will be considered a 

single prior conviction for purposes of this rule. 
b Definitions. The following definitions apply to this rule: 

i “Crime” means a felony or misdemeanor. 
ii “Felony” means a crime that is a felony under the laws of this state or another state. 
iii “Misdemeanor” means a crime that is a misdemeanor under the laws of this state or another 

state. 
iv “Violent crime” means murder, manslaughter, criminally negligent homicide, assault, reckless 

endangerment, stalking, kidnapping, sexual assault, sexual abuse, robbery, extortion, or 
coercion under the laws of this state or any other state. 

v “Serious property crime” means theft, burglary, arson or forgery under the laws of this state or 
another state. 

3) Waiver by Facilities Manager. 
a Standard for Waiver. The facilities manager may waive the disqualification and permit a person to 

perform work unless disqualification is mandatory under Paragraph 1 above.  In deciding whether 
to grant a waiver, the facilities manager will consider the following factors: 
i the nature and gravity of the offense or offenses;  
ii the time that has passed since the conviction and completion of the sentence;  
iii the number of convictions;  
iv the nature of the work; and 
v the level of supervision of the employee at the work site;  
vi any other facts or circumstances that may have a bearing on the suitability of the employee’s 

presence in a court facility.  

 

 

151



Bethel Lease RFP                                                             November 16, 2017 

Page 4 of 8 GENERAL LEASE CONDITIONS  
 

b Mandatory Disqualification.  No waiver will be granted if: 
i the person was convicted of a violent crime or crime of theft within five years of the application 

date; 
ii the contractor or person fails to provide criminal background information requested by ACS. 

4) The ACS may limit or reject certain individuals if their presence is determined by the Contracting Officer to 
be detrimental to the normal conduct of the Tenant's business. 

5) Much of the business of the ACS is necessarily confidential and not subject to public disclosure.  The 
confidentiality of draft opinions, internal memoranda, conversations regarding pending issues and other 
court business are essential to the court’s function. Additionally, records related to personnel issues, 
procurement proceedings, internal policy discussions, and other administrative issues are also confidential.  
Prior to commencing any work under this contract, the Landlord and their contractors, agents, principals, 
officers or employees who supply goods or services to the Premises shall inform all contractors, agents, 
principals, officers, and employees working on the Premises that the disclosure of any confidential court 
business observed or overheard may result in permanent removal form the Premises and may be grounds 
for termination of contract and even criminal prosecution. 

6) The ACS may require identification cards, which will be provided at Landlord's expense. 

7) During the term of this contract, the Contractor must monitor the status of each of its subcontractors, 
agents, principals, officers or employees with respect to the conditions described above.  Upon learning 
that the status of an individual has changed so that the individual would be prevented from entering or 
working on ACS premises, the Contractor must immediately terminate that individual’s access to ACS 
facilities, and report to the ACS contracting officer or manager the nature of the change in status.  If the 
Contractor fails to comply with this paragraph, the ACS may terminate the contract as provided in 
these General Conditions. 

 
M Replacement of Finishes and Fixtures:  The Landlord, at Landlord’s expense (including all costs to move 

furniture, equipment, etc.), shall replace finishes and fixtures in accordance with the following schedule.  All 
work must be scheduled around the ACS Work Hours, unless approved by the ACS.  If the Landlord does 
not replace materials as scheduled, or if the Landlord does not replace or repair damaged items in a timely 
manner, the ACS may, after written notification to the Landlord, replace or renovate finishes and fixtures as 
needed at the Landlord’s expense, and deduct the cost from the rent. NOTE:  All finishes must be new and 
approved by the ACS at the commencement of the lease.  All ceiling, fixtures, doors and hardware, and 
other built-in components must have a like-new appearance, be in good working condition and comply with 
current codes. 

1) Floor Finishes: Every 10 years for all floor finishes.  For Carpet Replacement:  The ACS will provide 
carpet and carpet adhesive material, and the Landlord shall provide the installation services, and any 
new base, transitions, or other ancillary materials required 

2) Paint:  Full re-paint of all surfaces every 5 years, with touch up painting provided on an as-needed 
basis due to damage or soiling. 

3) Ceilings, Window Coverings,Sound Panels, and Fixtures:  When damage or deterioration is evident 
 

N Insurance:  Landlord shall obtain and keep in force during the term of the Lease, and each 
extension, a policy or policies of insurance covering loss or damages to the PREMISES providing 
protection against all perils and risks including but not limited to the classifications of fire, extended 
coverage, vandalism and malicious mischief.  Proof of Insurance coverage or binder must be filed with the 
ACS, Facilities Manager, prior to proposal award.  Except as prohibited by law, the Proof of Insurance shall list 
the ACS as additional insured, certificate holder and contain a statement that the insurer will give at least thirty 
(30) days' advance written notice to the ACS in event of alteration, cancellation, or termination of the insurance 
coverage.  Failure to submit proof of insurance prior to award or failure to notify when change(s) occur will be 
cause for rejection of bid or cancellation of contract.  Upon request by the ACS, Landlord shall provide a true 
and complete copy of any insurance policy required under this section. 

1) Public Liability Insurance:  Unless otherwise specified, the Landlord shall maintain public liability 
insurance in an amount sufficient to cover any suit that may be brought against the Landlord.  The 
amount will be no less than $300,000 combined single limit.   
 
 
 

152



Bethel Lease RFP                                                             November 16, 2017 

Page 5 of 8 GENERAL LEASE CONDITIONS  
 

2) Worker's Compensation Insurance:  The Landlord shall, in accordance with AS 23.30.045(d) and (e), 
maintain sufficient Workers' Compensation Insurance to protect the Landlord from any claims or 
damages for personal injury, including death, which may arise from services performed under a 
contract issued as a result of this Invitation to Bid.  This requirement also applies to the Landlord’s 
contractor, subcontractor or anyone directly or indirectly employed by either of them.  If at any time 
during the term of the contract, the Landlord's business operation changes and affects the Workers' 
Compensation Insurance status, the ACS must be notified immediately.   Proof of Workers' 
Compensation Insurance coverage is not required if Landlord is self-employed and does not hire any 
other employee(s) to perform work covered in this bid. 

 

O Indemnity:  Landlord shall indemnify, defend, hold and save the ACS, its officers, agents, and employees 
harmless from liability of any nature or kind, including costs and expenses for or on account of any and all 
suits or damages of any character whatsoever resulting from injuries or damages sustained by any person 
or persons or property by virtue of any act performed by the Landlord or the Landlord's agents and 
employees. The Landlord shall also assume all insurable risks and bear any loss or injury to property or 
persons occasioned by neglect during the term of this lease, excepting only sole negligence of the ACS.  
Landlord’s indemnity obligation shall apply without regard to the limits of any insurance policy required 
under this lease. 

 

4 TENANT'S RIGHTS & RESPONSIBILITIES: 
 
A Default:  If the ACS shall at any time be in default in the payment of rent, or in the performance of any of the 

terms of the lease issued as a result of this Invitation to Bid or fails to remedy such default within sixty (60) days 
after written notice thereof from the Landlord, the Landlord may repossess, terminate the lease and recover 
from the ACS all rent due.  

 
In case of any default by the ACS, and repossession by the Landlord, the Landlord must attempt to relet the 
Premises for the remainder of the term of the lease for the highest rent obtainable and may recover from the 
ACS any deficiency between the amount so obtained and rent specified by the lease. 

 
B Tenant’s Rights:   

1) Quiet Enjoyment:  If the ACS pays the rent as provided by the lease issued as a result of this Request for 
Proposals and keeps, observes and performs all of the other covenants of the lease required by it to be 
kept, performed and observed, then the ACS may peaceably and quietly have, hold, and enjoy the 
Premises for the term of such lease. 

2) Safe For Occupancy: If, during the term of a lease issued as a result of this Invitation to Bid, the ACS 
determines that all or part of the Premises are unsafe for occupancy because of events not in the control of 
the ACS, the rent for the unsafe part of the Premises shall be abated until the Premises are returned to 
their former condition by the Landlord.  If the ACS determines that all or a substantial part of the Premises 
are so unfit for occupancy that it cannot conduct its business safely and securely, the ACS may move from 
the Premises, terminate the lease by written notice to Landlord, and recover from Landlord the costs of 
relocation and any difference in rent for the length of the lease term. 

3) Interruption of Utilities and Services:  If the ACS determines that its use of the Premises is threatened 
by the interruption or severance of utilities or other services provided by the Landlord, the ACS may 
contract for the utilities and services in the name of the ACS, and may deduct from the rent the costs of 
such utilities, services and related deposits. 

4) ACS will have access to the lease space 24 hours daily, 7 days a week throughout the year. 

5) Option to Lease Contiguous Space: The ACS has the option to lease any additional contiguous space 
that may become available for rent/lease on the Property during the term of the lease.  The Landlord shall 
provide the ACS written notice within thirty (30) days of such availability.  Such notice shall be 
accompanied by an offer to lease, including the rental rate of the additional space.  The offer shall remain 
open for at least thirty (30) days.  If the ACS does not accept the offer within the time that it is open or 
extended, the Landlord is free to rent/lease said space to other tenants, subject to Paragraph 3.K, above. 

 
 
 
 

153



Bethel Lease RFP                                                             November 16, 2017 

Page 6 of 8 GENERAL LEASE CONDITIONS  
 

C Tenant's Responsibilities - The ACS will:  

1) Pay rent at the time and place set forth in the lease to the Landlord on the first day of each month of the 
term of the lease or in advance at the option of the ACS. Payment for any partial month's occupancy will 
be prorated, based on a thirty- (30) day month. 

2) Use and occupy the Premises in a careful and appropriate manner. 

3) Not use or occupy the Premises for any unlawful purposes. 

4) Not use, occupy nor permit the Premises to be occupied or used for any purpose or business deemed 
hazardous. 

5) Make no alterations or additions in or to the Premises without the written consent of the Landlord, which 
consent shall not be unreasonably withheld.  Landlord shall have 30 days to respond to such request; if no 
response is received within that time, ACS may proceed with alterations or additions. 

6) Permit the Landlord to enter upon the Premises at all reasonable times to examine the conditions of same, 
provided that the ACS may prohibit entry at such times and in such manner as the general public may be 
excluded, e.g., during confidential or closed court proceedings and other similar or dissimilar occasions. 

7) Observe all applicable laws and reasonable written regulations that the Landlord establishes for the 
general convenience, comfort and welfare of persons using the building.  

8) ACS shall leave the Premises at the end of this lease in as good a condition as received, excepting 
reasonable wear and tear, loss or damage caused by fire, explosion, earthquake or act of God.  

 
D Fixtures, Finishes, Furniture and Equipment:  All furniture, finishes, fixtures and equipment which the ACS 

has installed in the Premises shall remain the property of the ACS and may be removed at the end of this lease 
or any extension.  ACS will repair any damage to the Premises from such removal. 

 

5 OTHER TERMS & CONDITIONS: 
 
A Option to Renew: The ACS may have the option to renew this lease for additional terms if defined in the 

Supplemental Conditions. 
 
B Condition of Premises: The parties agree that the Premises provided for in this Request for Proposals are 

fit for occupancy and that they will continue to comply with all applicable laws and codes throughout ACS’ 
occupancy. 

 
C Assignment/Sublet:  The lease issued as a result of this Request for Proposals and all the covenants, 

provisions and conditions therein contained shall insure to the benefit of and be binding upon the successors 
and assigns of both parties. Assignment or Subletting of all or part of the leased Premises under this lease by 
either party is not permitted without prior written consent of both parties.  ACS may withhold its consent for any 
assignment or sublease that, in the sole discretion of ACS, would result in occupancy that is not compatible 
with court functions. 

 
D Holding Over:  Any holding over past the expiration of the term, any extensions or renewals of the lease, shall 

be considered as a month-to-month extension, and all other terms and conditions shall remain in full force and 
effect.  Each party will provide written notice to the other party of its intent to cancel such month-to-month 
extension at least thirty (30) days prior to the desired date of cancellation. 

 
E Termination:  Because the payment of rent by the ACS is subject to appropriation by the legislature of the 

State of Alaska, the lease may be terminated upon 120 days written notice to the Landlord if the legislature 
enacts an appropriations bill which reduces the operating budget of the ACS below its adjusted base for the 
immediately preceding fiscal year.  The Supreme Court must authorize lease termination, and may do so only 
after declaring a budget emergency.  

 
F Changes in Space:  Changes proposed to the ACS approved construction documents, either by the Landlord 

or by the ACS, shall be in requested and described in writing to the other party.  Landlord shall notify and gain 
approval by the ACS of any additional costs of ACS requested changes.  Additional costs for Landlord 
proposed changes are not acceptable.  Both parties shall mutually agree in writing upon acceptance of the 
change proposal before such changes are actually accomplished. 

 

154



Bethel Lease RFP                                                             November 16, 2017 

Page 7 of 8 GENERAL LEASE CONDITIONS  
 

G Delays:  Time is of the essence.  If there are delays in providing the Premises “Ready for Occupancy” (as 
defined in Section 3.A) by the Landlord due to unforeseeable causes beyond the control and without fault or 
neglect of the Landlord, the date of occupancy may be extended by the ACS without imposing liquidated 
damages.  In all other cases, the ACS will impose liquidated damages as defined in the Supplementary Lease 
Conditions. 

1) The Landlord shall not be liable for the consequences of any failure to perform or default in performing any 
of its obligations under this Agreement if that failure is caused by Force Majeure beyond the control of and 
without the fault or negligence of the Landlord.  Force Majeure shall mean war (whether declared or not); 
revolution; invasion; insurrection; riot; civil commotion; sabotage; military or usurped power; lightning; 
explosion; fire; storm; drought; flood; earthquake; epidemic; quarantine; strike; acts or restraints of 
governmental authorities affecting the project or directly or indirectly prohibiting or restricting the furnishings 
or use of materials or labor required; inability to secure material, machinery, equipment or labor because of 
priority, allocation or other regulations of any governmental authorities. 

2) Notification of such delays must be made to the ACS's Contracting Officer in writing within ten (10) days of 
the commencement of the delay.  The ACS'S contracting officer shall ascertain the facts and the extent of 
delay and the extent of the time for completing the project.  The ACS'S contracting officer may approve an 
extension when, in the officer's judgment, the findings of fact justify an extension.  The officer's finding of 
fact thereon shall be final and conclusive unless the successful bidder shall appeal to the Administrative 
Director of the ACS within thirty (30) days upon receipt of the findings of fact. 

3) The decision of the Administrative Director of the ACS or a duly authorized representative shall be final 
and conclusive unless determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to have been fraudulent, arbitrary or 
capricious, or so grossly erroneous as to imply bad faith or unsupported by substantial evidence.  If no 
appeal to the Administrative Director is taken, the decision of the Contracting Officer shall be final and 
conclusive.  In connection with any appeal proceeding under this clause, the successful offeror shall be 
afforded an opportunity to be heard and to offer evidence in support of this appeal.  Pending final decision 
on an extension of time hereunder, the successful offeror shall proceed diligently with the performance of 
the contract. 

4) Inability to comply with State, City, or local construction or zoning laws or ordinances or restrictive 
covenants shall not be regarded as an unforeseeable cause. 

 
H Eminent domain:  If the Premises are taken for any public or quasi-public use under any statute, or by 

right of eminent domain, or private purchase by a public body vested with the power of eminent domain, 
this lease will terminate and the rent shall be adjusted as of the time of termination so that the ACS will pay 
rent up to the time of taking only.  If the taking reduces the area of the Premises by at least twenty percent 
(20%) or materially affects the uses being made by the ACS of the Premises, the ACS may terminate the 
lease after written notice to the Landlord within ninety (90) days after the taking.  Landlord shall be entitled 
to any condemnation award for the value of the facility and ACS shall be entitled to any condemnation 
award for the value of the leasehold. 

 
I Sale or Foreclosure:  If the leased Property is sold during the term of the lease which was issued as a result 

of this Request for Proposals, or any extension thereunder by virtue of a foreclosure (voluntary or involuntary 
sale), this sale will be made subject to the lease.  This will also apply to a sale as a result of an encumbrance 
on the Property that existed before the lease agreement was executed.  If there is an encumbrance on the 
Property, a subordination agreement must be obtained by the successful offeror with a copy of the agreement 
supplied to the ACS. 

 
J Notices: All notices between the parties during the lease term will be sent to the mailing addresses listed 

on the Lease Contract, unless notified in writing of address change from other party. 
 

K The terms and conditions of this lease shall remain in full force and effect, unless amended or modified and 
mutually agreed to in writing.  All provisions of the lease shall apply to all extensions of term unless 
amended.  
 

L The Landlord will notify the Department of Labor, Labor Standards and Safety Division of this Contract in 
accordance with AS 36.05.035.  The Landlord’s contractor(s) must then comply with the requirements 
noted within the Department of Labor pamphlet entitled, “Laborer’s and Mechanic’s Minimum Rates of 
Pay,” found on-line at http://labor.alaska.gov/lss/pamp600.htm 

155

http://labor.alaska.gov/lss/pamp600.htm


Bethel Lease RFP                                                             November 16, 2017 

Page 8 of 8 GENERAL LEASE CONDITIONS  
 

1) The contractor or subcontractors of the contractor shall pay all employees unconditionally and not less 
than once a week; 

2) The contractor shall submit one copy of the certified payrolls to the OWNER weekly. 

3) Wages may not be less than those stated in the Department of Labor pamphlet described above, 
regardless of the contractual relationship between the contractor or subcontractors and laborers, 
mechanics, or field surveyors; 

4) The scale of wages to be paid shall be posted by the Contractor in a prominent and easily accessible 
place at the site of the work; 

5) The Landlord shall withhold so much of the accrued payments as is necessary to pay to laborers, 
mechanics, or field surveyors employed by the contractor or subcontractors the difference between 

a) The rates of wages required by the contract to be paid laborers, mechanics, or field surveyors 
on the work; and 

b) The rates of wages in fact received by laborers, mechanics, or field surveyors 
 

 

156



Bethel Lease RFP                                                             November 16, 2017 

Page 1 of 1 SUPPLEMENTARY LEASE CONDITIONS  
 

 

SECTION C – LEASE REQUIREMENTS 
 

  
 

SUPPLEMENTARY LEASE CONDITIONS 
 
1. INITIAL TERM OF LEASE: Fifteen (15) years. Commencing on the Commencement Date specified the Technical 

Proposal Form submitted by the Landlord, and accepted by the ACS.   
 
2. RENEWAL:  The ACS shall have the option to renew the lease for two (2) additional periods of five (5) years each 

by giving the LANDLORD notice in writing not less than sixty (60) days prior to the expiration of each period. 
 
3. OPTION:  The ACS shall also have a one-time option to extend the lease for a period up to 6 months at the 

completion of the initial term of the lease or the completion of a renewal option. 
 
4. LIQUIDATED DAMAGES: It is mutually agreed that the Landlord will pay to the ACS $395.50 per day for each 

calendar day of delay beyond the Commencement Date proposed by the Offeror in the Technical Proposal, and 
accepted by the ACS, or as extended pursuant to the provisions of this Request for Proposal.  It is mutually agreed 
that this amount is a good faith estimate of actual damages resulting from a delay, and is reasonable in light of the 
anticipated harm caused by a delay, and the inconvenience or non-feasibility of otherwise obtaining an adequate 
remedy. 

 
5. LEASE AGREEMENT:  The lease agreement will be prepared by the ACS and will contain the terms and 

conditions of the Request for Proposals.   
 
 

157



Bethel Lease RFP   November 16, 2017 

Page 1 of 20 TECHNICAL LEASE REQUIREMENTS  
 

 

SECTION C – TECHNICAL LEASE REQUIREMENTS 
 

  
 
 

TECHNICAL LEASE REQUIREMENTS 
 
 
INDEX:  
1. Definitions 
2. Area Location 
3. Type of Building 
4. Location of Space within Building 
5. Drawings and Specifications 
6. Compliance with Laws & Codes 
7. Accessibility (ADA Compliant) 
8. Arrangement of Space 
9. Ingress and Egress 
10. Indoor Air Quality 
11. Specialty Code Compliance 
12. Energy Conservation Requirements 
13. General Electrical Requirements 
14. Low Voltage Systems 
15. Plumbing 
16. Heating and Cooling 
17. Casework and Finish Carpentry 
18. Furnishings, Fixtures and Equipment (FF&E) 
19. Room Finishes 
20. Sound Control Requirements 
21. Doors, Hardware and Keying 
22. Interior Signs 
23. Exterior Signs 
24. Windows 
25. Elevators 
26. Parking  
27. Flagpole 
 
 
The following requirements describe the minimum acceptable requirements and shall govern unless expressly 
modified by Appendix C Space Programming Sheets.   All costs, including labor and materials associated with 
the following items to be provided and maintained by the Landlord are at the Landlord’s expense except where 
noted that ACS shall provide and/or maintain. 

 
1. DEFINITIONS: 

A. "Net usable square footage" is a term meaning the square footage of the area to be leased for occupancy 
by ACS personnel and/or equipment.  It is determined by computing: 

1) The area of each space by measuring from the normal inside finish of each wall and; 
2) Adding internal circulation factor (i.e. hallways utilized within ACS space), which is the space the 

Landlord will need to provide for the full utilization of the ACS leased space. 
3) This area does not include service spaces such as mechanical and electrical closets, janitorial 

rooms, and chases, nor common spaces such as public lobbies, restrooms and arctic entries. 
Reference BOMA standards for net usable square footage. 

B. “ADA Compliant” means with respect to a facility that the facility complies in all respects with the current 
issue of Americans with Disabilities Act Accessibility Guidelines (“ADAAG”). 

C. “ACS” means Alaska Court System.   

D. “Accessible or Accessibility” means easy to enter or reach physically. 

158



Bethel Lease RFP   November 16, 2017 

Page 2 of 20 TECHNICAL LEASE REQUIREMENTS  
 

E. “AHJ” means “Authority Having Jurisdiction” in relation to permitting and code compliance in the region of 
construction. 

F. “AFLI” means ACS Furnished to the site, Landlord Installed at the site.  
 

2. AREA LOCATION:  Building offered for lease must be within the limits of the location noted on the Cover Sheet 
of this RFP and located on or with direct access to a state maintained, paved road (unless the State does not 
provide paved roads in or near the location).  Property must be zoned for PL1 Public Lands and Institutions or 
GU General Use at the time of Proposal Submittal Date if local zoning regulations apply.  The ACS may reject 
any proposed space that is, in the sole judgment of the ACS, unacceptably proximate to sources of noise, 
odors, dust, or other similar or dissimilar factors that may impair the functionality of the space for court 
purposes. 

 
3. TYPE OF BUILDING:  The space offered should be in a building of sound and substantial construction that 

meets all applicable building codes and regulations.  The building shall be properly protected against fire and 
other hazards in accordance with adopted building codes and is to be provided with good natural light, all 
utilities and services specified, and adequate ventilation as required. The exterior building appearance shall be 
attractive, in like-new condition, and in keeping with the dignity of the court.  The building and the area in which 
it is located shall be clean and free from objectionable tenancy, odors, vermin, rodents, or other features which 
in the opinion of the ACS would be detrimental to its operation. 

 
4. LOCATION OF SPACE WITHIN BUILDING:  The proposed space must be contained within one building, 

within contiguous space, and within no more than two (2) contiguous floors.  
 

5. DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS:   

A. During Design Phase:  Landlord shall attend design meetings with ACS, and submit drawings and 
specifications for review by ACS, throughout the design phase, as needed to obtain ACS approval of space 
configuration, equipment and systems, finishes, components, doors and hardware, casework and 
construction.  The Landlord shall also submit drawings and specifications as required by the AHJ for 
approval and permitting.  The Landlord shall not proceed with construction without obtaining prior written 
approval by the AHJ.  Additionally, the Landlord shall not proceed with procurement of materials, systems, 
or construction without obtaining prior written approval of by the ACS of each submittal package required in 
Paragraph B below.  

B. Prior to Construction: The ACS will require the following specific submittals packages for review and 
approval:   

1) Complete ACS & AHJ Approved Architectural and Structural Drawings for all existing and new 
construction required to comply with this RFP.  Plans should identify and provide details for fire 
walls and sound wall, and locations of ballistic shielding.  

2) Complete ACS & AHJ Approved Mechanical and Electrical Drawings for all existing and new 
construction required to comply with this RFP.  Plans should identify lighting, mechanical and 
electrical equipment, and placement and type of electrical wall outlets and switches, thermostats, 
life safety systems and conduit/j-boxes provided for ACS’s audio and security systems.  

3) Complete Civil drawing including Site Plan which includes: Parking for ACS staff, Prisoner 
Delivery and the Public, ADA required parking, walk-ways from parking to entries, lighting, flagpole, 
headbolt heater locations and signage, and locations of utilities. 

4) Casework Submittals including:  Coffee preparation cabinets/countertops, cabinet hardware, 
public toilet countertops, customer service countertops and courtroom wood and laminate 
casework and finish carpentry. ACS will coordinate with Landlord to ensure ACS provided judge’s 
bench casework matches other courtroom wood species and finishes. 

5) Door and Hardware Submittals including:  Door and hardware schedules, details, sound rating, 
fire rating, and manufacturer data for all openings.   

6) Finishes Submittals including:  Flooring, ACS provided Carpet, Painting, Ceilings, Wall Finishes. 
7) Exterior Building Signage Submittals including: Cast metal signage layout and installation 

details..  
8) Technical Specifications:  Complete set of final specifications for architectural, structural, 

mechanical, and electrical (including security, life safety and low voltage). 
 

159



Bethel Lease RFP   November 16, 2017 

Page 3 of 20 TECHNICAL LEASE REQUIREMENTS  
 

9) Procurement Information List for ACS Provided Materials:  Provide all necessary information to 
allow ACS procurement of the following equipment and materials. Note that this list is abbreviated 
for the Offeror’s convenience only – detailed specifications and requirements are defined further in 
this Section C.   

i. ACS Furnished and Installed 
a. Server and Telecom Racks in Server Room and Communications Room 
b. Microphones, Speakers, Audio and Video Cabling & Audio Equipment Rack in Courtrooms 

and Grand Jury 
c. Duress Alarm System 
d. Video Equipment – Flat Screen Monitor, Bracket and cabling at courtrooms, Lobby and 

Jury Assembly. 
e. Judge’s Bench (including Clerk’s Bench) casework and Moveable Witness Stand, Witness 

Stand Platform at all courtrooms. 
f. Undercounter Refrigerators at Jury Rooms and Grand Jury 
g. All moveable furniture with exception of Witness Stand, and Clocks 

ii. ACS Furnished, Landlord Installed (AFLI) 
a. Spectator Bench Seating at all courtrooms 
b. Window Horizontal Blinds at all windows and interior relites (not door lites). 
c. Marker Boards at all Jury Deliberation Rooms 
d. Carpet Tile Flooring at all Areas. 
e. Acoustical Wall Panels at Courtrooms and Grand Jury Room 
f. Cipher Locks at areas noted in Paragraph 21E.9 
g. Interior Wall Signage at all lease areas.  
h. Interior Building Directory at each floor. 

10) Copy of Dept. of Labor Notice of Work:  Required by AK Little Davis Bacon Act, this notice 
should include list of construction work, list of subcontractors, and contract price being paid to each 
contractor and subcontractor. Reference Technical Lease Requirements, Paragraph 6D.   

C. The ACS shall provide written approval and notice to proceed after each submittal package required in 
Paragraph B above.  

D. During Construction:  The Landlord shall advise and request approval from the ACS of any changes to 
the approved plans and specifications, and submittals.  The Landlord shall provide the following notices 
and coordination: 

1) Opportunity for Pre-Cover Inspection:  Prior to installation of wall and ceiling materials, provide 
48 hour notice to the ACS.  The ACS may choose to inspect walls and above ceiling areas to 
confirm conditions. 

2) Audio System Coordination:  Three (3) weeks prior to the Lease Commencement Date 
coordinate with the ACS to allow ACS installation of audio system and security systems.   

3) ACS Provided, Landlord installed Materials:  Coordinate with ACS to prepare construction for 
ACS provided, Landlord installed materials and equipment noted above. Coordinate delivery and 
installation of these items so that they are completed by the Lease Commencement Date.  

4) Updated Subcontractor List:  Provide updated Subcontactor List upon any changes from the list 
submitted to the Dept. of Labor. 

E. Prior to Occupancy:   
1) Provide an executed Certificate of Occupancy from the AHJ for the lease space, if available. If 

AHJ does not provide a Certificate of Occupancy, Landlord shall provide a written statement from 
the Architect of Record to the effect that the premises are, to the best of the Architect’s knowledge, 
compliant with all building code requirements applicable to the premises. 

2) Compliance Statement:  A written statement from the Architect of Record that completed facility 
and the offered space complies with the ADA Guidelines and this Request for Proposals. 

3) Balancing Report. Provide a Final Balancing Report, which has been reviewed and accepted by 
Engineer of Record prior to submittal to the ACS.  

4) Provide Data Termination Test Reports 

F. After Occupancy:  Upon completion of construction and within one (1) month after the Lease 
Commencement Date provide the following: 

1) Two (2) full size sets of as-built drawings scaled no less than 1/8” including code occupancies and 
net usable square footages for each room.  Minimum size of drawings shall be 22”x34”.  Provide 
PDF and hard copies of drawings.  

160



Bethel Lease RFP   November 16, 2017 

Page 4 of 20 TECHNICAL LEASE REQUIREMENTS  
 

2) A full set of as-built specifications  
3) A full set of O & M Manuals 
4) Alaska Building Energy Efficiency Standard (BEES) Compliance Confirmation:  Engineer of Record 

shall provide written certification of compliance. 
 
6. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND CODES:  All existing structures or new construction and all appurtenances 

thereto shall conform to all applicable laws, codes, ordinances and regulations pertaining thereto.  Industry 
standards and best design practices shall apply where local ordinances and regulations, state laws and codes 
are absent. Minimum requirements established herein shall not be construed as lowering the standard 
established by local regulations and when such local regulations contain more stringent provisions, they shall 
govern.  The Landlord shall be responsible for obtaining all required permits.   

A. All space offered in response to this RFP must comply with applicable Federal and State laws and 
regulations pertaining to occupational health and safety. 

B. Floor loading shall comply with the current Live Load Table in the adopted edition of the International 
Building Code as applicable for the type of building and space. The court may have some spaces that 
require loads heavier than standard office loading. Reference Appendix C – Space Programming Sheets for 
specific designations. 

1) NOTE:  Assume Uniform Live Load for Server Room and the Communications Room will be 
150lbs/SF. 

2) Sound Doors:  Sound door assemblies can be heavy.  Coordinate with door frame and structural 
design.  

C. By signature on this RFP document, the Landlord acknowledges that the Landlord will be responsible for 
the accomplishment and cost of any building alterations, which may be required to correct violations of 
applicable laws, codes, ordinances and regulations detected by the ACS or AHJ during the period of the 
ACS occupancy. 

D. Alaska Little Davis Bacon Act:  Offerors are advised that construction or remodeling in connection with this 
contract is subject to the Alaska Little Davis Bacon Act, Alaska Statutes Chapter 36.05.  .  The OWNER will 
notify the Department of Labor, Labor Standards and Safety Division of this Contract in accordance with AS 
36.05.035.  The Contractor must then comply with the requirements noted within the Department of Labor 
pamphlet entitled, “Laborer’s and Mechanic’s Minimum Rates of Pay,” found on-line at 
http://labor.state.ak.us/lss/forms/pamp600-040113.pdf,  The minimum wages to be paid various classes of 
laborers, mechanics, or field surveyors are shown in that wage determination.  The rate of wages shall be 
adjusted to the wage rate under AS 36.05.010. 

Before work commences, the Offeror, or their primary contractor, shall file the required Notice of Work with the 
Department of Labor and Workforce Development, with a copy to the ACS.  The Offeror is responsible for 
payment of all filling fees on the contract. 

 
7. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA) COMPLIANCE:  The design and construction of the offered 

space and any subsequent alterations of the offered space shall meet the specifications of the Americans with 
Disabilities Act Accessibility Guidelines for Buildings and Facilities (ADAAG, 28 CFR part 35) as published in 
the Federal Register on September 15, 2010 on the date of occupancy and throughout the entire occupancy of 
the ACS. 

A. The Americans with Disabilities Act of l990 (42 U.S.C. 12131) defines the State of Alaska as a “public 
entity” subject to Title II of the ADA. The Landlord must provide ADA compliant space as it applies to a 
public entity.  In providing space that meets the Title II requirements, the Landlord does not have and will 
not attain the right to direct how, when or where program services are delivered.  The Landlord must 
provide ADA compliant space that would be required as if the offered space were in a newly constructed, 
State-owned, facility from which all program services are directly delivered to the public. 

B. Landlord must certify, via a statement from an architect registered to practice in the State of Alaska that 
the completed facility and the offered space complies with the ADA/ANSI Guidelines and this Request for 
Proposals.  

1) It is critical that ADA access is provided for the public when participating in public proceedings and 
on juries, as jurors, litigants or witnesses. Additionally ADA access must allow the public to fully 
utilize all public areas, including entrances, public hallways, restrooms, customer service counter, 
jury assembly, grand jury, jury rooms, and courtrooms.   

161

http://labor.state.ak.us/lss/forms/pamp600-040113.pdf


Bethel Lease RFP   November 16, 2017 

Page 5 of 20 TECHNICAL LEASE REQUIREMENTS  
 

This statement must be submitted for approval prior to occupancy, but after completion of all new 
construction or alteration as necessary to respond to this Request for Proposals.  

C. ACS’s inspection and acceptance of the Landlord’s space and alterations does not relieve the Landlord 
of responsibility for continuing ADA compliance.  The Landlord further agrees to pay the cost of any 
corrections, which may be needed during the period of ACS’s occupancy for purposes of correcting 
deficiencies to meet the above prescribed ADA compliance. 

D. In the event the Landlord fails to correct deficiencies within a period of thirty (30) days from receipt of 
written notification, the ACS will have the right to terminate the lease; or, the ACS will have the option of 
correcting deficiencies by hiring competent workers, with the Landlord bearing the cost of all labor and 
materials.  The ACS will have the right to deduct all of the costs incurred, including administrative costs, 
from the lease payment.  The Landlord further agrees that deficiency corrections performed by the ACS will 
not be construed to constitute a breach of this lease. 

 
8. ARRANGEMENT AND TYPE OF SPACE: The Landlord shall provide net usable office space as defined above 

and as identified in Appendix A - Lease Space Requirements. Floor Plans shall be arranged in accordance with 
functional and spatial relationships, adjacencies and access as described in Appendix C – Space Programming 
Sheets.  Reference Appendix B Schematic Courthouse Floor Plan for a diagrammatic depiction of these 
adjacencies and Relationships.  

A. NOTE: Appendix B Schematic Courthouse Floor Plan is provided for the Proposer’s benefit as an 
illustration of those relationships, adjacencies and required access.  Appendix B is not a required floor 
plan – it is solely provided as an example of one possibility for complying with those contract 
requirements.   

B. Note that there are 3 types of occupancies, circulation and access possible for each space:  Public Halls, 
Secure Staff Halls and Secure Prisoner Transport.  Public Halls and Secure Prisoner Transport access 
points and circulation paths are separate and do not intermingle. The ACS prefers, where possible, that 
the Secure Staff Halls and Secure Prisoner Transport access points and circulation paths are also separate, 
but realizes that this is difficult to accomplish.  Limit Secure Staff Halls and Secure Prisoner Transport 
intermingling as much as possible. 

 
9. INGRESS AND EGRESS:  Access and required adjacencies are specified in Appendix C – Space 

Programming Sheets.  Below subparagraphs specifically describe ingress and egress from the lease space.  

A. ADA Compliant elevator service must be provided if lease space is not fully accommodated on the first 
floor.  Elevator, if required, must operate 24 hours a day, 7 days a week, unless ACS requests closure.  All 
entry access to the leased space from the exterior shall be by exterior arctic entries (does not include exits 
required and used solely for fire exiting.   

B. ADA access must be provided from accessible parking spaces to the Public Entry and throughout the public 
areas of the courthouse.  

C. The public access shall immediately enter a secure Screening Lobby after passing through the arctic entry.  
A public lobby shall be provided subsequent to the Screening Lobby.  

D. The ingress/egress points for both staff and Prisoner Transport must be separated from the public access, 
and into a secured part of the courthouse. Prisoner Transport must be visually isolated from the public 
access, and it is preferred that it is also visually isolated from Private staff Entries. 

E. The ACS shall have the exclusive right to the leased space. 
 

10. INDOOR AIR QUALITY: The ACS is concerned about indoor air quality (IAQ) and chemical emissions. The 
Landlord shall control selection of materials and process used in project construction in order to attain an IAQ 
acceptable to the ACS and in compliance with codes.  Where feasible, products with low VOC content shall be 
used in construction. 

 
11. SPECIALTY CODE COMPLIANCE:  The building shall conform to the thermal and lighting energy standards 

established by ASHRAE 90-75 and to OSHA codes. 
 
 

162



Bethel Lease RFP   November 16, 2017 

Page 6 of 20 TECHNICAL LEASE REQUIREMENTS  
 

12. ENERGY CONSERVATION REQUIREMENTS:  The leased premises must comply fully with the Alaska 
Building Energy Efficiency Standard (BEES), effective April, 2007 and the 2006 International Energy 
Conservation Code with state or local adopted amendments as appropriate.  Engineer of Record shall provide 
written certification of compliance. Copies of the International Energy Conservation Code 2006 can be 
purchased via bookstores on the Web.  Copies of BEES are available at www.ahfc.state.ak.us/ric.cfm 

 
13. GENERAL ELECTRICAL REQUIREMENTS: 

A. Electric Wiring Standards:  All electrical work performed under this specification shall comply with the 
most recent edition of the following codes or rules: 

1) The National Electric Code of the National Board of Fire Underwriters. 
2) The rules, regulations and codes of the Federal, State, City or other local entity. 
3) The standardized rules of the National Electrical Manufacturer's Association. 
4) Reference Paragraph 12 - Energy Conservation Requirements, for additional requirements 
5) TIA 942-A for minimum requirements for telecommunications infrastructure of computer rooms. 

The above minimum requirements shall not preclude the use of higher-grade materials or better 
workmanship. 

B. Main Service Facilities:  The main service facilities and meter panel shall be adequate to provide for the 
electrical load that will be required.  This service shall be enclosed in a suitable enclosure, which is readily 
accessible for inspection.  Single phase, 60 cycles, 120/240V services shall be supplied at a minimum. 
Electrical service for the portion of the property leased by the Court system shall be independently metered 
and located in a secured room. 

C. Finishes:  All face plates for outlets, switches and other devices must be stainless steel finish. All switches 
and devices shall be ivory.  All lighting trim shall be stainless steel or prefinished paint similar to the ceiling 
or wall color (typically ivory).  All surface raceways must be prefinished paint to match wall color.  

D. Lighting:  Light fixtures which are capable of producing well-diffused artificial illumination at the work 
surface of not less than 50 FC average must be provided in all lease space areas of the courthouse, with 
the following exceptions  

1) Lobbies (this does not include Customer Service Counter Lobby or Public Entry Security 
Screening), hallways, stairs, entries, soundlocks, and restrooms shall have 20 FC average on the 
floor.   

Light fixtures must be recessed or provided with suitable diffusers approved by the ACS. Bare lamp fixtures 
will not be acceptable, except for mechanical/electrical rooms, or other support areas approved by the ACS.  
Appropriate wall switches shall control general office space lighting fixtures.  In addition to the above 
requirements, provide the following: 

1) Courtrooms:  Lighting for Courtrooms shall have dimming capacity at spectator seating area and 
jury seating area. Lighting for spectator seating, jury seating, arena area and Judges Bench area 
shall all be separately switched.  Judge’s bench and arena light fixtures shall be visually 
differentiated from the jury and spectator seating areas by size, layout and type of light fixture.  A 
room lighting control system with these areas controlled from a single control station is acceptable 
in lieu of separate switching. 

2) Fluorescent Lamps at Courtrooms, Grand Jury Room, offices, Jury Deliberation Rooms, and 
clerical areas: T8 4100K, tri-phosphor lamps with a minimum CRI of 86, and a minimum rated life 
of 36,000 hours, based on 3 hours per start using programmed start ballasts.  Compact fluorescent 
lamps shall utilize amalgam technology, shall match the color temperature of the T8 lamps, shall 
have a minimum CRI of 82 and shall be provided with a 4 pin base when used with electronic 
ballasts and a 2 pin base when used with magnetic ballasts.  All 4-foot T8 fluorescent lamps shall 
be low-mercury type that passes the Toxicity Characteristic Leaching Procedure (TCLP) test at end 
of life. GE “Starcoat Ecolux XL Extra-Life”, Osram/Sylvania “Octron 800XP Ecologic”, Philips “Alto 
Plus T8”, or approved equal. 

3) LED Luminaires, Interior:  Wherever LED is provided instead of fluorescent, fixtures shall be 
4000K, minimum 82 CRI, with minimum rated life of 50,000 hours at 75°F average indoor ambient 
temperature.  LED shall be provided for all recessed downlight locations, unless prior approval is 
obtained by the ACS.   

4) Exterior Luminaries: Provide exterior LED lighting as required to safely illuminate the pathway from 
property line or parking area to building entrances.  Exterior egress lighting shall meet IBC 
requirements.  Provide UL 1572 outdoor salt water marine rating within 100 miles of coastlines; 
Complete with gaskets to form weatherproof assembly. Provide low temperature LED drivers, with 

163

http://www.ahfc.state.ak.us/ric.cfm


Bethel Lease RFP   November 16, 2017 

Page 7 of 20 TECHNICAL LEASE REQUIREMENTS  
 

reliable starting to -40º F.  Exterior LED luminaires shall be 4000K, minimum 70CRI, with minimum 
rated life of 50,000 hours at 40º F average outdoor ambient temperature.   Provide exterior lighting 
as necessary to illuminate flagpole at night, as noted in Paragraph 27 Flagpole. 

5) Emergency Lighting:  Emergency ballasts/drivers must be provided at open clerical areas, 
courtrooms, hearing rooms, grand jury room, meeting rooms, libraries, jury deliberation rooms, jury 
assembly, holding cells, corridors, restrooms, public lobbies and other public places in compliance 
with current code.  In addition, provide one (1) fixture in each courtroom as a night light.  
Coordinate with the ACS for the location of this fixture, but it will generally be located near the 
public entrance. 

6) Switching:   
i. Lighting in all office and clerical areas, grand jury rooms, jury assembly, jury deliberation 

rooms, conference rooms and libraries shall be supplied with multi-level switching.  For 
fluorescent fixtures, this may be provided via dimming, step-dimming, or inboard/outboard 
switching.  For LED fixtures, it is assumed this will be accomplished via dimming fixtures.     

ii. Switching at courtrooms, hearing rooms and grand jury room shall be located at the clerk’s 
entrance away from public access, and shall control soundlock vestibules as well as the 
courtroom or hearing room.  

iii. Switching for both the clerk’s area and customer service counter area shall be located at the 
clerk’s entrance, away from public access.   

iv. Motion sensor switches are required at offices, clerical areas, jury rooms, conference rooms, 
and libraries. 

v. Keyed switching: 
a. Required at JS Prisoner Transport areas, including holding areas, Holding Cells and 

circulation areas used solely by JS Transport. Locate switching for Holding Cells in 
supervised JS Transport area.  

b. Required at public spaces without a separated secured, supervised area:  This would 
include lobbies, hallways, stairways, public arctic entry, security screening area and Jury 
Assembly.   

 

E. Electrical Outlets:  Unless otherwise specified, office and similar space shall be provided with not less 
than one (1) quad convenience outlet for each 100 square feet of area.  Additionally, there must be at least 
one (1) duplex outlet on each wall in all spaces, with the exception of storage rooms, toilets, and holding 
cells.  In the Clerk’s Office, and all other staff offices provide one quad outlets  at one wall to be coordinated 
with the ACS. Unless specifically indicated, all electrical outlets shall be located 18” (to center) above 
finished floor level. Outlet strips and wire mold may be provided only at CMU or concrete walls. These 
outlets and wire mold must be similar to Wiremold Company’s pre-finished surface raceway system 
appropriate for use with power wiring and approved for use in dry interior locations only as covered in the 
National Electrical Code and are UL rated.  All other areas shall have conduit concealed behind building 
finishes.   

1) Floor outlets in all areas except for Courtrooms shall be Wiremold RFB4, recessed types, flush 
mounted with appropriate plate for floor covering – no plastic adaptors.  Courtrooms shall use 
Wiremold “Evolution” series floor boxes.  These boxes will accommodate electrical, data, and 
audio/video outlets in one recessed floor box – combine these outlets where appropriate.  
 

In addition to the above requirements, provide the all items shown on Appendix C–Lease Space 
Programming Requirements, and Appendix D.1 Judge’s Bench Casework (Page 3).   

Additional placement specifications include: 

2) Courtroom and Hearing Rooms:  
i. At courtroom Judge’s bench casework: Provide quad outlets at inside face of judge’s bench 

and in-court clerk station casework (at both ends of each counter), and a duplex outlet on the 
outside face of the Judge’s casework facing the witness stand placement.  

ii. At courtroom Arena and Seating Areas:  Provide duplex outlets at floor below litigant podium 
and each litigant table, and at in modesty walls in front of spectator seating and jury box.   

iii. Flat Screen Monitor Outlet:  There will be one (1) wall-mounted outlet for a video arraignment 
flat screen monitor.  Location and height shall be coordinated with the ACS prior to rough-in. 

3) Customer Service Counter Lobby:  

i. Provide (1) quad or (2) duplex outlets under Self-help Countertop. 

ii. Provide (2) duplex outlets under the Customer Service Counter. 

164



Bethel Lease RFP   November 16, 2017 

Page 8 of 20 TECHNICAL LEASE REQUIREMENTS  
 

4) Clerk’s Office and Judicial Assistant Open Office:  Provide (1) quad outlet at wall behind each 
workstation and at customer service counter as required in Appendix C Space Planning Sheets.  

5) Private Offices:  Provide (1) quad outlet at one wall for a workstation 

6) Server Room and Communications Room: All outlets within this room shall be 120VAC 20amp 
dedicated circuits with 20amp receptacles. Provide (3) additional 20amp duplexes adjacent to the 
Server Racks at the Server Room, and (2) additional 20amp duplexes adjacent to the Equipment 
Rack at the Communications Room. Refer to ANSI/TIA-607-B for bonding and grounding 
requirements for computer rooms. 

7) Public Entry Security Screening: Provide wall outlet for Walk-thru equipment at wall adjacent to 
Walk-Thru, and provide quad floor outlet for Scanner at location coordinated with the ACS. 

8) Lobby:  Locate a duplex at 8’-0”AFF in main floor Lobby close to elevators, stairs, or courtrooms, 
or Clerk’s Office, for Electronic Calendar monitor.   

9) Coffee Counters:  Provide additional outlets at wall above and below countertop for appliances as 
required in Appendix C Space Planning Sheets. 

10) Parking:  Provide a minimum of (9) headbolt heater outlets: (8) located at Staff parking and (1) 
located at Prisoner Transport Parking locations. 

F. Box Placement: Outlet boxes sizes and physical location may vary according to millwork, flooring and 
ceiling finishes, and casework and furniture layout.  Outlet locations, type, and specifications shall be 
approved by the ACS.  

 
14. LOW VOLTAGE SYSTEMS:  Provide all outlets for phone, data, duress, sound system, and video arraignment 

systems shown below and as noted on Appendix C – Space Programming Sheets.  Landlord must provide the 
facility with either two (2) DSL circuits or two (2) cable modems, terrestrial internet with a minimum speed of 6/2 
Mb.  ACS will pay for monthly usage costs for internet. 

A. Telephones:  Telephone service must be installed in accordance with requirements set forth below.  All 
conduit and other features necessary to satisfy the telephone company's requirements shall be included in 
the building by the Landlord. 

1) Unless otherwise specified, telephone ports will be included in the digital network communications 
outlets specified below. Outlet, cable, conduit and routing for phone outlets are identical to, and 
incorporated into the digital network communications requirements. 

2) The ACS will be responsible only for the actual connection of telephone and communications 
equipment required by ACS. 

B. Digital Network Communications:  Adequate network service must be installed in accordance with 
requirements set forth below.  All conduit and other features necessary to satisfy ACS requirements shall be 
included in the building as part of this project.  All conduit must be rigid type. 

1) Unless otherwise specified, offices, clerical areas, courtrooms, hearing rooms, conference rooms, jury 
rooms, law library, and similar space shall be provided with the necessary conduits – sized at ¾” 
minimum – and boxes to allow for the installation of one 4-port digital outlet box per each 100 square 
feet of area or on 3 of the 4 walls of the room, whichever is greater.   

2) The quad outlet shall provide for 4 Cat 6 lines terminating in Cat 6 RJ-45 female connections. Locate 
quad outlet adjacent to power outlet wherever possible.  The ACS will use ports for data, phones or 
duress at their discretion.  Provide standard duplex sized deep back boxes, approximately 2 ½” X 4-
11/16” at walls, and Wiremold RFP A/V 9 or A/V11 (or appropriate for installation) recessed flush 
mounted boxes and flush covers at floors – no plastic adaptors.  Provide network cables and 
connectors installed by project certified communication technicians unless otherwise noted in these 
documents. Certified communications technicians to install, terminate and test all cabling and 
connections.  Provide test reports to the ACS. 

i. At Courtrooms:  Reference Paragraph 13.E.1 for the type of floor boxes required to 
accommodate electrical, data, and audio outlets within one box.  

3) Provide numbering at all data ports as follows:  Room# - quad# - port#, where “quad #” starts with 
1 at first location clockwise from entrance and follows clockwise through the room. Port# is Left top 
= 1, Right top = 2, Left bottom = 3, Right bottom = 4. Data ports in the patch panel are to be located 
in number order from lowest to highest. 

165



Bethel Lease RFP   November 16, 2017 

Page 9 of 20 TECHNICAL LEASE REQUIREMENTS  
 

4) Network cabling shall be homeruns from outlet to a patch panel in the communications room. The 
length of the horizontal cabling from the communication room to any quad outlet shall not exceed 
250’.   

5) Each Communication Room shall be provided with a Landlord provided/installed patch panel and 
patch cords, and an ACS provided and installed server and telecom racks.  Racks shall be floor 
mounted with ample adjacent space for other racks or panel boards to be provided by ACS, 
including duress panel if used.  Reference Appendix E – Server Room for layout.  The patch 
panel(s) shall be adequately sized for the quantity of cables, and an expansion capacity of 10%.  
Provide patch cords of adequate length to connect patch panel to ACS-furnished network 
equipment.  Reference paragraph 13E.4 for power requirements for racks.  If there is a 
Communications Room in addition to the Server Room, provide a 2” conduit (size to be confirmed 
during design) with sufficient cabling including termination boxes (located top of rack) for 
communication room interconnect.  

6) Additional requirements include: 

i. Courtroom and Hearing Rooms:  

a. At Judge’s bench casework: Provide an outlet at inside face of modesty wall at judge’s 
bench and inside face modesty wall at both ends of judge’s and in-court clerk’s casework.  

b. At Arena Area:  Provide outlet at floor below each litigant table.   

ii. Customer Service Counter Lobby: Locate (1) outlet under Self-help Countertop and (1) 
outlet under Customer Service Counter 

iii. Secure Screening Lobby: Locate (1) outlet in floor below scanner, adjacent to power outlet as 
coordinated with ACS.  Locate one (1) outlet in wall adjacent to screening staff furnishings. 

iv. Lobby:  Locate (1) outlet 8’-0”AFF (adjacent to power outlet) in 1
st
 floor Lobby close to 

elevators, stairs, or courtrooms, or Clerk’s Office, for Electronic Calendar monitor.   

v. Clerk’s Office and Judicial Assistant Open Office:  Provide outlet at wall behind each 
workstation as required in Appendix C Space Planning Sheets.  

C. Audio System:  The ACS shall provide audio recording equipment for each courtroom, hearing room, and 
grand jury room, and a public announcement system for each jury assembly room or area.  Provide 
conduit, junction boxes, supports, cover plates, and other necessary items to accommodate the ACS 
supplied audio and PA equipment, cabling, and attachments.   

1) Floor boxes At Courtrooms:  Reference Paragraph 13.E.1 for the type of floor boxes required to 
accommodate electrical, data, and audio outlets within one box.  

2) Microphones:  Provide wall, ceiling or floor boxes with appropriate cover plates to accommodate 
microphones.  Additional placement specifications include: 

i. Courtrooms and Hearing Rooms:  

a. At Judge’s Bench:  Provide one outlet each at inside face of the Judicial Bench casework 
below judge’s countertop and clerk’s countertop.  

b. At Witness: Place outlet on the outside face of the Judge’s casework facing the witness 
stand.  

c. Jury Box:  Provide outlet at front modesty wall (facing jurors) and at back wall of the jury 
box.  

d. Spectator Seating:  Provide outlet at each end of the spectator rail.  

e. Litigant Tables:  Place one outlet in the floor below each litigant table and one outlet 
between the tables for a podium. 

f. If Ante Room is scheduled:  Place one outlet in ceiling. 

ii. At Grand Jury:   

a. Place one outlet in the wall adjacent to clerk’s desk 

b. Place one outlet below witness and litigant table(s) 

c. Place up to three floor outlets throughout the juror seating area, and two on each wall.   

iii. At Jury Assembly:  Provide outlet on wall near Court Clerk’s desk. 

 

166



Bethel Lease RFP   November 16, 2017 

Page 10 of 20 TECHNICAL LEASE REQUIREMENTS  
 

3) Speakers: Provide junction boxes in the ceiling to accommodate speakers as follows (exact 
locations within rooms to be determined by the ACS). 

i. At Courtrooms and Hearing Rooms:  There are to be six (6) to eight (8) speaker locations:  
One (1) behind the judge, one (1) behind the witness, two (2) above the jury seating, and two 
(2) or four (4) speakers above the public seating area as appropriate.  Provide three separate 
junction boxes for jury box, spectator seating and judge/witness. 

ii. At Grand Jury Room:  There are to be two (2) to three (3) speaker locations:  one (1) behind 
the witness and one (1) or two (2) above the juror seating. 

iii. At Public Lobby and Jury Assembly:  There are to be two (2) - four (4) speaker locations 
(depending on size of space), for announcements from the microphone in the Clerk of Court 
Area or Clerk’s desk in Jury Assembly. 

4) Junction Boxes: Clerk’s Junction Box (CJB):  Provide one (1) 18” high x 18” wide x 6” deep flush 
mounted junction box with screw on cover in the following locations: 

i. At Courtrooms and Hearing Rooms: In accessible location in side modesty wall of casework 
beneath the In-Court Clerk’s work surface – typically between between Judge and Clerk.   

ii. At Grand Jury Room: At wall behind or adjacent to Clerk’s desk  

iii. Floor Boxes at Courtrooms:  Reference Paragraph 13.E.1 for the type of floor boxes required to 
accommodate electrical, data, and audio outlets within one box.  

5) Conduits:  No junction boxes are permitted in the microphone runs without express approval 
of the ACS.  No more than 270 degrees total bends are allowed in any one conduit run. All 
conduit must be rigid type.  In addition to other requirements provide conduit at the following 
locations for audio connections: 

i. Provide 3 /4” conduit from Clerk’s Junction Box (CJB) to each of four microphone areas (jury, 
judge’s bench, spectator seating and podium/litigant tables), and to each speaker junction 
boxes within the room.  In lieu of conduit, J-hooks may be provided above accessible ceilings. 

ii. Provide 3 /4” conduit from CJB in each courtroom or hearing room to microphone outlet in 
corresponding ante room, or other room adjoining courtroom if specified. 

iii. Provide two (2) 1” conduits from each CJB to the Communication Room, and one (1) 2” conduit 
from CJB into accessible ceiling outside courtroom. 

iv. Provide 3 4’” conduit from microphone outlet in Jury Assembly Area to ceiling speakers both in 
Jury Assembly and adjacent Lobby.  Exact location and height of microphone outlets and 
speaker to be coordinated with ACS. 

D. Duress Alarm System: Duress alarm wiring and equipment will be installed by ACS. Communication 
outlets, conduit and wiring may be used for duress alarm as noted in Paragraph B above.   

F. Video Systems: Provide conduit and junction boxes for ACS provided video equipment. ACS will install 
video wiring and equipment. Provide structural backing within wall adequate for installation of ACS provided 
flat screen monitors on an adjustable wall bracket where they occur. Provide all necessary conduits and 
outlet boxes to install equipment at the following locations: 

1) Courtrooms: Provide 1 1 4” conduit from Clerk’s Junction Box (CJB) to Flat Screen Monitor in 
Courtroom, typically behind Clerk’s Bench. Exact location and height of j-box to be coordinated with 
ACS. 

2) Jury Assembly:  Provide 1” conduit from j-box at wall to stub out above accessible ceiling at two 
locations  for video system controls and flat screen TV monitor.  Exact location and height of j-box 
to be coordinated with ACS. 

3) JS Prisoner Holding Area: Provide 1” conduit from each holding cell to a single wall location 
within the JA Prisoner Transport Holding room.   At each holding cell, terminate conduit at a j-box 
recessed in the ceiling in one corner of the cell.  Provide a junction box at the Prisoner Transport 
Holding room of size sufficient to accommodate all conduit. Final locations of j-boxes to be 
coordinated with ACS 

 
 
 

167



Bethel Lease RFP   November 16, 2017 

Page 11 of 20 TECHNICAL LEASE REQUIREMENTS  
 

15. PLUMBING: 

A. Drinking Water:  Water suitable for drinking purposes shall be provided in public areas as well as for staff. 
Bar sinks with goose necked faucet and drinking water shall be provided at all coffee preparation casework 
in jury rooms, grand jury, jury assembly, and clerk’s office as specifically identified in Paragraph 17 and in 
Appendix C – Space Programming Sheets. Typical locations include jury deliberation rooms, grand jury 
rooms, clerk’s office and jury assembly rooms in coffee preparation cabinets.  Provide a current test report 
for water.  

B. Restrooms and Holding Cells:  Restrooms and Holding Cells shall be provided as specified in Appendix A 
- Lease Space Requirements, and Appendix C – Space Programming Sheets, for jury rooms and staff 
areas.  Adequate public restrooms shall be provided at Landlord’s expense on each floor in compliance 
with all applicable codes and the State's safety regulations.  Provisions shall be made for ADA and ANSI 
Compliance in accordance with applicable codes.  Each restroom shall have hot and cold running water. All 
piping for plumbing and heating must be concealed. 

C. Holding Cell Fixtures:  Provide one (1) detention grade stainless steel combination sink/toilet fixture at 
each holding cell.  Provide plumbing chases with security type access doors to allow access to the 
plumbing for each combination unit.  One plumbing chase may access the plumbing for 2 or more combo 
sink/toilet fixtures if cell layout allows.  Provide non-pickable caulking around all fixtures.  

 
16. HEATING, VENTILATION AND AIR CONIDITIONING: 

A. Fuel Oil Tank:  Provide fuel oil tank of adequate capacity for the facility, in a secure location.  A separate 
fuel oil tank shall be provided for the ACS’s heating systems within their lease space, if the ACS is not the 
sole tenant of the building. Provide a lockable cap on the fuel tank.   

B. Heating and Cooling: A central heating and cooling system shall be provided to maintain a uniform 
temperature between 68 degrees F and 75 degrees F in the comfort zone throughout the building and 
office space, or as required by Federal or State regulations.. Heating system for the portion of the property 
leased by the Court system shall be independently controlled and metered. The comfort zone is defined as 
the area that is between the floor to a height of eight (8) feet from the floor.  Reference paragraph 29, 
Energy Conservation Requirements for additional requirements. NOTE: Electric heating is not permitted 
unless engineering calculations demonstrate that it is cost effective in comparison to other fuel 
sources 

1) Server and Communications Rooms: Reference Paragraph D below regarding additional Server 
and Communications ventilation requirements.  

2) If the temperature is not maintained within the 68 degrees F - 75 degrees F range for a period of 
more than two consecutive working days, the Landlord shall, upon receipt of a written notice from 
the ACS, provide, as appropriate, suitable temporary auxiliary heating or cooling equipment to 
maintain the temperature in the specified range. 

3) If temporary auxiliary equipment is necessary to meet normal weather contingencies for more than 
Twenty One (21) consecutive working days, the Landlord shall initiate a continuing and diligently 
applied effort to rectify the deficiency causing the failure and to uniformly maintain the temperature 
range required. 

4) If after Thirty (30) consecutive working days the temporary auxiliary equipment is still necessary to 
meet normal weather contingencies, the ACS may repair the heating and/or ventilation at 
Landlord's expense or may terminate the lease.   

5) "Working days" for the purposes of this section shall be defined as days normally scheduled by the 
ACS as open for the conduct of its normal business. 

C. Ventilation:  The building must be served by a mechanical system designed in compliance with IMC 2009 
and ASHRAE standards 55-10 and 62-10, which provides a uniform temperature of 68 degrees F and a 
minimum Cubic Feet per Minute (CFM) per occupant load). The design shall provide a control system 
allowing varying amounts up to 100% of outside air to be used for economizer cooling at times when 
heating is not required.  All restrooms must be adequately ventilated.  Ventilation may depend on opening 
windows in areas other than courtrooms, hearing rooms, jury deliberation, grand jury rooms and 
server/communications rooms; as long as the open windows are screened and do not unacceptably 
increase the noise level or security risk, or bring noxious fumes into the building. Ventilation by opening 
windows is not acceptable during inclement or cold weather. 

168



Bethel Lease RFP   November 16, 2017 

Page 12 of 20 TECHNICAL LEASE REQUIREMENTS  
 

D. Server and Communication Rooms: The communications rooms will house the ACS’s servers, audio 
systems, phone system, duress system, video system and other electronic equipment to ensure functional 
court operations.” The operating computer room environment shall conform to a C1 environmental 
conditions as defined in ANSI/TIA-568-C.0. HVAC shall be provided on a 24 hours-per-day, 365 days-per-
year basis.  Cooling system for the Server room and Communications Room must provide a uniform 
temperature between 60 degrees F and 70 degrees F. The cooling systems must exhaust away the 25,000 
BTUs per hour of heat produced by the ACS’s typical Server Room equipment, and a Communications 
Room must exhaust away the 2,000 BTUs per hour of heat produced by the ACS’s typical secondary 
Communications Room equipment. Note that Landlord is responsible for equipment damaged by excessive 
heat, if cooling systems fail to cool adequately up to the quantity of BTUs specified and to the C1 
environmental conditions required.  

E. Controls: Controls for the adjustment of heat and/or ventilation in the offices and Jury Assembly, 
Courtrooms, Grand Jury Rooms, and Jury Deliberation Rooms must be positioned in a convenient and 
unobtrusive place. Individual temperature controls shall be provided at each jury room, grand jury, jury 
assembly room, meeting room, courtroom, and hearing room.  

1) Courtroom/hearing room controls shall be located outside the courtroom, next to the entrance 
dedicated for use by the court or at the In-Court Clerk’s station.  

2) Controls for Clerk’s Office may include Clerk of Court office and Customer Service counter areas. 

3) Controls for Judge’s Chambers, Judicial Assistant office, and Law Clerk Office may be grouped if 
the spaces are located together along only one side of a building. 

4) Controls for Server and Communications Rooms shall be located inside the room, on the wall 
adjacent to the front of the racks, and away from the cooling.  

5) Provide clear lockable wall mounted enclosure at all Controls located in public accessible areas, 
and at prisoner holding areas. 

F. Commissioning, Operations and Testing:  Landlord shall perform the following operations and testing of 
existing and new building systems prior to Lease Commencement Date. 

1) At unoccupied buildings:  Operate the building ventilation system as necessary to flush building of 
construction product air borne contaminants from new materials. 

2) If Landlord proposes to use a building with existing ductwork:  Clean supply air ventilation system 
throughout all spaces to be leased. 

3) Balance and adjust the facility’s existing and new mechanical systems to obtain a fully functional 
and properly operating system.  An experienced and certified balancing contractor shall be used to 
perform this work, and shall provide a copy of the balancing report to ACS prior to occupancy as 
required in above Paragraph 5.D.3.   

 

17. CASEWORK AND FINISH CARPENTRY:  Reference Appendix C – Space Programming Sheets for specific 
casework locations, quantities, dimensions, and other attributes to be included in this lease offer.  All casework 
required shall have exposed surfaces finished with hardwood trim, hardwood veneer, solid surface, stone 
materials, or plastic laminate as scheduled below and in Appendix C.  Semi-exposed surfaces must be finished 
with melamine or better material.  Provide plastic laminate at countertops, self-edged, or with wood trim.  Post-
formed rolled edges are not acceptable. Provide 4” High backsplash at wet countertop areas.  Provide 
minimum 3/4” thick plywood substrate for countertops and casework with suitable structural support. Typically, 
countertops shall have 2 3/8” grommets above electrical/data outlets. Wood trim throughout facility shall be 
hardwood of consistent or complementary type and finish.  

A. ACS Provided Courtroom Casework:  The ACS shall provide and install pre-fabricated casework for the 
Judge’s bench, In-Court Clerk’s bench, and Movable Witness Stand and Witness Platform.  The Landlord 
shall provide jury box and spectator seating modesty walls, wood base at arena, jury box, and modesty 
walls, and all finish carpentry and casework within the Courtroom.  The species and finish of all casework 
and finish carpentry shall match the ACS’s provided Judge’s Bench casework.    

1)  The Judge’s Bench/Clerk’s Bench casework will be designed and constructed to be installed on a 18” 
high and 6” high platform built by the Landlord.  This casework shall have one face of the modesty 
walls left uncovered as necessary to allow the Landlord’s installation of electrical and low voltage 
conduit and devices within the wall.  Reference Appendix D.5 Jury and Judge’s Platform Detail and 
Appendix D.1 Judge’s Bench Casework for required platform size and configuration. 

169



Bethel Lease RFP   November 16, 2017 

Page 13 of 20 TECHNICAL LEASE REQUIREMENTS  
 

2)  The Landlord shall coordinate with the ACS to ensure that the Judge’s Bench platform is sized and 
configured, and the electrical/low voltage conduits are located appropriately for a finished installation.  
Reference D.1 Judge’s Bench Casework for typical locations of electrical within modesty walls. 
Additionally, the Landlord shall coordinate with the ACS to ensure that the platform is built and electrical 
ready for the casework with sufficient installation time to avoid impacting the completion schedule.   

3)  The ACS shall furnish and set in place the Moveable Platform and Witness Stand.  Landlord shall install 
carpet on Movable Platform. 

4)   The Landlord and the ACS shall coordinate to ensure that the ACS provided casework matches the 
style, wood species and finishes of the remaining courtroom casework.  

5) ACS provided Judge’s Bench and Witness Stand casework shall consist of the following finishes, 
components and materials:  Reference D.1 Judge’s Bench Casework for configuration and finish 
details.   
i. Plastic laminate countertops with wood or self-edged fronts at judge and clerk’s bench.  

Adjustable keyboard tray will be provided at clerk countertop.  

ii. Plastic laminate faced roll-out shelf at alcove below counter for audio equipment rack at clerk’s 
bench.  Landlord will need to install Clerk’s Junction Box in modesty wall behind rack. 

iii. Front and side modesty walls finished with wood veneer on arena side, and wood veneer or 
plastic laminate on the Clerk/Judge side, and hardwood trimmed top caps and end cap and 
solid wood base. Ballistic shielding installed under wall veneer/plastic laminate face from 
platform to underside of countertop at front and outside return modesty wall of bench and 
underneath judge and clerk countertop.    

iv. Ledge in front of clerk and judge shall be 9” to 18” deep with a stone or solid surface finish  

v. Witness Stand and Platform will be separate and moveable, with minimum dimensions of 60” 
wide x 30” deep.  Carpet finish on Witness Stand Platform with solid wood edge trim.  

B. Spectator and Jury Box Seating: Railing wall, permanently affixed to floor structure, shall be provided in 
Courtrooms in front of spectator seating and in front of jury seating area.  If seating areas are lacking end 
walls, then railing wall shall be provided on open ends.  Modesty walls shall be 36” AFF (42”AFF on arena 
side where jury platform is 6”H), with wood veneer on both sides side walls to match the ACS provided 
Judge’s Bench, with option to use plastic laminate on the front wall on the side facing the jury or spectator 
seating.  The wood top cap and wood base shall be solid hardwood, and shall also match the ACS provided 
Judge’s Bench.  The spectator railing shall have one (1) 36” wide opening to arena at end or aisle, 
depending upon bench seating configuration.  Additionally, jury rail front wall shall have (1) 42” wide 
opening for wheelchair access at one end. 

B. Public Restroom Countertops:  Minimum 36” long x 24” deep ADA compliant countertops are required at 
sink areas in Public Restrooms. Provide back splashes in wet areas. 

C. Coffee Preparation Casework:  Countertop height to be 34” for ADA compliance at public areas and jury 
rooms, and 42” high at other areas.  All cabinets to match the countertop length with modesty panels at 
exposed end. Provide back splashes at wet areas. 

1) Provide a minimum 60” long countertop at Clerk’s Office, with (1) 3-drawer base cabinet and (1) sink 
cabinet.  

2) Provide a minimum 72” long countertop at sink at Jury Deliberation Room and Jury Assembly with (1) 
3-drawer base cabinet and (1) sink cabinet.  Extend counter over open space for under-counter 
refrigerator (provided by ACS) at Jury Deliberation Rooms.  At Jury Assembly add (1) 24”W adjustable 
shelf cabinet in lieu of open undercounter space. 

3) Provide a minimum 84” long countertop at sink at Grand Jury Room with (1) 3-drawer base cabinet, (1) 
sink cabinet and (1) 24”W adjustable shelf.  Extend counter over open space for under-counter 
refrigerator (provided by ACS).  Provide additional overhead cabinets over length of countertop. 

D. Customer Service Counters:  

1) At Customer Service Windows: Provide min. 96”long x 36” wide x 42”high. The depth of the counter 
shall extend 12” to the Customer Service Lobby side and shall extend 24” to the Clerk’s Office side.  
The counter shall run parallel to the wall a minimum of 6” past one jamb of the 60”W window; and 
extend past the adjacent 30”W window to 6” beyond the far jamb of that window.  At the start of the 
30”W window, the wall shall jog so that the full depth of the countertop is on the Customer Service 

170



Bethel Lease RFP   November 16, 2017 

Page 14 of 20 TECHNICAL LEASE REQUIREMENTS  
 

Lobby side of the window.  Provide cash drawer with lock on Clerk’s Office side below the 60”W 
window.   

i. Ballistic Shielding:  On the Clerk’s Office side of countertop - provide ballistic shielding from 
floor to underside of customer service countertop for full length of countertop, as well as on 
underside of customer service counter.  Ballistic shielding shall be Level 3 Resistant, of 
sufficient thickness to stop a 44-magnum handgun, but not less than 7/16” thick.  Provide 
locking, sliding glass doors to secure counter.  

2) A separate 60” long x 24” wide x 30” high ADA Compliant/Self Help counter must be provided in 
Customer Service Lobby along with ADA compliant access floor clearances.  

E. Courtroom Wood Base:  Provide 6” high wood base of species and finish to match the ACS provided 
Judge’s Bench.  Wood base to be provided at all courtroom arena wall, at the jury box back and side walls, 
at all modesty walls, and at front and side faces (arena facing sides) of the ACS provided Judge’s Bench.   
 

18. FURNISHINGS, FIXTURES AND EQUIPMENT:   

A. Window Coverings:  The ACS shall provide horizontal blinds with all necessary hardware for all windows 
and relites. The Landlord shall provide window measurements, details and configurations as necessary to 
allow ACS to procure correctly sized and controlled blinds with appropriate mounting hardware.  It is 
Landlord’s responsibility to ensure that the information provided is correct.   

B. Toilet Partitions: Provide toilet partitions at multiple toilet fixture rooms, and urinal screens at urinals. 
Partition doors shall have coat hooks.  Provide ADA compliant toilet partition/stall as required by code.  
Colors and finishes of partitions shall be selected from manufacturer’s standard and approved by the ACS. 

C. Toilet Accessories: Provide ADA compliant toilet accessories at all restrooms required to be ADA 
compliant: 

1) Public Men’s and Women’s Rooms: Each restroom – provide (1) paper towel dispenser/disposal 
(large capacity) and (1) baby changing station; Each Sink - (1) mirror and (1) counter-mounted soap 
dispenser; Each Toilet – (1) double roll toilet paper dispenser and (1) seat cover dispenser and (1) coat 
hook; Each Women’s Toilet – (1) sanitary napkin disposal. 

2) Jury Deliberation Restrooms:  In each restroom provide (1) paper towel dispenser/disposal (large 
capacity); (1) mirror with shelf; (1) soap dispenser; (1) toilet paper dispenser and (1) seat cover 
dispenser 

3) Staff and Judge’s Restrooms:  In each restroom provide (1) paper towel dispenser; (1) mirror with 
shelf; (1) soap dispenser; (1) toilet paper dispenser and (2) two stainless steel coat hooks. 

4) Coffee Preparation Counters: At each counter provide (1) paper towel dispenser; and (1) wall-
mounted soap dispenser. 

D. Spectator Seating: ACS to provide bench seating with finished hardwood back and fabric upholstered 
seats for courtrooms.  Landlord to provide to provide area measurements, details, floor construction 
information and configurations as necessary to allow ACS to procure correctly sized benches with 
appropriate mounting hardware.  Landlord to install benches with mechanical attachment as recommended 
by manufacturer.   

E. Marker Boards:  ACS to provide marker boards with trays for Jury Deliberation Rooms. Landlord to 
provide to provide wall measurements and construction as necessary to allow ACS to procure correctly 
sized boards with appropriate mounting hardware.  Landlord to provide backing and install marker boards 
mechanical attachment as recommended by manufacturer.   

F. Detention Grade Stainless Steel Benches:  Provide wall-mounted benches at each holding cell of length 
to coordinate with holding cell size and configuration.  Provide detention grade attachment hardware 
appropriate for the conditions and wall construction.  

G. Furnishings not attached to the wall or floor shall be provided by ACS, unless otherwise noted. 

 

19. ROOM FINISHES:   

A. Flooring: All floors shall be covered with materials of high quality and of long life and shall be free of 
defects.  Floor coverings shall be installed in a skillful manner common to the trade.  New floor covering 
shall be provided at all areas of an existing building proposed for this Contract.  

171



Bethel Lease RFP   November 16, 2017 

Page 15 of 20 TECHNICAL LEASE REQUIREMENTS  
 

1) ACS Provided Carpet:  The ACS shall provide InterfaceFlor carpet tiles and adhesive tactiles for this 
project.  Landlord to provide to provide area measurements and estimated square yard quantity as 
necessary to allow ACS to procure appropriate quantity of materials.  The Landlord shall provide 
subfloor preparation, carpet installation and provide/install rubber or wood base, transition strips, stair 
nosing and all other accessory materials.  InterfaceFlor carpet is installed using the manufacturer’s 
“TacTile Installation System”. Installation instructions can be found online at InterfaceFlor.com, or can 
be provided by the ACS.  Two or three different color/patterns will be selected by ACS for installation. 
Walk-off type of carpet tile will be selected for the Security Screening area. 

2) Other Flooring:  Floors shall be carpeted, except as follows and as noted on Appendix C – Space 
Programming Sheets. Floor coverings shall be installed in a skillful manner common to the trade.  
New floor covering shall be provided at all areas of an existing building proposed for this Contract. The 
ACS reserves the right to select colors from samples submitted by the Landlord: 

i. Arctic Entries:  Must be durable, easily maintainable, and of sufficient texture and fiber to 
remove dirt, snow and water from shoes and prevents any slipping hazard.   

ii. Restrooms:  Self-coved flooring or resilient flooring with rubber base as required for code 
compliance and as described in programming sheets (Appendix C). Material must be easily 
cleaned and maintained in a sanitary condition. 

iii. Storage Room and Communication Room:  Provide non-static sheet vinyl (preferred) or vinyl 
tile with rubber base.  Concrete can be used in Communication Room. 

iv. Holding Cell and JS Control/Holding areas:  Provide concrete with epoxy paint. 

B. Walls:  All walls shall be covered with materials of high quality and of long life and shall be free of defects 
Wall surfaces, which normally would be painted, shall be finished with a minimum of two (2) coats of interior 
latex paint, unless otherwise specified below.  All painted surfaces of an existing building proposed for this 
contract shall be newly re-finished with one (1) coat of paint, or more, as necessary to provide a clean 
consistent finish acceptable to the ACS. The ACS shall select colors for newly painted surfaces.  Landlord 
shall provide color chips that are complimentary with the general decor of the remainder of the facility. 

1) Hollow metal doors, frames and relite frames: shall be finished with semi-gloss paint to match wall 
color.  

2) All Restrooms: shall have semi-gloss for all painted surfaces.  Jury and Public Restrooms shall have 
FRP (fiber reinforced paneling), tile, or other easily maintained surface, on toilet fixture plumbing walls 
from floor to 48”AFF as required by applicable codes.  

3) Holding cells and JS Control/Transport areas: Holding Cells shall have epoxy paint on 5/8” high impact 
abuse resistant GWB on minimum ½” plywood on all wall surfaces. JS Control/Transport areas shall be 
similar, with omission of ½” plywood. Provide stainless steel, full height corner guards at outside 
corners with non-pickable sealant.  Provide non-pickable secure sealant in holding cells at all seams 
and gaps at plumbing fixtures, light fixtures, flooring, doors frames, etc.  

4) Evidence Storage: Provide painted 5/8” GWB over plywood at all walls. 

5) Communications Room Plywood Wall Finish: Provide 3/4” ACX fire rated plywood from 12”AFF to 
84”AFF at all walls of Communications Room.  Plywood to provide backing for equipment installation.  
Finish walls, including plywood with (2) coats of epoxy paint. 

6) ACS Provided Acoustical Wall Panels at Courtrooms and Grand Jury:  ACS to provide fabric wrapped 
1” thick acoustical wall panels for Landlord installation at back and side walls surrounding jury box and 
spectator seating areas in Courtrooms, and juror seating in Grand Jury.  Paneling will extend from just 
above seat back height (approximately 42”AFF) to the ceiling, and shall fully cover wall within that area. 
Landlord to provide wall measurements, wall/ceiling details, wall construction information and required 
wall cut-outs (as necessary for electrical or mechanical wall mounted components) to allow ACS to 
procure the correct quantity and sizes of panels.  Estimated field panel size is 36” wide x 66” high.   
Landlord to install acoustical panels using the ACS provided mechanically attached “Z” clips mounting 
system as recommended by manufacturer.  Adhesive installation of panels is not acceptable. 

7) Accent Colors and Finishes:  Provide a different color accent paint color on one (1) wall of offices, jury 
rooms, grand jury, jury assembly, and meeting rooms.  Provide an accent paint color or wood veneer 
(Preferred) finish on walls behind judge’s bench in courtrooms.    

C. Ceilings:  All occupied spaces must have a finished ceiling.   Ceilings shall be materials of high quality and 
of long life and shall be free of defects.  Sheetrock, metal or wood ceiling surfaces, which normally would 

172



Bethel Lease RFP   November 16, 2017 

Page 16 of 20 TECHNICAL LEASE REQUIREMENTS  
 

be painted, shall be finished similar to that specified for wall above. Provide the following ceiling finishes in 
areas as specified below unless otherwise agreed to by the ACS: 

 

1) All occupied offices, server and communications rooms, and similar type space (clerical areas, 
conference rooms, jury rooms, lobbies, jury assembly, and hallways) shall be equipped with a 
suspended acoustical tile ceiling capable of providing noise rate absorption of at least 60%. Acoustical 
tile and grid material, pattern and finish must be approved by ACS. 

2) All Restrooms shall have semi-gloss paint over gypsum board at ceiling surfaces.   

3) Holding Cells shall have epoxy paint on 5/8” high impact abuse resistant GWB on minimum ½” plywood 
on all ceiling surfaces. JS Control/Transport areas shall be similar, with omission of ½” plywood. Install 
non-pickable sealant. 

4) Evidence storage rooms must have painted gypsum board ceilings over plywood in lieu of suspended 
acoustical tile, and it is preferred that stairwells, arctic entries, soundlocks also have gypsum board 
ceilings.   

5) Ceiling over coffee preparation counters in jury rooms, jury assembly and clerk’s office may also have 
painted gypsum board in lieu of acoustical tile.   

6) Courtrooms shall have suspended acoustical tile in the arena, jury box, and spectator seating areas, 
divided by painted gypsum board soffits. It is preferred that ceilings over judge’s bench, clerk’s bench 
and witness stand have painted gypsum board soffits.  Ceilings over Jury Box and Spectator Seating 
shall be visually separated from arena by differing acoustical tile size.    

D. Miscellaneous:  All primed woodwork and metal surfaces, which would typically be painted, shall be 
finished with suitable semi-gloss enamel with color to be approved by the ACS.  
 

20. SOUND CONTROL REQUIREMENTS:  

A. Sound Walls:  Partitions around the Courtroom, Hearing room, Jury Deliberation and Grand Jury Suites, 
Sound Locks, Judges Chambers, and Clerk of Court Office shall have a laboratory Sound Transmission 
Class (STC) rating of not less than 45 (Reference Appendix J - Sound Isolation Wall). Sound walls 
around these areas must penetrate suspended ceiling and extend from floor to underside of floor/deck 
above with sound caulking at gypsum board gap at top and bottom of the partition. Additionally provide sill 
sealer at bottom and and sill sealer or rock wool as appropriate at top of wall. Sound transmission between 
Grand Jury and Jury Deliberation Rooms and any other area must be negligible.  Normal speaking voices 
must not penetrate the Jury Suite perimeter.  

B. JS Prisoner Holding:  Partitions around the perimeter of the JS Prisoner Holding areas (including holding 
cells) must extend from floor to underside of structure above with sound caulking at top and bottom of the 
partition.  Sound transmission between the JS Prisoner Holding areas and any other area must be 
negligible.  NOTE:  The toilet/sink combo unit can be very noisy so consideration shall be taken for routing 
of ducts, plumbing and above ceiling wall openings/penetrations to avoid unwanted sound transmission into 
other areas of the facility.   

C. Wall Penetrations:  All penetrations within sound walls must have sound isolations materials and a sound 
deadening configuration.  Provide full sound caulking or fire caulking around all piping penetrations; provide 
acoustically lined transfer ducts with upturned elbows (sound boots) at ductwork penetrations.  Limit 
necessary wall penetrations to one per stud cavity 

D. Ductwork and Mechanical Equipment:  All ductwork above courtrooms must have acoustical sound 
lining.  Do not locate noisy mechanical or electrical equipment above courtrooms.  

E. All other occupied offices and similar type space must have sufficient acoustical control to permit 
conferences and office work to progress simultaneously without distraction from outside noise from waiting 
room, restrooms, plumbing walls, lobbies and hallways.  
 

21. DOORS, HARDWARE, AND KEYING:   

A. STC Requirements at Sound Walls:  Door and relite assemblies, including door, frame, door lite, glazing 
and hardware, within Sound Walls (reference above paragraph) shall have a laboratory Sound 
Transmission Class (STC) rating of not less than 45.   

173



Bethel Lease RFP   November 16, 2017 

Page 17 of 20 TECHNICAL LEASE REQUIREMENTS  
 

B. Fire rated openings to have rated door, frame and hardware as required by code. 
 

C. Finishes:  Provide hardware and wood doors with consistent finishes as selected by ACS. 
 

D. Doors and Frames:  
1) Interior doors to all areas, except JS Prisoner Holding areas, shall be factory finished flush solid core 

wood door, 5 or 7 ply, wood veneer faces, Custom grade.   
2) JS Prisoner Holding areas shall be steel.  Thickness as required to be considered detention grade. 
3) Door size is typically 3-0”” wide x 7’-0” high, unless otherwise noted.   
4) All door and relite frames shall be factory welded hollow metal, minimum 16 gauge, unless otherwise 

specified in this RFP. Knock down frames are not acceptable. Existing knock down frames will need to 
be replaced with factory welded frames. 

5) Exterior doors and frames shall be insulated steel thermal broken type, minimum 16 gauge.  Knock-
down frames are not acceptable. 

6) JS Prisoner Holding: 
i. Interior doors shall be minimum 14 gauge steel; and door lite assemblies must be detention 

grade.   
ii. Holding Cell door frames must be grouted  
iii. Holding Cell doors must be prepped for food pass (described in Hardware) 
iv. Provide Southern Steel 590 Hinged Access Door or similar at plumbing chases. 
v. Holding Cell doors must swing out of the holding cell.  

7) Door Lites:   
i. Provide 4” wide x 24” high door lite at interior Courtroom sound lock doors, Judicial Assistant 

Office, Law Clerk Office, Jury Assembly, attorney conference rooms, and library. 
ii. Provide detention grade 24” wide x 24” high door lite at Holding Cells. 

8) Sound Doors:  Minimum STC 45 rating. 
9) Sound Doors lites:  Minimum STC 45 rating. 
10) Sound Door Frames: Completely fill with mineral wood, minimum density 2.5lb/cf.   
11) Door Swing:  Doors at Server Room, Communications Room, and Evidence Storage Room, shall swing 

outward. Fire exit pathway doors shall swing in the direction of travel.  Door swings shall not impede 
the fire exit route. 
 

E. Hardware: 

1) ADA Compliance:  All doors shall be equipped with all necessary hardware and hardware shall be ADA 
compliant and be fire rated if required by code.   Hardware style and finish shall be approved by the 
ACS.  

2) Fire Rating:  All openings within fire rated walls shall have at least the minimally required hardware to 
comply with fire code, including a fire or smoke gasket, exit device or latching hardware as appropriate 
and threshold.  All Hardware shall be UL listed for fire-rated doors. 

3) Locksets and Security:  Key systems, locks, doors and keys are to be provided to assure maximum 
security and shall be appropriate for heavy duty use.   

i. Locksets: All doors with the exception of interior soundlock vestibule doors and public 
restrooms shall have heavy duty commercial mortise type hardware, of one manufacturer and 
design.  Acceptable manufacturers and design are Corbin Russwin ML2000 series, Sargent 
8100, Best 35H, Rhodes Heavy Duty, Schlage L series or ACS accepted equivalent, with 
threaded cylinder enclosure. Locksets shall be cast lever handle with escutcheon, compliant 
with ADA requirements, 2  3/4” backset, 3 /4” latch throw typical except 1” dead bolt throw, with 
boxed strike having extended curved lip to fit jamb.   

ii. Keying:  
a. Provide interchangeable key core, 7-pin tumbler with the exception of the Holding Cells and JS 

Holding areas which will have detention hardware with mogul keying – all mogul locks to be 
keyed alike.  

b. Public Building Entry, exterior staff entries and Evidence Storage shall all be keyed separately 
from each other and from all other interior ACS doors.   

c. Interior Doors shall be master keyed.   
d. Provide (5) keys total for each separately keyed keyway, and (30) keys total for the master 

keyed interior doors at no charge.   
e. Provide (10) keys total for all mogul keyways.  

174



Bethel Lease RFP   November 16, 2017 

Page 18 of 20 TECHNICAL LEASE REQUIREMENTS  
 

4) Push/Pull Hardware: Typically, interior courtroom soundlock vestibule doors and public restroom doors 
shall have push pull hardware.  Reference Appendix C Space Programming Sheets for specific 
locations.  

5) Sound Seal Hardware: An automated threshold closure system (fully mortised door bottom drop seal 
and threshold) and adjustable sound seal at door frame are required at all Sound Walls.  Sound seals 
must be adjusted for continuous contact with the door, and the threshold closure must completely seal 
at the bottom. Double leaf sound doors will require a removable mullion or astragal.  

6) Closers:  Closers must be provided at jury and public restrooms, and all doors within sound wall 
assemblies, except Judge’s Chambers and Clerk of Court office. Closers at sound doors shall be face 
frame mounted to allow a continuous sound seal. 

7) Viewer:  Wide angle (270 degrees) viewer must be provided at staff and jury/prisoner delivery entry 
doors into courtroom/hearing room, and at entry to JS holding areas; also at exit doors from secured 
space to public space (i.e. at entry door to secure corridor from public lobby). 

8) Deadbolt: A deadbolt is required as part of the locking hardware at Evidence Storage and all openings 
from secured areas to all public spaces.  Deadbolts must disengage by pressing panic hardware at all 
assembly spaces. 

9) Cipher Locks:  The ACS shall provide Trilogy DL2700 or similar cipher locks at the following locations 
and others as scheduled in Appendix C Space Programming Sheets: Exterior entrance to prisoner 
transport area, exterior staff entrance, jury assembly and courtroom exterior exits (for fire exiting), entry 
door to secure hall from public lobby or hallway, public entries to clerk’s office and to customer service 
counter, and jury/prisoner delivery courtroom entry door. Cipher locks shall have hard key override 
keyed separately.  

i. Landlord to provide door, frame and coordinating hardware details to allow ACS to procure the 
correct configuration and model of cipher locks.   

10) Exterior Hardware:   

i. Provide weatherstripping, seals, brushes and thermally broken thresholds as appropriate for 
exterior. 

ii. Provide armor plates on push side of doors. 

11) Detention Hardware: Provide security/detention type hardware as follows: 
i. Hinges similar to Southern Steel; 205 Heavy Duty Hinges 
ii. Locking Hardware:  Similar to Southern Steel 10518 Deadlock, w/214S Recess Door Pull on 

outside.  No hardware on inside of cell. 
iii. Door Opening;  262 Food Pass 

12) Provide at All Doors:  Unless otherwise noted, provide: 
i. Wall or overhead doorstops as appropriate for the application. Provide floor stops only where 

overhead or wall doorstops cannot be used.   
ii. Silencers on door frame, unless Sound Seal Hardware or smoke seal is provided. 
iii. Heavy duty hinges where required for weight of door such as sound doors and holding cells 

and where recommended by supplier/manufacturer for use. 
iv. Kickplate on push side of door.   

13) Corner Guards:  Provide 48”high (minimum) stainless steel corner guards at all outside wall corners in 
Public Areas such as Entrance, Public Lobby, Customer Service Lobby, Jury and Jury Assembly. Install 
stainless steel outside corner guards in public restrooms where tile not installed. 

 

22. WINDOWS:  All required exterior windows must be a minimum of 20SF (60” wide x 48” high is the preferred 
size), except for high windows at Jury Rooms, which should be a minimum of 10SF (60” wide x 24 high is the 
preferred size).  Windows shall low maintenance should be double paned construction, with sealed insulated 
glass panels, and frame materials as appropriate for the Alaskan climate.  Interior relite windows shall be 
required where specifically specified in Appendix C – Space Programming Sheets. 

A. Window sills in public spaces shall be a nonabsorbent finish such as plastic laminate or solid surface 
material.  

 

 

175



Bethel Lease RFP   November 16, 2017 

Page 19 of 20 TECHNICAL LEASE REQUIREMENTS  
 

B. Exterior Window Locations include:   

1) All private offices and the Judicial Assistant open office must have at least one (1) operable, lockable 
window.  The Clerk’s Office must have at least one (1) of this type of window for each 400SF of area.   

2) Jury Assembly and the Public Lobby must have at least one (1) non-operable window.   

3) Jury Deliberation Rooms must have at least one (1) non-operable window high enough on the wall to 
block visibility into the room by pedestrians and vehicles.  If visibility into the room is still possible from 
other structures, window must have a reflective glazing or film to block interior of room from view.  

C. Interior Relite Windows at required at the following locations (This does not include door lites): 

1) Customer Service Counter Lobby (Appendix C): Provide (2) fixed plexiglass relites with hollow metal 
frames. Provide a security speak-thru centered in each window. 

i. Provide a 60”W relite with a gap of 4” between countertop and the bottom of the plexiglass 
material.  The plexiglass shall extend to 7’AFF with a gap of at least 6” between the frame header 
and top of plexiglass.  

ii. Provide a 30”W relite.  Plexiglass shall extend from countertop to 7’AFF with a gap of at least 6” 
between the frame header and top of plexiglass.  

2) Security Screening Lobby (Appendix C): Provide at least (1) 48”W relite with view to public exit path; 
and at least (1) 30”W relite with view to Public Arctic Entry.   

3) Clerk of Court Office (Appendix C): Provide (1) 48”W relite with view to customer service counter.   

D. The Communication Room, Evidence Storage Closet, Grand Jury Suite, Courtrooms, Toilets, Secure 
Hallways, and JS Holding Areas should not have any exterior windows or interior relites.  Courtrooms shall 
have door lites in soundlock doors – Reference Paragraph 21D.6 above.  The ACS shall provide new 
adjustable horizontal blinds with all hardware for all windows.  The Landlord shall install and adjust the 
blinds. 

 

23. INTERIOR SIGNS:   

A. ACS Procured and Landlord Installed Wall Signs:  The ACS shall procure all room and directional wall 
signage, and ship it the building site.  Landlord is responsible for receiving, inventorying, and installing all 
signage.   ACS shall provide interior signs as necessary to identify, direct and guide the public and staff to 
all permanent rooms and spaces, and as required by fire code, building code and ADA requirements. Signs 
will be for mechanical mounting.  Landlord should calculate the quantity of signage as twice the number of 
doors and openings within the leased area, plus signs additional signage as required for code compliance.  
Typically this includes additional signs at assembly areas (maximum room capacity), stairwells (exiting) and 
elevators (fire instructions), but Landlord must confirm ADA and fire code requirements for the facility and 
advise the ACS of signs required for compliance.     

B. Evacuation/Fire Egress Plans:  Landlord shall provide permanent floor plan signs which clearly identify 
location of sign in the building, primary and secondary paths of egress from that location, location of fire 
alarm pulls stations, fire extinguishers, fire hose, and other safety equipment, and all exits.  Floor plans 
shall be provided at all corridors, “blind ends”, entrances, courtrooms, hearing rooms, jury assembly rooms, 
grand jury room, public lobbies, and other high occupancy areas. Signs may be paper floor plans covered 
with Plexiglas, but must be permanently mounted to walls, and meet minimum code requirements for sign 
and other details.  

C. Architectural Metal Lettering: Landlord shall provide stud mounted, mechanically attached architectural,  
1/8” thick (minimum) flat cut aluminum metal lettering above the following entries to clearly identify for the 
public the following spaces: Clerk’s Office, each Courtroom, and Jury Assembly. Lettering to be a minimum 
of 6” high.  Landlord shall provide adequate backing behind finish surface for mounting lettering. 

D. ACS Procured and Landlord Installed Building Directory:  The ACS shall procure a building directory at 
the main public entrance, if main entrance is accessible by multiple tenants.  If ACS facilities are not on the 
ground floor and the floor is multi-tenanted, ACS will procure additional provide directional signage on the 
floor to where the ACS premises are located. Directories shall include a title for “Alaska Court System” and 
have ACS days and hours of operation along with room name, number, and directional arrows if necessary, 
to guide the public to all areas directly accessed by the public.  
 

176



Bethel Lease RFP   November 16, 2017 

Page 20 of 20 TECHNICAL LEASE REQUIREMENTS  
 

24. EXTERIOR SIGNS: 

A. Exterior Building Signage:  Provide permanent mechanically attached exterior sign at public entrance to 
building. Sign shall be 1” depth (minimum) cast metal lettering and shall read “ALASKA COURT SYSTEM” 
and be 14” high or larger as required to be highly visible to vehicle and pedestrian traffic. Below the 14” 
text, in smaller lettering, but no less than 8” high, provide the name of building, if applicable, and the street 
address. Provide appropriate backing under exterior wall finish to allow secure, tight, weatherproof 
mounting of lettering.  

B. Parking Signage:  Landlord shall provide permanent signs indicating which spaces are reserved for ACS 
employee parking, and, if a multiple tenant building, which spaces are for Court System public parking.  
Additionally, provide ADA required signage at all handicapped accessible parking spaces. 

 

25. ELEVATORS:  If space is provided on a floor which is not on street level, an interior elevator must be available 
to the public.  All elevators shall be ADA compliant and have a minimum depth of 66”’ and a removable false 
ceiling to allow the movement and transfer of ACS furnishings.  Elevators shall be operational 24 hours a day 7 
days a week. 
 

26. PARKING:  Landlord shall provide reserved off-street parking for (25) twenty-five staff vehicles located on the 
same lot as the building in which the premises are located, on a lot adjacent to the building, or across the street 
from the building.  Additionally, reserved off-street parking for (1) one prisoner transport vehicle shall be located 
adjacent to the Holding Area Prisoner Delivery Entrance, and must be visually concealed from the Public Entrance.  
This parking will be signed as reserved parking for Staff and Troopers only and, if in an outside area, will require 
electrical plug-ins (reference Paragraph 13 above.  Safe off-street parking must be available for customers and 
jurors, with closest parking space within 100’ of the building entrance used to access court space.  If the parking 
areas are significantly different in elevation from the Public Entrance, code compliant stairs or ramp must be 
provided to bridge the change in elevation.  ADA parking spaces shall be provided accessible, code compliant 
route to the building entrance. 

 

27. FLAGPOLE: Landlord shall provide at least one (1) with a minimum height of 30 feet (or taller if recommended 
by the flagpole manufacturer) exterior flagpole at a location approved by the ACS.  This pole shall include 
lighting for illumination of flags at night and shall be capable of displaying (2) two 5’ wide x 8’ long flags – (a U.S. 
and a State flag to be provided by ACS).   

As an option, the Landlord can provide two (2) flag poles. One flag pole for each flag. Minimum height for each pole 
shall be 25 feet or higher feet or taller if recommended by the flagpole manufacturer.  

These poles should provide the means to conveniently raise and lower the flags, with controls that are lockable.  
Provide one set of keys to ACS. Landlord to retain one set of keys. The responsibility of raising and lowering the 
flags shall rest with ACS.  If the Landlord elects to assume the responsibility of raising and lowering the flags at the 
beginning and ending of every day, then the lighting requirements may be deleted. 

177



Lease Location: Bethel   
Lease #: BET-L-18-0003  

ALASKA COURT SYSTEM (ACS) LEASE CONTRACT 
 

 Section D 
 Page 1 of 4  

 
Landlord Name (Landlord) and the Alaska Court System (Tenant) agree to enter into this lease on the Day of Month, 
2019 under the terms and conditions set out below: 
 

1. PROPERTY ADDRESS: Physical Address, Alaska 
 As described on Section F - Building Questionnaire 

 

2. LEASED PREMISES: Suite or Floor, etc.   
 As Shown on Section H – As-Built (or proposed) Floor Plans 

 

3. LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY: Lot, Block, Subdivision   
 As described on Section F - Building Questionnaire 

 

4. TERM: Fifteen (15) Year   
As defined by Section B - Supplementary Lease 
Conditions 
 

5. COMMENCEMENT DATE: Date,  2019   
 As defined by Section B - Supplementary Lease 
 Conditions 

 

6. EXPIRATION DATE: Date,  2034    
As defined by Section B -Supplementary Lease 
Conditions 

  
7. RENEWAL OPTION(S): Two (2) Options, Five (5) Year each 

As defined by Section B – Supplementary Lease 
Conditions 
 

8. BASE MONTHLY LEASE RATE: Written Dollars ($Numeric #) 
Is stipulated on Landlord’s Bid Schedule  
 

9. NET USABLE SQUARE FEET:  Written SF (Numeric #) 
As defined by Section C – Technical Lease  
Requirements  
 

10. LANDLORD NAME & MAILING ADDRESS:  Landlord Name 
  Landlord Address 
  Landlord Address2 
 
11. LANDLORD OTHER PERTINENT INFORMATION: Taxpayer ID #:    Bus. Lic. #    
  Contact Name:       
  Contact Title:        
  Phone:         
  E-mail:        
 
12. TENANT NAME & MAILING ADDRESS: Alaska Court System 
  820 W. 4

th
 Ave. 

 Anchorage, AK  99501 
 Attn: Facilities Dept. 
 
13. SECTIONS:  The following Sections which were a part of the original Request for Proposals and the LANDLORD’s 
responsive Proposal to that Request for Proposals are incorporated with the above terms and conditions to constitute the 
entire master lease.  Additionally, these sections will govern over the terms listed in this document.  

 

SECTION B – RFP DELIVERABLES AND SELECTION PROCESS 

PART I - Selection Process  

PART II - Criteria Evaluation  

PART III - Documents Required for Proposal 

178



Lease Location: Bethel   
Lease #: BET-L-18-0003  

ALASKA COURT SYSTEM (ACS) LEASE CONTRACT 
 

 Section D 
 Page 2 of 4  

PART IV – Technical Criteria 

PART IV.5 – Building Questionnaire  

PART V – Cost Criteria 

PART V – Price Proposal Form  

PART VI – Proposal Submittal Information & Certifications  

SECTION C – LEASE REQUIREMENTS 

 Section C - Supplementary Lease Conditions 

Section C - Technical Lease Requirements 

Appendices 

 A.   Lease Space Requirements 

 B.   Schematic Floor Plan of Court Facility 

 C.   Space Programming Sheets 

 D.   Typical Courtroom Layout - Superior 

1) Judge’s Bench Casework 

3) Typical Mobile Witness Stand & Platform 

4) Fixed Courtroom Modesty Wall  

5) Jury & Judge’s Casework Platform Construction 

 E.   Server & Communications Room Equipment Layout 

 J.    Sound Isolation Wall 

SECTION D – CONTRACT LEASE (SAMPLE) 

SUBMITTALS REQUIRED PRIOR TO CONTRACT EXECUTION 

Section C Gen. Lease Conditions, Paragraph 3.C - Construction Schedule (if applicable)  

Section C – Technical Lease Requirements, Paragraph 5.D: 

1) Certificate of Occupancy  

2) Compliance Statement 

3) Balancing Report 

4) Data Termination Test Reports 

Section C – Technical Lease Requirements, Paragraph 5.E: 

1) Full Set of Final “As-Built” Drawings – including site plan, architectural, structural, mechanical, & electrical  

2) Final “As-Built” Specifications 

3) Final Operations & Maintenance Manuals 

4) Alaska Building Energy Efficiency Standard Compliance Confirmation 

 
14. ALASKA LITTLE DAVIS-BACON PROVISIONS. 

If Lessor contemplates any construction or remodeling of the Leased Premises, the construction or remodeling is 
subject to the Alaska Little Davis-Bacon Act, AS 36.05.010 – 36.05.120.  The Alaska Court System will notify the 
Alaska Department of Labor, Labor Standards and Safey Division, of this Lease in accordance with AS 36.05.035.  
The Landlord must then comply with the requirements noted within the Department of Labor pamphlet attached.    The 
rate of wages shall be adjusted to the wage rate under the Alaska Little Davis-Bacon Act.  A contract for space to be 
constructed or altered for this procurement will contain the following provisions, required under AS 36.05.070(c): 
(1) the contractor or subcontractors of the contractor shall pay all employees unconditionally and not less than once a 

week; 
(2) The contractor shall submit one copy of the certified payrolls to the Alaska Court System weekly. 
(3) wages may not be less than those stated in the Department of Labor pamphlet, regardless of the contractual 
relationship between the contractor or subcontractors and laborers, mechanics, or field surveyors; 
(4) the scale of wages to be paid shall be posted by the contractor in a prominent and easily accessible place at the 
site of the work; 
(5) the Alaska Court System shall withhold so much of the accrued payments as is necessary to pay to laborers, 
mechanics, or field surveyors employed by the contractor or subcontractors the difference between 

(A) the rates of wages required by the contract to be paid laborers, mechanics, or field surveyors on the work, and 
(B) the rates of wages in fact received by laborers, mechanics, or field surveyors 

179



Lease Location: Bethel   
Lease #: BET-L-18-0003  

ALASKA COURT SYSTEM (ACS) LEASE CONTRACT 
 

 Section D 
 Page 3 of 4  

Before commencing construction of leasehold improvements on the premises, the lessor shall designate a primary 
contractor for purposes of this section.  Before work commences, the primary contractor shall file a notice of work with 
the Department of Labor and Workforce Development, with a copy to the Alaska Court System Facilities Manager.  
The notice of work must list the leasehold improvement work to be performed by each contractor who will perform any 
portion of the leasehold improvement work and the contract price being paid to each contractor.  The primary 
contractor shall pay all filing fees for each contractor performing work on the contract, including a filing fee based on 
the contract price being paid for work performed by the primary contractor's employees.  The filing fee payable shall 
be the sum of all fees calculated for each contractor.  There is no fee for a contract under which the total amount 
payable by the contracting agency is less than $25,000.  In this subsection, "contractor" means an employer who is 
using employees to perform leasehold improvement work on the premises. 

 
 

Landlord:  LANDLORD'S NAME   Tenant: ALASKA COURT SYSTEM 
 
BY:       BY:  
        
PRINTED NAME:       PRINTED NAME: JACK BAILEY 
 
TITLE:        TITLE: FACILITIES MANAGER 

 
 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT BY LANDLORD: NAME OF LANDLORD  
ONE OF THE FOLLOWING MUST BE COMPLETED AND NOTARIZED!  

 
 
1) For an individual acting in the individual's own right:  
 
State of         
       Judicial District (or County of      ) 
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this    day of      , 20  
by         (name of person who acknowledged).  
 

Signature of Person Taking Acknowledgment__________________________________________  
Title or Rank__________________________________________ 

Serial Number, if any__________________________________________   

 
 
(2) For a corporation:  
State of         
    Judicial District (or County of      ) 
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this    day of      , 20  
by          (name of officer or agent, title of officer or 
agent) of           (name of corporation acknowledging) a  
      (state or place of incorporation) corporation, on behalf of the corporation.  

 
Signature of Person Taking Acknowledgment__________________________________________  

Title or Rank__________________________________________ 
Serial Number, if any__________________________________________   

 
 
 
 

180



Lease Location: Bethel   
Lease #: BET-L-18-0003  

ALASKA COURT SYSTEM (ACS) LEASE CONTRACT 
 

 Section D 
 Page 4 of 4  

(3) For a partnership:  
State of         
    Judicial District (or County of      ) 
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this    day of      , 20  
by           (name of acknowledging partner or agent), 
partner (or agent) on behalf of          (name of partnership), a partnership.  

 
Signature of Person Taking Acknowledgment__________________________________________  

Title or Rank__________________________________________ 
Serial Number, if any__________________________________________   

 
 
(4) For an individual acting as principal by an attorney in fact:  
State of         
    Judicial District (or County of      ) 
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this    day of      , 20  
by          (name of attorney in fact) as attorney in fact on 
behalf of       (name of principal).  

 
Signature of Person Taking Acknowledgment__________________________________________  

Title or Rank__________________________________________ 
Serial Number, if any__________________________________________   

 
 
(5) By a public officer, trustee, or personal representative: 
  
State of Alaska 
Third Judicial District  
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this    day of      , 20  
by            (Name and Title of Position). 
 

Signature of Person Taking Acknowledgment__________________________________________  
Title or Rank__________________________________________ 

Serial Number, if any__________________________________________ 
 

 
 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT BY TENANT:  ALASKA COURT SYSTEM, STATE OF ALASKA 
 
State of Alaska 
Third Judicial District  
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this    day of      , 20  
by       ,       (Name, and Title of Position). 
 

Signature of Person Taking Acknowledgment__________________________________________  
Title or Rank__________________________________________ 

Serial Number, if any__________________________________________   

181



CITY OF BETHEL 
CITY MANAGER ANNUAL EVALUATION —DECEMBER 12, 2017 

 1 

 

City Manager: Pete Williams  
Rating: 5 = Excellent; 1 = Needs improvement 

 

Enforcement of Laws and Implementation of Policy Directives  5 4 3 2 1 

Manage the City’s administrative affairs according to state statutes and 
Bethel Municipal Code 

     

Comments:      

      

      

Analysis and development of policies and procedures      

Comments:      

      

      

Implement and monitor policies enacted by City Council      

Comments:      

      

      

Supervision of City administration and departments      

Comments:      

      

      

Problem solving and conflict resolution      

Comments:       

      

      

Management and valuation of cultural diversity      

182



CITY OF BETHEL 
CITY MANAGER ANNUAL EVALUATION —DECEMBER 12, 2017 

 2 

Comments:      

      

      

Creativity, innovation and ability to change to meet needs      

Comments:      

      

      

Long range planning      

Comments:      

      

      

Development and management of real and personal property of the City      

Comments:      

      

      

SUBTOTAL OF CATEGORY: 
 
 

Appointing Authority 5 4 3 2 1 

Serve as Personnel Officer (Director) of the City      

Comments:      

      

      

Manage Labor Relations/Employee Relations      

Comments:      

      

183



CITY OF BETHEL 
CITY MANAGER ANNUAL EVALUATION —DECEMBER 12, 2017 

 3 

      
Monitor employee benefit program:      

Comments:      

      

      

Analyze human resources and technical needs and implement solutions      

Comments:      

      

      

SUBTOTAL OF CATEGORY: 

 
 

Preparation, Submission and execution of annual budget and capital 
improvements 

5 4 3 2 1 

Development and submission of recommended annual budget      

Comments:      

      

      

Development and submission of recommended capital improvement 
program budget 

     

Comments:      

      

      

Budget management, control and analysis      

Comments:      

      

      

SUBTOTAL OF CATEGORY: 
 

184



CITY OF BETHEL 
CITY MANAGER ANNUAL EVALUATION —DECEMBER 12, 2017 

 4 

 

Performance of other duties assigned by law or City Council  5 4 3 2 1 

Timeliness, quality and clarity of communications with city council      

Comments:      

      

      

Timeliness, quality and clarity of communications with the public and 
media 

     

Comments:      

      

      

Ethics, values, judgment and perceptiveness       

Comments:      

      

      

Communicates projects and project status with Council      

Comments:      

      

      

SUBTOTAL OF CATEGORY: 
 
 

Ethics and Communication 5 4 3 2 1 

Defends principle and conviction in the face of partisan influence and 
pressure 

     

Comments:      

      

      

Maintains high standards of ethics, honesty and integrity in all matters      

Comments:      

185



CITY OF BETHEL 
CITY MANAGER ANNUAL EVALUATION —DECEMBER 12, 2017 

 5 

      

      

Effectively communicates with staff, Council and the public      

Comments:      

      

      

Writes clearly and concisely      

Comments:      

      

      

Expresses ideas and opinions in a forthright, logical manner      

Comments:      

      

      

Remains poised and calm in difficult situations      

Comments:      

      

      

Represents the City to the public in a positive light      

Comments:      

      

      

SUBTOTAL OF CATEGORY: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

186



CITY OF BETHEL 
CITY MANAGER ANNUAL EVALUATION —DECEMBER 12, 2017 

 6 

 
Total Score:   Excellent: 130   

   Very Good: 104   
   Good: 78   
   Satisfactory: 52   
   Needs Improvement: 26   

 
Additional City Council comments/recommendations: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
City Manager Comments: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
       

Reviewer’s Signature  Date  City Manager’s Signature  Date 
 

187



 

Additional Information  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

188


	Approval of the Meeting Minutes
	Reports of Standing Committees
	Special Order of Business
	Unfinished Business
	New Business
	Mayor’s Report
	City Manager’s Report
	Management Team Reports
	City Clerk’s Report
	Executive Session
	Executive Session Material RFP Alaska Court System 2017.pdf
	RFP - Cover &  Index - FINAL
	Section A - Instructions to Offerors - FINAL
	Section B - RFP Del, Eval, Selection Process - FINAL
	Section B - PART IV.5 Building Questionnaire - FINAL
	Section B - PART V Price Proposal - FINAL
	Section B - PART VI Proposal Submittal Form - FINAL
	Section C - General Lease Conditions - FINAL
	Section C - Supplementary Lease Conditions - FINAL
	Section C - Technical Lease Requirements - FINAL
	Section D - Lease Contract Sample - FINAL




